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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am Councilman

          3  Stanley Michels, and I welcome you all here. I am

          4  the chair of the Environmental Protection Committee,

          5  and I welcome you to this important hearing, and a

          6  special welcome to the Department of Sanitation and

          7  to the elected officials who are here or their

          8  representatives, members of the Citywide Recycling

          9  Advisory Board, or Borough Solid Waste Advisory

         10  Board, members of the Manhattan and Staten Island

         11  community boards and other community environmental

         12  advocates from wherever they are, whether from New

         13  York and New Jersey, you are all welcome here. This

         14  is a hearing that is a long time coming, it is an

         15  extremely important hearing, it is one of the

         16  hearings that is really the start of the issues that

         17  are about to be coming about.

         18                 Today there are two items before this

         19  Committee, two items of business. The first item

         20  will be a vote on proposed Intro. No. 531-A, and I

         21  am not going to ask you if anybody knows what that

         22  is, this is not a question and answer period.

         23  However, that is an act to amend the Administrative

         24  Code of the City of New York in relation to motor

         25  fuel storage and dispensing systems, commonly known
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          2  as underground storage tanks or USTs.

          3                 This bill, together with the

          4  regulations which will be adopted upon its enactment

          5  by the Department of Fire, the Fire Department, will

          6  provide much to the modernization of the Fire

          7  Prevention Code to help to conform New York City's

          8  regulation to federal and state underground storage

          9  tank regulations, and it is an area which is very

         10  much regulated.

         11                 We had a hearing on this proposed

         12  Intro. No. 531-A last Friday, October 22nd, and we

         13  are preparing to vote on this, as I said.

         14                 The second order of business which

         15  brings you all here today, is for the Committee to

         16  conduct oversight of the Department of

         17  Sanitation's"Interim" contract for the export of

         18  residential and institutional waste, in 1996, with

         19  the enactment of state legislation requiring the

         20  closure of Freshkills by January 1, 2002. The

         21  Department of Sanitation began a two-track process

         22  to end the City's reliance on Freshkills. One track

         23  is to issue short term, that is three to five-year

         24  export contractor will rely on existing commercial

         25  waste transfer stations.
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          2                 Under the Interim contract, the

          3  Department of Sanitation diverts its collection

          4  trucks from the City's marine transfer stations to

          5  commercial waste transfer stations. The second track

          6  is to develop a long-term plan to export the City's

          7  waste via the presently existing marine transfer

          8  stations.

          9                 Under the Interim plan, the

         10  Department proposes to export at least 9,000 tons

         11  per day and perhaps as much as 13,000 tons per day

         12  of the City's residential waste via a truck-based

         13  export.

         14                 This plan is referred to as the

         15  "Interim" because it is envisioned that it will be

         16  only used until the City's ultimate waste export

         17  solution, that is the export of waste via the

         18  Department of Sanitation's marine transfer stations,

         19  the so-called long-term plan, is implemented.

         20                 The need for an Interim plan was

         21  recognized by the Department of Sanitation in late

         22  1997, when it became apparent that the long-term

         23  marine export plan could not be implemented in time

         24  to meet the schedule of Freshkills tonnage

         25  reductions, and ultimately the closure of
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          2  Freshkills.

          3                 To date, the Department of Sanitation

          4  has issued interim contracts for the Bronx, that is

          5  1,900 tons per day beginning in 1997, and for parts

          6  of Brooklyn, 2,400 tons per day, beginning in 1998.

          7                 The Department intends to commence

          8  the export later this year of an additional 2,300

          9  tons per day from Manhattan and 900 tons per day

         10  from Staten Island. It is this third phase of the

         11  interim export plan that is the main subject of

         12  today's oversight hearing.

         13                 The Department will be testifying on

         14  the various aspects of the Manhattan and Staten

         15  Island interim contracts, as well as telling us how

         16  current Brooklyn and Bronx contracts are proceeding.

         17                 The main purpose of the hearing is to

         18  understand how the communities within these

         19  boroughs, Manhattan and Staten Island, will be

         20  impacted by the various aspects of the proposed

         21  interim waste export contract and how the interim

         22  export plan must address the complex issues raised

         23  by these contracts.

         24                 The Department's objective to export

         25  garbage by truck will affect many neighborhoods in
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          2  this City.

          3                 This Council and this Committee are

          4  committed to both timely closure of Freshkills, and

          5  the fairness, and I emphasize fairness, to each of

          6  our boroughs in each of our neighborhoods, as well

          7  as the individual communities. The decisions

          8  regarding how this is to be accomplished must be

          9  made as part of an open process, and I emphasize an

         10  open process, that inspires public confidence by

         11  producing a plan that will not only result in the

         12  closure of the landfill, but minimizes as best as

         13  possible the community impacts.

         14                 We will have, when we have the

         15  sufficient number of Council members here, a vote on

         16  the underground storage tank bill, 531-A.

         17                 I am looking around and we still have

         18  to wait for some members, so we will then begin by

         19  having an oversight on the Department of Sanitation

         20  on the Interim plan.

         21                 With me today are Council Members

         22  Robles from Brooklyn, Council Member Provenzano from

         23  the Bronx, and Jim Gennaro, Alison, to my left, the

         24  Counsel, Alison Sacks, Counsel to the Committee and

         25  Jeff Haberman here on the left.
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          2                 Commissioner, welcome. You have a

          3  statement I understand, we have copies of it. We

          4  look forward from hearing from you and your staff,

          5  and if you will identify yourselves and your staff,

          6  we will commence this hearing.

          7                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Thank you, Mr.

          8  Chairman, and good morning.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Good morning.

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Good morning

         11  also to members of the Committee on Environmental

         12  Protection.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are going to

         14  have to speak a little closer because I am having

         15  trouble hearing you.

         16                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Oh, really?

         17  Okay.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's better.

         19  Everybody wants to hear what you have to say.

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Once again

         21  then, good morning, to all.

         22                 I am Kevin Farrell, Commissioner of

         23  the Department of Sanitation. I am pleased to appear

         24  before you this morning to discuss the Interim

         25  short-term contracts for the export of
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          2  Department-collected residential waste generated in

          3  the Boroughs of Manhattan and Staten Island.

          4                 With me today to answer your

          5  questions are First Deputy Commissioner Michael

          6  Carpinello, Deputy Commissioner Steven Lawitts,

          7  Leslie Allan and Martha Hirst, and other members of

          8  my staff.

          9                 The Department has made substantial

         10  progress in achieving the annual tonnage reduction

         11  targets prescribed in the 1996 Freshkills closure

         12  task force report. In July 1997, we awarded a

         13  contract to export approximately 1,900 tons per day

         14  of Bronx-generated residential waste through a

         15  private transfer station in the Bronx.

         16                 In October 1998, we awarded a

         17  contract to export approximately 2,400 tons per day

         18  of Brooklyn-generated residential waste through two

         19  private transfer stations in Brooklyn.

         20                 This month we awarded contracts to

         21  four private solid waste management facilities in

         22  New Jersey to handle approximately 2,200 tons per

         23  day of Manhattan-generated residential waste, and

         24  900 tons per day of Staten Island generated

         25  residential waste.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            11

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 We awarded these contracts after a

          3  competitive bidding process, based on the per-ton

          4  price and the Department's cost to transport the

          5  waste to the facility referenced in the bid

          6  offerings, the winning bidders were TransRiver

          7  Marketing Company, which is a subsidiary of American

          8  Ref-Fuel, Browning Ferris Industries, which operates

          9  the Essex County Resource Recovery Facility in

         10  Newark, Waste Management, which operates two

         11  transfer stations in Elizabeth, and Solid Waste

         12  Transfer and Recycling, Incorporated, which operates

         13  a transfer station in Newark.

         14                 All of these solid waste management

         15  facilities are fully permitted by New Jersey to

         16  accept the amount of waste they will receive under

         17  these contracts.

         18                 When the contracts are implemented,

         19  department disposal operations will change, but

         20  collection operations will remain essentially the

         21  same. Instead of dumping their waste loads at one of

         22  three Manhattan Marine Transfer Stations, or at

         23  Freshkills, Department collection trucks will travel

         24  to one of the four New Jersey facilities.

         25                 The trips will occur mostly in the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            12

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  evening hours to avoid traffic delays. The

          3  Department will assign uniformed supervisors along

          4  the travel routes, and at each facility, to

          5  supervise the transport and disposal operations. The

          6  Department trucks will travel only on designated

          7  truck routes in Manhattan and in New Jersey.

          8                 The Department assessed the impacts

          9  of the interim export contracts on the environments

         10  of Manhattan and Staten Island, and determined that

         11  the rerouting of its collection trucks to and from

         12  the three Hudson River crossings and the Goethels

         13  Bridge, will have no significant adverse impacts.

         14                 The environmental assessments focused

         15  particularly on traffic and traffic-related noise

         16  and air quality. We have distributed copies of the

         17  Declaration of No Significant Impact, also known as

         18  the Negative Declaration, to all Council members.

         19                 That document describes the

         20  environmental review process in great detail.

         21                 Chairman Michels and his staff also

         22  have copies of the full environmental assessment

         23  statements and supplemental reports.

         24                 I know that the timely closure of

         25  Freshkills landfill is a priority, not only for the
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          2  Administration but also for the City Council.

          3                 The Department has reached out to New

          4  York City and New Jersey officials for support on

          5  these four contracts. We have briefed Chairman

          6  Michels and his staff, the Manhattan Borough

          7  President, Comptroller Hevesi's staff and many New

          8  Jersey officials.

          9                 On Monday we began a preliminary test

         10  by sending trucks from one Manhattan district to New

         11  Jersey. We expect to phase in the export of all

         12  Manhattan and Staten Island districts by the middle

         13  of November. These contracts of the four New Jersey

         14  facilities are the best way for the short-term to

         15  implement those targets for Manhattan and Solid --

         16  and Staten Island Waste.

         17                 My staff and I are now available to

         18  answer your questions.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So I think the

         20  most revealing thing that came from your statement

         21  is you are now, with respect to the Manhattan and

         22  Staten Island Interim plan, you are commencing that

         23  in November?

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The plan will

         25  be fully operational somewhere between the middle of
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          2  November and the end of November.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right. But right

          4  now you are doing a pilot? Would you call that a

          5  pilot?

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I would call it

          7  a phased-in testing procedure, sending relatively

          8  few trucks.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Could you tell

         10  us more about this?

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Certainly. We

         12  are sending all refuse collected from Manhattan 3.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Board 3.

         14  Community Board 3?

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Community Board

         16  6. I am sorry, 6.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Community Board

         18  6, which ordinarily uses what marine transfer

         19  station?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         21  Excuse me. Manhattan 6 will ordinarily use the 91st

         22  Street Marine Transfer Station.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right. And that

         24  is on the east side.

         25                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: And that is
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          2  going to Essex County.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The Essex County

          4  Resource --

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Resource

          6  Recovery Facility.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And how many

          8  trucks -- that is all of it, and the route they take

          9  is what, through the Lincoln Tunnel?

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, that's

         11  correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And is that

         13  going to be using the Thruway, or the New Jersey

         14  Turnpike?

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The New Jersey

         16  Turnpike, yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Exit 15 or

         18  something?

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I believe it is

         20  15, yes. 15E.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And how many

         22  trucks?

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: About 18 daily.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Could you tell

         25  us what time of day?
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          2                 In other words, you are doing this,

          3  as I understand it --

          4                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: We are, as a

          5  test.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: As a test to

          7  see, to get the bugs out so-to-speak.

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: So-to-speak.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: When you plan to

         10  do the full interim plan from Manhattan to Staten

         11  Island.

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That is

         13  correct.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are not

         15  doing any from Staten Island, right?

         16                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, we are not.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Just from

         18  Manhattan.

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Nor from any

         20  other --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is 18 trucks

         22  a day, and --

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Is it 18 total,

         24  Mike?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Eighteen loads

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            17

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  going across, is that the total number of trucks

          3  that are used?

          4                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: From that

          5  district.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And they pick up

          7  the refuse.

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: As normal.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And then what do

         10  they do? Do they go directly to New Jersey, or do

         11  they go back to the garage?

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: They go

         13  directly to Jersey. However, they are inspected on

         14  the street before they leave.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And they go

         16  right to New Jersey.

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And how long

         19  have you been doing this?

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Since Monday.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Can you tell us

         22  anything you have found out? Anything you have

         23  learned?

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I am happy to

         25  report that the operation has proceeded without any
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          2  hitch whatsoever?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Are they having

          4  to go through the City of Port Elizabeth?

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No. These

          6  trucks do not. I stress we have no hitch whatsoever.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, I am only

          8  asking because everybody knows that the Mayor of

          9  Elizabeth has been very vocal about how he is going

         10  to do certain things which may cause some

         11  difficulties.

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, I have

         13  heard rumors to that effect. Rumors only, Chairman.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, I heard it

         15  on the radio.

         16                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Rumors only,

         17  Chairman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is

         19  threatening. I don't know what he has done, but --

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I haven't heard

         21  anything directly.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, we will

         23  have to give you the tapes.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, please do.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay. So that is
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          2  very interesting. How is the time situation? How

          3  long does it take to get from Manhattan to the Essex

          4  County Resource Recovery Plant?

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          6  In the first three days, Monday through Wednesday,

          7  on average it is taking about 35 minutes to get

          8  there, about between waiting on line and dumping

          9  about another --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How long on

         11  line?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         13  Between waiting on line, dumping, leaving the

         14  facility, approximately 35 minutes, and then about

         15  30 minutes to get back.

         16                 So, in all, round trip to the

         17  facility and back, on average, some have been

         18  quicker, but on average an hour and 15 minutes, an

         19  hour and a half.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Are these the

         21  larger trucks?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         23  These are 25 cubic yard trucks.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: As opposed to?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:
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          2  Well, we have only have two sizes of the fleet, 20

          3  cubic yards and 25 cubic yards.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: These are the

          5  larger trucks?

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          7  These are the larger trucks.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: If I understand

          9  what we have done in all of Manhattan, you have

         10  pretty much replaced all of the smaller trucks with

         11  the larger trucks; is that correct?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         13  That's correct, because of the --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: In anticipation

         15  of the implementation of the Interim plan.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         17  Exactly.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And these trucks

         19  are filled when they go over or?

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: It is their

         21  normal load, yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How many tons

         23  would they usually have in them?

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, it is

         25  somewhere under ten tons.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            21

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And what is

          3  their capacity?

          4                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: You know,

          5  pushing it you could go to 12 and a half tons.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And the age of

          7  these trucks, are they fairly new trucks?

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, we had a

          9  problem, totally separate problem, in terms of

         10  acquiring new trucks, so these trucks tend to be

         11  newer because we have just started to bring new

         12  trucks into the fleet.

         13                 But for awhile, because of contract

         14  problems with our supplier, our truck fleet and our

         15  replacement schedule fell a little bit behind. But,

         16  yes, these trucks tend to be newer rather than old

         17  trucks.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What is your

         19  replacement schedule, can you give us a minute?

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: We have a

         21  seven-year replacement schedule.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Seven years, in

         23  other words, the life of the trucks is seven years.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's about

         25  that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And how old are

          3  these trucks, do you think? On average?

          4                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Three and a

          5  half years.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Three and a

          7  half, okay.

          8                 Okay, now, to get to the -- as you

          9  know, we are joined also by Council Member Sabini,

         10  from Queens. Welcome, Council Member.

         11                 From the export of waste from

         12  Manhattan, most of the truck trips to New Jersey

         13  will take place after 7:00 p.m., according to your

         14  plan. Because of the traffic congestion in the

         15  Hudson River Crossings, namely the Holland Tunnel,

         16  the Lincoln Tunnel, the George Washington Bridge, in

         17  order to carry out this plan, many of the trucks

         18  from the morning and collection shift will be

         19  brought back to the Department's garages fully

         20  loaded from their routes, and many of the trucks

         21  will remain in the garages until later that day.

         22                 On the average, how many loaded

         23  collection trucks per day will be stored in each of

         24  the Manhattan's garages? And how many hours will

         25  they be stored?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: On an average

          3  day, approximately 244 loaded trucks would be stored

          4  in Manhattan garages after completing their

          5  collection routes, and waiting for the appropriate

          6  time to go to New Jersey.

          7                 The average time a loaded truck would

          8  be there would be, well, a maximum time, I will give

          9  you a maximum time, will be about no more than nine

         10  hours.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That number of

         12  trucks, because certain trucks are going to go

         13  directly to New Jersey without having to go back to

         14  the storage, to the garages, right?

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That is

         16  correct.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And how many

         18  trucks will that be?

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: About 100.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: About 100. And

         21  they will be over there during the day.

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The priority

         23  loads will go over and as a productivity measure we

         24  have divided the trucks into two categories,

         25  priority and non-priority, I try to avoid that term.
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          2                 The priority trucks are the ones that

          3  must continue their collection route after dumping

          4  their first load. So, you want to get them over, get

          5  them unloaded and get them back to work to continue

          6  collection.

          7                 Non-priority trucks are the trucks

          8  that load up and their route is finished.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And how is it

         10  determined which is which?

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Historical. We

         12  know.

         13                 One thing I have learned about the

         14  Department of Sanitation, since I came to it, which

         15  of course as you know is recently. Is that the

         16  Sanitation supervisors have a very good handle, an

         17  extremely tight control over their resources and use

         18  them, in my opinion, in the most efficient way that

         19  I have seen.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: When you say

         21  historical, you mean empirical learning.

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You know there

         24  are certain trucks which will not finish picking up

         25  all of their route and they will have to come back
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          2  and finish off their routes.

          3                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: As productivity

          4  measures routes are designed so that we get the most

          5  out of our workforce.

          6                 Some of those routes cannot be

          7  completed in one --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So these trucks

          9  then come back after -- during the day. These are

         10  the trucks that go over during the day.

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Come back,

         13  finish up with the collection.

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Are they fully

         16  loaded?

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Some are, I

         18  wouldn't say 100 percent are.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And then what

         20  happens to them?

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, in this

         22  case, depending on when they finish their second

         23  load, we will either wait until it becomes, you

         24  know, the traffic allows, or they will return to

         25  Jersey forthwith, as we say.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: When you say

          3  wait, do you mean wait in the garage?

          4                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are not

          6  going to have anybody waiting in the streets?

          7                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, absolutely

          8  not.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

         10                 To what extent has the Department

         11  assessed the impacts from the odors from the storage

         12  of fully-loaded collection trucks in these garages?

         13                 And what, if anything, have you done

         14  about it? This is a new situation.

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Sure, it is.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And we not only

         17  are interested in not having any problems in the

         18  neighborhood, we are also concerned with the men who

         19  work in the garages, as well, the Sanitation

         20  workers.

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, certainly

         22  because of this change -- well, let me say this:

         23  Approximately, currently, approximately 50 daily

         24  loads are stored in garages in Manhattan until they

         25  can be relayed --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Will be.

          3                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Presently done?

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That is what is

          6  presently happening now, 50.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Why is it done

          8  now?

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Again, it is a

         10  question of transportation.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You say that 50

         12  daily loads are currently stored and have been for

         13  some time in the garages?

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That is

         15  correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: In other words,

         17  I always thought when they picked up their load they

         18  went right to the marine transfer station. In other

         19  words, they already go back to the garages?

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I will ask

         21  Mike.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, please,

         23  Mike.

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         25  The current practice is prior to export, because we
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          2  have three marine transfer stations in Manhattan, is

          3  that the trucks, once they complete their route,

          4  time allowing, they will dump the trucks on the day

          5  shift and then go back to the garage empty.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is what I

          7  thought happened.

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          9  And that is what happens --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: They finish

         11  their route, they go right to the marine transfer

         12  station.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         14  That is what happens. In Manhattan, Manhattan on a

         15  daily basis on average picks up about 340 loads. Of

         16  that 340 loads, the vast majority right now, about

         17  85 percent, are dumped on the day shift, and only

         18  about 50 loads, as the Commissioner said, come back

         19  to be dumped on the succeeding shift.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Why can't they

         21  all go and dump their loads at the marine transfer

         22  station?

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         24  Because time allowing, some of the routes are

         25  structured and there is so much material out to be
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          2  collected that there is not enough time from the

          3  time they complete their route, there is not enough

          4  time left on their shift to go to the marine

          5  transfer station, dump the load and then get back to

          6  the garage before their shift ends.

          7                 Every route has a different amount of

          8  tonnage on it.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: This has been

         10  going on for some time, I take it?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         12  Yes, but currently --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So you have got

         14  an experience -- what you are telling me is you have

         15  an experience with trucks, fully loaded trucks

         16  sitting in the garages for hours?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         18  Right now it is only about 50 loads.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Then you wait

         20  until the next shift and then go to the marine

         21  transfer station?

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That has been

         23  the practice for some time. Actually probably for

         24  decades.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is
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          2  something new to me, I didn't know that. It was new

          3  to me too, but it has been going on for decades I am

          4  told.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And so then what

          6  happens? Then once you have been able to assess the

          7  problems with respect to odors and other problems,

          8  to get back to my original question.

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes. The

         10  Department did not analyze the affects on odors from

         11  the additional relayed trucks.

         12                 There is no objective way, we are

         13  told by our consultant, there is no objective way of

         14  conducting an odor analysis at the DOS garage

         15  locations, because the relatively small number of

         16  trucks involved at each garage.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: As it presently

         18  exists. But we are anticipating --

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, no, it is

         20  still relatively small, in terms of air quality.

         21  Odor is a very difficult --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Is that in your

         23  environmental assessment statement with respect to

         24  that? Because I don't recall reading anything about

         25  that.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Whether you have

          4  evaluated that or not?

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, we are

          6  told that odors, per se, there is no objective way

          7  of evaluating --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Our trucks, the

          9  last time I looked are not sealed containers.

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, they are

         11  to a certain degree. When garbage is stored, as we

         12  say, in a truck, the clam shell, the tailgate is

         13  closed and that is as sealed as you can get

         14  actually. It is as sealed I would say --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: In other words,

         16  there are ways of closing the back of the truck?

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Oh, yes, sure.

         18                 The same hopperblade that pushes all

         19  of the garbage into the body is closed, as if it was

         20  completing its cycle, frozen at that end.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The reason I am

         22  asking about this is because I am very sensitive, we

         23  are very sensitive because before you were the

         24  Commissioner we had a problem -- by the way we have

         25  been joined by Council Member Leffler from Queens, a
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          2  member of this Committee, and Steve DiBrienza, not a

          3  member of this Committee but a concerned citizen, a

          4  Council Member from this Committee -- the reason I

          5  am asking you, I don't know if you recall that we

          6  had a situation where a Sanitation worker died as a

          7  result of some type of an acid.

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, I remember

          9  it quite well. It was in the neighborhood --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I don't know if

         11  we ever found out what the cause of that was. Has

         12  there ever been a determination?

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No one was ever

         14  apprehended, unfortunately.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank God we

         16  haven't had a recurrence of it.

         17                 To a great extent you don't know what

         18  is in those trucks, and who knows, you are going to

         19  be in an enclosed area, and there may be, for all I

         20  know there may be some gases created in that

         21  storage, and I think there has got to be extra care

         22  taken if you are going to have them there, not only

         23  from smells but from some deleterious substance that

         24  may get into the air in the enclosed garages.

         25                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Let us hope
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          2  that you don't become a consultant to the Sanitation

          3  Workers Union, Chairman.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am not, but I

          5  am concerned that we are doing something different,

          6  every time we do something different, there are

          7  always some unintended consequences that we have to

          8  be prepared for.

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, that is

         10  certainly a valid concern, and to be truthful, a new

         11  one to me and I will certainly look into that. I

         12  think that there is a safety consideration.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Robles, you

         14  had some questions?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chairman.

         17                 Commissioner, first, it is always

         18  nice seeing you, and so that the public doesn't get

         19  the impression that all of a sudden I tend to solo

         20  out to the Commissioner, my friend Kevin, because

         21  you were a precinct commander in my district so we

         22  go back many years.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: We do indeed,

         24  yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And if I seem
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          2  to be fairly close, it is because of that

          3  relationship.

          4                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I certainly

          5  appreciate that, Council Member.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: But however,

          7  let me just ask something, Commissioner, that you

          8  were not the Commissioner then, but I do see your

          9  First Deputy, and I see Martha, who has been around,

         10  and when this interim contract, we had a hearing,

         11  this Committee, and there were certain questions

         12  that were asked, particularly because in my district

         13  of North Brooklyn, we are one of those communities

         14  that are suffering tremendously from the industry,

         15  and one of the concerns was, would interim contracts

         16  be let out to companies that violated laws,

         17  regulations, you name it?

         18                 Since you were gracious enough to

         19  indicate to us in your opening remarks that at least

         20  of the two that you mentioned, one happened to be in

         21  my district, particularly Waste Management, let me

         22  ask you this question, sir: Before the awarding of

         23  these interim leases, we were told that anyone who

         24  had outstanding violations would not be considered.

         25  In the case of Waste Management, before the
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          2  awarding, has Waste Management any prior violations,

          3  whether it is federal, state or even your own

          4  agency?

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: There is

          6  certainly a process, Council Member, that deals with

          7  background checks. I would like to ask First Deputy

          8  Carpinello to address that question.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         10  Councilman, part of the review process that we go

         11  through prior to awarding a contract is to, for

         12  those companies that we intend to award a contract

         13  to, we send that information to the Department of

         14  Investigations and they do a thorough investigation

         15  of the principles of those companies and let us know

         16  whether or not we can move forward and enter into

         17  contracts after there investigation. So, we do get

         18  clearance from the Department of Investigation prior

         19  to --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: That is not my

         21  question, Commissioner.

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         23  I am sorry.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: That is not my

         25  question. I am not asking whether the Department of
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          2  Investigation -- the Department of Investigation is

          3  not the sole agency that decides to let out

          4  contracts because we also play a role and I think in

          5  these hearings, somewhere along the process we are

          6  the ones who vote, not them. So let me go back to my

          7  original question. And since you are on the mic,

          8  maybe I should address it to you.

          9                 Is it correct when I say that at a

         10  previous hearing that this Committee held, as we

         11  were discussing the Interim contracts, then

         12  Commissioner Doherty, which you were then First

         13  Deputy, and later on Acting Commissioner, I know I

         14  asked the question, because, remember, not so much

         15  Waste Management but there was another company on

         16  Morgan Avenue that clearly was all over the paper.

         17                 Now, I asked the question and the

         18  answer that I got from Commissioner Doherty was that

         19  any company in the investigation that had

         20  outstanding violations or are not conforming to

         21  laws, whether it is federal or state, the agency

         22  would not consider awarding these contracts to them.

         23                 Now, Waste Management was not the

         24  company at that time, although they were operating.

         25  The question is, before the awarding of this interim
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          2  contract, has waste management had a prior history

          3  of violating whether federal, state or local

          4  ordinances, i.e., environmental issues?

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          6  Just so that I can try to answer your question as

          7  accurately as possible, are you asking whether or

          8  not the Department of Sanitation will enter, or

          9  allow a transfer station who is applying for a

         10  permit to operate at the transfer station, whether

         11  or not we will approve that?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: No, sir.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         14  Okay.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I know what a

         16  permit is. I think the Commissioner's statement was

         17  on the Interim contracts; is that correct?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         19  That's correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay.

         21                 Do you remember the discussion where

         22  I asked if a company has outstanding violations,

         23  would they be considered? Do you remember

         24  Commissioner Doherty saying no, wee will not move

         25  forward with an interim contract? Do you recall
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          2  that?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          4  I remember the question being asked a little

          5  differently, Councilman.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Well, maybe

          7  you can help me, because I am getting old. Maybe you

          8  can tell me what the question was.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         10  I think the question you asked at the time was a

         11  company by the name of Eastern Environmental on 222

         12  Morgan Avenue, and whether or not the Department of

         13  Sanitation would issue a permit if it found that the

         14  principals of that company had problems as operators

         15  of transfer stations. And I believe Commissioner

         16  Doherty at the time answered the question that we

         17  would not issue a permit for a transfer station to

         18  operate if the principals of that company had

         19  questionable backgrounds. That is my recollection.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Now, my simple

         21  question is -- since we don't know, and unless you

         22  tell me that the Chair of this Committee got

         23  information, and I am sure if he did he would share

         24  with us. My question is: Does the current Interim

         25  contract with Waste Management, that is out, given,
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          2  in the history has waste management violated laws,

          3  whether they be federal, state or local ordinances,

          4  in the investigation, in the history, in the check,

          5  have there been any violations?

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          7  If there had been violations by Waste Management the

          8  investigation that is done by the Department of

          9  Investigation, makes a determination based on where

         10  those violations have occurred, whether it be Waste

         11  Management in another state, the Department of

         12  Investigation makes a decision, the judgment on the

         13  relevance of that violation and how it relates to

         14  the contract that we, the City of New York, is

         15  entering into.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: This will be

         17  the last time I will try again. I am trying to get

         18  you on record and I understand how it takes two to

         19  tango, maybe I have to start leading this dance.

         20                 Let me go again. Has the federal

         21  government, for violations by Waste Management,

         22  fined Waste Management in the past?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: If you know?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         25  I have no specific knowledge of any particular
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          2  violation that might have been charged to Waste

          3  Management.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay, thank

          5  you very much.

          6                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman. But Mr.

          7  Chairman, I am going to say one thing. I am going to

          8  secure, because the Borough President of Brooklyn

          9  and the Brooklyn Delegation join in a lawsuit and

         10  one of the things in the document showed that this,

         11  one of these two companies that on the Interim was

         12  cited and was fined by the federal government. But

         13  that is my problem, where if we really wanted to be

         14  partners, maybe we should get all of the information

         15  out and even whether I agree or disagree, at least

         16  be truthful with each other. And I think that is why

         17  I could never believe the Department of Sanitation

         18  when someone can sit there and say to me, when the

         19  whole world knows it, and clearly Brooklyn has not

         20  sat back with the lawsuit, to say that I am not

         21  aware of it, then I question these investigations.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, we are

         23  going to interrupt the proceedings at this point to

         24  take a vote. Mr. Sabini is here.

         25                 Roll call on 531-A. Before I do that
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          2  I would like to identify some new members who have

          3  arrived. We have with us, Council Member Boyland

          4  from Brooklyn, Council Member Fiala from Staten

          5  Island, members of the Committee, and Angel

          6  Rodriguez from Brooklyn who is here who has joined

          7  with us, and for obvious reasons very interested in

          8  the proceedings.

          9                 I will ask counsel, Alison Sacks, to

         10  take the roll call. We will be voting on Intro.

         11  531-A, having to do with the motor fuel storage

         12  system, the underground storage.

         13                 Please take the roll call.

         14                 MS. SACKS:  Council Member Michels.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I vote aye for

         16  reasons as stated before.

         17                 MS. SACKS: Council Member Leffler.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: I vote aye

         19  because I think that the storage regulations are

         20  antiquated and have to be updated and made

         21  applicable to the current storage tanks and to

         22  better protect our community. So I think this was a

         23  particularly complicated bill, it took time to work

         24  out particularly behind the scenes and I think it

         25  should be more protective and therefore is
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          2  desirable, so therefore I vote aye.

          3                 MS. SACKS: Council Member Robles.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Aye.

          5                 MS. SACKS: Council Member Sabini.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: May I be

          7  excused to explain my vote, please?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Certainly.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: I am going to

         10  vote aye, but I want to point out to the people that

         11  maybe aren't paying attention that this bill,

         12  despite its title, does very little to address the

         13  concerns that were raised at two hearings by this

         14  Committee that were requested by Council Member

         15  Spigner and myself, and that you as chair were good

         16  enough to conduct, about the dangers to the ground

         17  water and to the general environment that

         18  underground storage tank leaking is causing,

         19  particularly in areas of Queens, the expense that it

         20  has caused gas station owners to remediate to those

         21  with complied with the law, the defiance of the law

         22  by some station owners, the lack of enforcement, and

         23  the lack of remediation by the City who is the

         24  number one owner of leaky underground storage tanks.

         25  So, despite the title of the bill, it really doesn't
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          2  address the issue.

          3                 It helps the retailing industry with

          4  a couple of marketing items they have and that is

          5  good, and we want them to be up to speed with

          6  everyone else in the country, but I really think

          7  that the people should not be blinded by the title

          8  of the bill and think that this issue has been

          9  solved, it really hasn't even been addressed

         10  legislatively, and I hope the Committee goes forward

         11  in addressing it. I vote aye.

         12                 MS. SACKS: Council Member Provenzano.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Aye.

         14                 MS. SACKS: Council Member Boyland.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: May I be

         16  excused to explain my vote?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I am going to

         19  vote aye for Intro. No. 531-A, based on the reasons

         20  that the last hearing a lot of issues were discussed

         21  in terms of the economic issues and the

         22  environmental issues of the clean-up that incurs

         23  when something like this happens, when there is a

         24  spillage underneath the ground and you are trying to

         25  develop new housing or new projects on top of it. I
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          2  think they officially addressed it in terms of how

          3  the responsibility where, what exactly it extends

          4  to, in terms of gas stations and things of that

          5  nature. Because of that, because that was answered,

          6  I supported this bill.

          7                 Thank you. I vote aye.

          8                 MS. SACKS: Council Member Fiala.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Aye.

         10                 MS. SACKS: Council Member Marshall.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: May I be

         12  excused to explain my vote?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Very

         15  briefly. You had good hearings and discussions on

         16  this bill. We have certainly seen the impact out in

         17  our districts and I think this bill moves towards a

         18  remedy that will protect the citizens of our City. I

         19  vote aye.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: By a vote of

         21  eight in the affirmative, none in the negative, with

         22  no abstentions, the items are adopted. Please sign

         23  the reports.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Keep it open for

         25  Mr. Carrion when he arrives.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: And the vote is

          3  still open.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We will keep it

          5  open.

          6                 Thank you, my colleagues. I just

          7  wanted to say, in response to Mr. Sabini and others,

          8  that this is a very important issue to us, we did

          9  have hearings, we have learned from those hearings,

         10  and as a matter of fact this is just a limited first

         11  step in solving some of the problems, and he is

         12  absolutely correct that the City of New York itself

         13  has resolved some of these issues.

         14                 This is a dangerous situation, which

         15  we have to look at and we are given a lot of

         16  discretion of the Fire Department in regulating and

         17  in putting forth rules and regulations, but the fact

         18  is that this is a necessary first step and that we

         19  will be paying a great deal of attention to this

         20  issue, and seeing to it that certainly in doing

         21  oversight that the laws, the rules, regulations and

         22  the laws of this City pertaining to these very

         23  dangerous instrumentalities are adhered to.

         24                 Mr. DiBrienza has some questions.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Thank you,
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          2  Mr. Chairman.

          3                 Commissioner. Let me just make one

          4  comment before I ask these questions. You know, it

          5  seems to me and I have said this repeatedly, that

          6  the closing, the timely closing of Freshkills is

          7  non-negotiable, for virtually everyone in this City.

          8  Certainly as a Council Member representing this

          9  City, because while we have districts we really have

         10  a view towards the whole City. I agree with that.

         11  How we get there, however, is another question.

         12  Whether you are getting us there fairly, and whether

         13  the end result will be fair will subject us all to

         14  endless lawsuits is still an open question.

         15                 Now, I read your testimony, I got

         16  here after you had given it, and I find it somewhat

         17  shocking that the Department, and unless you

         18  expounded on this, assess the impacts of the interim

         19  export contracts on the environment of Manhattan and

         20  Staten Island and determine that the rerouting of

         21  its collection trucks to and from three Hudson River

         22  crossings and the Goethels Bridge, will have no

         23  significant adverse impact.

         24                 That seems to be the sum and total of

         25  your testimony on this issue. Two-hundred truck
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          2  trips a day on average through the Holland Tunnel, I

          3  don't know how many hundreds in Staten Island,

          4  through these residential neighborhoods, through

          5  these congested commercial neighborhoods, I don't

          6  understand why the Department has continued, after

          7  Brooklyn and the Bronx to lock us in to truck base

          8  disposal plans that increase the number of truck

          9  trips through these crossings, and obviously to get

         10  to and from it, through these neighborhoods. What is

         11  the substance behind this decision? I can't believe

         12  that you did any meaningful analysis if you simply

         13  say there is no adverse impact.

         14                 I mean, 200 truck trips a day and as

         15  far as I read, just for the Holland Tunnel alone.

         16                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, as you

         17  say, there are 200 truck trips, perhaps not 200. But

         18  the number really is, I think for the purpose of our

         19  conversation not really that important.

         20                 The trucks travel, whether they are

         21  on the streets, going to marine transfer stations,

         22  or whether on the streets going to the Holland

         23  Tunnel or the Lincoln Tunnel. Perhaps I am missing

         24  something but I don't see your point in terms of

         25  what has changed. We are using the same number of
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          2  trucks. They are staying in the same borough. The

          3  change is of course that they are going through

          4  tunnels and in some cases over bridges, but --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: And

          6  traveling further to an ultimate destination, as

          7  opposed to where they go now.

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Through no

          9  neighborhood, that I am aware of.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA:

         11  Commissioner, that is not even logical.

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I wasn't aware

         13  there was anyone living in the Holland Tunnel.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: In the

         15  tunnel, no. But did you ever try to travel in that

         16  general vicinity? Did you ever try to go up Sixth

         17  Avenue? Did you ever try to get near Canal Street?

         18  Did you ever try to get to Varrick Street? Did you

         19  ever try to get to the SoHo and Tribecca and all of

         20  the surrounding areas?

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Try it any

         23  day of the week. It is not so easy to do. Add that

         24  amount of truck-based traffic and I think it has to

         25  have some impact.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            49

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 And Staten Island, I mean they are

          3  going to go to the length of Staten Island over the

          4  Goethels. I have traveled through Staten Island, I

          5  have traveled through Staten Island a lot, not

          6  exactly the easiest trip in the world.

          7                 So, I mean talk to those folks who

          8  live along the Expressway or off to the side, I mean

          9  this locks us into a system.

         10                 In other words, they are already at

         11  their end -- do you know the difference besides the

         12  volume? They are at their end base destination,

         13  their dumping destination. It takes the truck the

         14  entire way, as opposed to going through a marine

         15  transfer station, where the garbage is then

         16  transported.

         17                 So, I don't understand why the

         18  Department continues to lock in more truck-based and

         19  increased truck-based disposal system. I just don't

         20  understand it, that is not healthy, in the general

         21  sense of the word. Those areas, the surrounding

         22  areas, the communities, the businesses, the rest of

         23  our citizens who have to travel through the City

         24  with the truck congestion being dramatic already.

         25                 What is the basis for this statement?
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          2  Let me try it that way and then I have two other

          3  questions and I am done.

          4                 What is the basis, no adverse impact?

          5  Did you spend a day, a week, a month? Did you spend

          6  money on the study? Do you have a study that goes

          7  with this statement?

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Let me say

          9  this. Sofar as your question relating to the actual

         10  study, I will, with your permission, defer that to

         11  Deputy Commissioner Lawitts.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Yes.

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: But before I do

         14  that, before I do that, in terms of collecting

         15  garbage -- well, aside from the fact that this is

         16  something, as you say, we have to close Freshkills,

         17  and on a more immediate basis the garbage has to be

         18  picked up every day. I am responsible that that

         19  happen. I cannot allow a health hazard to develop.

         20  So we do our day-to-day decisions in the most

         21  efficient manner and we do our monthly decisions and

         22  we are trying to solve this problem.

         23                 Specifically relating to Manhattan

         24  and Staten Island, there has been no increase in the

         25  number of garbage trucks. This plan uses the
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          2  resources that are there. We have redirected them,

          3  that's true --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Right.

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Instead of

          6  going to marine transfer stations in Manhattan, they

          7  will be going to one of the Hudson River crossings

          8  in Manhattan.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Right.

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Now, having

         11  said that, if our concern is actually the volume

         12  going across those Hudson River crossings, our

         13  analysis to date has indicated that in terms of

         14  traffic alone, now, remember I am talking about

         15  bridges and tunnels, not through residences, the

         16  actual statistics would indicate, comparing them to

         17  Port Authority statistics for 1998, that we would

         18  have increased the traffic on those crossings by

         19  two-tenths of one percent. And I think that speaks

         20  to the term significant impact.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Well, the

         22  fact that there is a lot of commercial traffic on

         23  tunnels and bridges isn't shocking. I am not

         24  interested in statistic which can be massaged to

         25  sound like --
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: It is not a

          3  question of massaging it, Council member, it is

          4  two-tenths of one percent.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Two-tenths

          6  of one percent of an enormous amount of traffic. It

          7  is still 200 additional trips a day, all converging,

          8  for example, in Manhattan at the same location,

          9  Canal Street, as opposed to being spread in several

         10  locations.

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: One in 500

         12  vehicles.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: What's the

         14  point? It is still 200 additional trips.

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: It is four

         16  vehicles per hour.

         17                 I don't know how many other ways I

         18  can say this. I think it speaks to the term

         19  significant in fact, four vehicles per hour.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Well,

         21  obviously I know you believe in this system, because

         22  you have created it, and it is an incredibly

         23  truck-based system that adds to the burden, in my

         24  opinion. We obviously don't agree on it. You don't

         25  think it is significant. I understand that. You said
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          2  it in your testimony. Talk to the folks who live

          3  around there, talk to the folks who try to travel

          4  through there, talk to the folks in Staten Island

          5  who are going to see those, that caravan of trucks

          6  head into the Goethels Bridge.

          7                 I don't understand that a truck-based

          8  system, and locking in an interim truck-based system

          9  helps. I understand that is the Department's

         10  decision is, I don't agree with it.

         11                 Now, let me ask you about the time

         12  line on this so-called interim. If in fact, you

         13  cannot report, now maybe you can and then that would

         14  change the premise, significant progress on a

         15  permanent long-term marine transfer-based system,

         16  and I am not sure the Department yet is committed to

         17  that. Then is it not correct to say that these

         18  interim plans, the two new ones for Manhattan and

         19  Staten Island, as well as the existing ones for the

         20  Bronx and Brooklyn, are virtually going to be

         21  permanent?

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: And why

         24  would it not be correct to fear that?

         25                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The contracts
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          2  are of course self-limiting. I mean they are a

          3  contract for three years with an option of one year

          4  extension, that is in the hands of the City

          5  Administration, which as I am sure you are aware

          6  changes from time to time.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: And what is

          8  the detail that you can provide to show the

          9  Department commitment to the long term, to a

         10  long-term marine transfer base system? I mean, how

         11  much closer are we?

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well,

         13  unfortunately, I am not in a position where I can

         14  share with you any of the details. I can only say to

         15  you that, as you say, I honestly believe in what I

         16  have said before, I honestly believe the Department

         17  is committed to a marine transfer-based plan. I

         18  think it makes sense. I am sure the two of us could

         19  stand here and each endorse that plan in its

         20  entirety.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Right.

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: So, other than

         23  telling you that I support it and to the extent that

         24  I speak for the Department, the Department supports

         25  it.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Right.

          3  Commissioner, I will tell you what would be a lot

          4  better.

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Okay.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: What would

          7  be a lot better would be a level of detail that

          8  shows, you know, the potential long-term plan, the

          9  use of the marine transfer stations, the commitment

         10  to retrofitting, if that is going to be a part of

         11  it, which many people think it should be. In other

         12  words, your good will, and I believe you when you

         13  say it, just as I know you believe me when I say

         14  that I am for a marine transfer station base plan,

         15  neither one of our goodwill is enough at this point.

         16                 So, you are the Department of

         17  Sanitation, there should be at this point in time,

         18  as you continue to lock in interim plans, some clear

         19  set of either documents or evidence or commitment

         20  that show the long-term plan advancing so that the

         21  fear that these interim plans are going to be

         22  permanent, can be put aside.

         23                 I want to be wrong on that. I am

         24  worried this is going to happen for the next four,

         25  five or six years, or whatever, and I think better
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          2  than you saying you are committed to it, would be

          3  advancing the cause.

          4                 I mean, this is the Committee that

          5  handles it. There should be here is the detail, here

          6  is the time line, here are some of the plans, here

          7  is some of the RFPs, I mean there are a million

          8  components to making a long-term plan real, other

          9  than you and I both wanting it. So, I think you

         10  should do better in that area.

         11                 And, finally, why should I not fear

         12  that in fact the long-term plan is essentially the

         13  destruction of Red Hook and the surrounding Brooklyn

         14  neighborhoods, by creating the full Erie Basin site

         15  to handle the entire, cumulative as it -- how many

         16  tons a day on average in the City?

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: For the City?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Yes.

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: It could be as

         20  high as 13,000 tons per day.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Right.

         22                 And that capacity could be as high as

         23  12 I think thousand. Why should one not fear that

         24  your ultimate plan is to simply create the Erie

         25  Basin site as the one and only massive new site?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, I can

          3  only tell you that is not my plan to do that, and

          4  that I am not aware of anyone else's plan to do

          5  that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Is Erie

          7  Basin off the table?

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, no, not at

          9  all.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Is it still

         11  going to have a capacity of 13,000?

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Didn't you just

         13  tell me there was no evidence of a long-term plan --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Right.

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: And now you are

         16  talking about some.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Right, well

         18  that is still, you say it is on the table. You know,

         19  you didn't provide any evidence of a long-term plan

         20  but Erie Basin is still on the table.

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, I thought

         22  we were all aware from the Administration's point of

         23  view, the viability of the Erie Basin plan.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Right.

         25                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I took that for
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          2  granted.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: I know it

          4  is viable, and that is frightening, since it has the

          5  capacity to handle the entire load, and you have no

          6  evidence of a borough-based marine transfer plan.

          7  That is the point.

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, I can't

          9  prove to you something that is not true. I mean, I

         10  can say to you that Erie Basin is not intended to

         11  handle the 13,000 tons.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Okay,

         13  that's helpful.

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: And actually,

         15  in support of that statement I am forced to say, and

         16  I don't say this facetiously, that that is why we

         17  have watchdogs like yourself to prevent this.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: That is

         19  helpful.

         20                 I do want to know, though, why then

         21  is the capacity still, the potential capacity still

         22  there? Why wouldn't the City say Erie Basin is on

         23  the table, it may play a role in the plan for 4,000

         24  tons or 6,000 tons, why that ability, even if it is

         25  not in your plan, to have it that large?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, we are of

          3  course now talking about something other than the

          4  Manhattan and Staten Island --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's true, but

          6  could you please answer that question and then we

          7  are going to go on? I gave you plenty of leeway --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Yes, sir.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I think you are

         10  entitled to that answer.

         11                 Why the excess capacity?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         13  While the proposal for the Erie Basin site might

         14  have been for 12,000 tons a day, it is up to the

         15  Department to decide ultimately what the size of

         16  that facility and the capacity and the throughput

         17  will be on a daily basis. So, that decision is yet

         18  to be made and I don't think it is fair to assume

         19  that it would be 12,000 tons a day. It is a proposal

         20  but it is the City's final decision on what it will

         21  be.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Mr.

         23  Chairman, I appreciate it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The concern of

         25  the Council member is, number one, a commitment has
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          2  been made, and the commitment was made by the

          3  agency, that you will only be utilizing waste from

          4  the individual, in each individual county, which

          5  will be taking care of its own waste. And the fear

          6  has been out there for some time, that if we

          7  increase the capacity and make it economical for the

          8  individuals who are using it, that we would be

          9  importing garbage from other places. It is bad

         10  enough that we must take care of our own waste we

         11  don't want to be taking waste of other places, such

         12  as Nassau and Suffolk.

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Absolutely not.

         14  Absolutely not.

         15                 Now, I understand that concern.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Right.

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I do understand

         18  that concern, and as Commissioner Carpinello --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: They say field

         20  of dreams, build it and they shall come. We don't

         21  want to build it and have them come.

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, no we don't

         23  want to build something.

         24                 The specifications --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: There is a drive
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          2  to fill that capacity.

          3                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: In no manner,

          4  shape or form, am I personally, professionally,

          5  officially or in any way supportive of a plan to

          6  process 13,000 tons through Erie Basin. Under no

          7  circumstances.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Commissioner, in

          9  all due respect to you, and I believe you and I

         10  think your intention is good, you are not going to

         11  be here forever, none of us are going to be here

         12  forever.

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And the fact of

         15  the matter is we are only here temporarily, all of

         16  us, and these facilities are not here temporarily,

         17  the facilities can exist for a long time. If you

         18  make facilities so they can have an increased

         19  capacity, it can be utilized in the future, even

         20  though you and I may agree that it should be

         21  fulfilled. That is philosophically.

         22                 But I really want to get back to the

         23  Interim Plan.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: And I do also,

         25  the interim contracts. However, this Administration,
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          2  the Mayor has a policy of each borough handling its

          3  own waste. As long as we stick to that policy,

          4  obviously there is not enough garbage --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: As long as we

          6  stick to it and subsequent mayors.

          7                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: And subsequent

          8  mayors, yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What I want to

         10  know, and there are some other questions, I wanted

         11  to ask you questions, and Council Member Freed is

         12  here from Manhattan and she will be asking

         13  questions, what I would like to get as a commitment

         14  from you, I would like to, with respect to the

         15  questions that Mr. Robles was asking, I think we are

         16  entitled to know from him of the violations, whether

         17  they are outstanding or not, of the various

         18  corporations which you are going to be dealing with,

         19  whether they are simply violations on their physical

         20  plans or physical operation or anything else that

         21  occurred, we want to make sure that we have a good

         22  operation with honorable people. We are not casting

         23  any negative statements on anyone, but that should

         24  be known.

         25                 Also, we must understand from the
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          2  outset, Mr. DiBrienza is absolutely correct, it is

          3  important that the long-range plan go into existence

          4  and come into fruition as soon as possible, because

          5  that is the only guarantee we have that the Interim

          6  plan will in fact be an Interim plan. Because this

          7  Interim plan admittedly from everybody's standpoint,

          8  including the Department of Sanitation, is going to

          9  inconvenience a lot of people, it is going to cause

         10  a lot of difficulty, it is going to cause not only a

         11  lot of difficulty, it is going to cause not only a

         12  lot of difficulty in this state but in New Jersey as

         13  well, and it could cause problems that we don't even

         14  know about. So it behooves all of us to limit the

         15  Interim plan, and the best way I know to limit the

         16  Interim plan is to make sure, which by the way is a

         17  three-year contract, plus one year --

         18                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Optional.

         19  Optional.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right.

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Three years,

         22  one year extension.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And there is no

         24  guarantee that that is a limit to that either, if we

         25  don't get a long-range plan and put that into
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          2  existence. But it is extremely important that we

          3  find a good long-range plan which avoids the use of

          4  trucks as soon as possible. And you did issue an

          5  RFEI, you have responses to the RFEI, we are working

          6  on hiring a consultant in the Council to see what we

          7  can do to help. We would like, first of all we would

          8  like a commitment from you that you would give us

          9  copies of all of the RFEIs.

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Absolutely.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The responses.

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Absolutely.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So we can see

         14  them. Because I think there is a joint effort to

         15  work with the Department and have this done as

         16  painlessly and as expeditiously as possible. So, it

         17  behooves us all to work together. And even though I

         18  am on the phone with you and with Commissioner

         19  Carpinello, and Commissioner Hirst, in order to be

         20  able to give you are cooperation.

         21                 So, this is not an antagonistic

         22  operation, we just want to make sure it is handled

         23  properly.

         24                 Now, in your negative declaration,

         25  let's let Ms. Freed ask her questions first.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Go ahead.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You're okay? Go

          4  ahead?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

          7                 In your negative declaration, on the

          8  exported waste from Manhattan, you talk about two

          9  operational strategies: Operational Strategy 1 and

         10  Operational Strategy 2. Is that the same thing that

         11  you made reference to before?

         12                 Maybe explain to us what these two

         13  operational strategies are.

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: All right.

         15  Actually, they are strategies in pursuit of a goal

         16  or a philosophy.

         17                 Operational Strategy 1 is that the

         18  Manhattan export operation will reflect as closely

         19  as possible the current operation, the current

         20  collection operation, in terms of schedules and

         21  patterns for collection and unloading.

         22                 In other words, no change to the

         23  extent we are able to do that, no change in terms of

         24  the residents, no nighttime collections, if there

         25  were none before and that kind of thing.
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          2                 In other words, we want to continue

          3  the normal --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The only change

          5  being you don't go to the --

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's correct,

          7  no change in the collection end.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And that is

          9  strategy 1 or 2?

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That is 1.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's one.

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's one.

         13                 Operational Strategy 2 is that the

         14  non, most non-priority loads would be driven to the

         15  garages, you know, from the garages to the New

         16  Jersey Waste Facility on a subsequent shift,

         17  following the collection shift. That is the storage

         18  part of it. And as I mentioned earlier, a

         19  non-priority load is either the second load of a

         20  truck --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is what you

         22  were referring to before?

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, that is

         24  correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And they are not
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          2  mutually exclusive?

          3                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: They are not

          4  mutually exclusive, no. But we try to serve two

          5  masters.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

          7                 In your negative declaration, we

          8  discussed the Operational Strategy 1 and 2, you

          9  presented a combined worst case distribution of

         10  truck trips, and they said that to be 650 trips to

         11  New Jersey facilities during a 24-hour day. That was

         12  what was discussed before.

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Again, as you

         14  say, absolute worst case. If everything that could

         15  possibly go wrong went wrong.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And then it also

         17  states more realistic estimates of truck trips based

         18  on existing practices would make as few as 393 truck

         19  trips to New Jersey.

         20                 Although you state truck trips are

         21  made approximately, as you said, 300 or 400, the

         22  number of trips would not be set at 650 for

         23  analysis, if the higher number or something close to

         24  it were not reasonably plausible.

         25                 Therefore, I ask you this question:
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          2  The Committee believes that the Department has an

          3  obligation to provide the residents of Manhattan

          4  with an estimate, plus or minus ten percent, within

          5  95 percent of confidence, of the number of truck

          6  trips that were made to New Jersey.

          7                 Does the Department have a 95 percent

          8  confidence that 393 or 400 is the number of truck

          9  trips, plus or minus ten percent?

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The Department

         11  is confident that under the normal operational

         12  circumstances, the more realistic estimate of 393

         13  truck trips per day is achievable. There are

         14  exceptions to normal circumstances and I don't mean

         15  just when it rains, but an exception to the normal

         16  circumstances, such as days following a snowstorm,

         17  when we have to play catch-up and we have to do --

         18  you know, remove all of the snow, the garbage is

         19  piled up, we have of necessity to operate the larger

         20  number of trucks.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But the trucks

         22  are used as snowplows.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's right,

         24  yes. And the man, of course, can't be in two places

         25  at the same time.
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          2                 But, yes --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: If it is a bad

          4  enough snow storm you want to be able to locate the

          5  garbage.

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I have to

          7  admit, since I took this position, I have looked at

          8  the idea of snow in an entirely new light.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, we have

         10  been very lucky the last several years.

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But you never

         13  know.

         14                 With regard to potential traffic

         15  noise and air impacts, how could it be determined

         16  that there would be no insignificant impact in these

         17  areas, the number of trips and times of trips cannot

         18  be precisely estimated? And then that is what you

         19  are saying. I really believe, and I have said it

         20  before, and on record so it was no surprise to

         21  anybody, that there should have been an EIS down in

         22  the Interim plan, the Interim contract, and you

         23  presented us with a negative declaration saying it

         24  is unnecessary, but I ask you again, how can you,

         25  and it may be a rhetorical question, how can you say
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          2  that there would not be any potential traffic noise

          3  or air impacts and no significant impacts in those

          4  areas if the number of trips and times of trips

          5  cannot be precisely estimated?

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, let me

          7  say, the Department analyzed each strategy

          8  separately and determined that neither strategy

          9  separately caused any significant traffic, air or

         10  noise impacts.

         11                 Since that represents the likely

         12  range, the range of operational outcomes, it is

         13  reasonable to include that no matter which of the

         14  two strategies is employed, or whether a combination

         15  or hybrid is employed, there will be no significant

         16  impacts.

         17                 Now, because we are in a very

         18  technical area, I would again ask your permission

         19  that I hand it over to Deputy Commissioner Lawitts,

         20  who is my technical expert in this area.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And has been for

         22  some time.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Has been for

         24  some time indeed.

         25                 We always listen with baited breath.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Thank

          3  you, Mr. Chairman.

          4                 As the Commissioner said --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What does the

          6  button you are wearing say?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: I

          8  donated blood at 8:30 this morning, I gave a pint of

          9  blood.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So we will be

         11  nice to you.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: In about

         13  ten minutes I may wish I was back on the gurney.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: I have no

         15  questions for this witness, Mr. Chairman.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I might make a

         17  bad joke and say please don't ask for our blood

         18  under this issue.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: As the

         20  Commissioner said, we analyze each of the two

         21  operational strategies separately because those

         22  represented the range of the possible operation, and

         23  either one of those separately were shown to have no

         24  significant impacts on traffic, air or noise. And

         25  the point of the environmental assessment is to
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          2  analyze, because we can't know with certainty how

          3  the day-to-day operation is going to be, that you do

          4  look at a range of possible outcomes and within that

          5  range there are no significant impacts.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Even under the

          7  worst case scenario?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Even

          9  under the worst case scenario.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Six-hundred and

         11  fifty trips, you admit that could be the worst --

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Right.

         13  When we looked at each separately there were no

         14  impacts, so we decided to be even more conservative

         15  and we combined the two scenarios into the worst

         16  case combined operational strategy which says if you

         17  get the volumes from Operational Strategy 1 and 2

         18  combined, and their travel times combined, it still

         19  produces no significant traffic, air or noise

         20  impact, and even then we went and we became ultra

         21  conservative and we subjected that worst case

         22  operational strategy to another level of traffic, by

         23  assuming, as the Commissioner said, that there will

         24  be some days, such as days following a snow storm,

         25  where we may be operating even more trucks than in
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          2  the combined operational strategy, and even under

          3  that fourth case there were no significant impacts.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Let me just

          5  present this. Admittedly, this is empirical from my

          6  own experience.

          7                 Most of the trucks, I mean 70

          8  percent, if I am not mistaken, will be going after

          9  seven o'clock.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: That's

         11  right.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And that

         13  includes the George Washington Bridge, which I

         14  happen to live right near, pass every single night

         15  in my vehicle. And you believe that 7:00 is a good

         16  period of time because traffic is lessened by that

         17  time?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: It is

         19  better. It is the best period of time for us to be

         20  starting over the George Washington Bridge.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Let me just tell

         22  you that I often, most of the time I go by eight

         23  o'clock, I leave here and I go uptown and I get home

         24  eight o'clock, and I most of the time have to get

         25  off the highway and go on the streets because the
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          2  traffic is so heavy, and it takes me an immense

          3  amount of time.

          4                 I think that you may be

          5  underestimating the traffic across the George

          6  Washington Bridge after seven or even eight o'clock.

          7  It is immense traffic.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: In order

          9  to come up with the analysis and the environmental

         10  assessment, we drove each of these routes, we drove

         11  them all across the 24-hour period. We took actual

         12  measurements and in each case we took the longest

         13  travel time of any of those that we measured. And

         14  then in each of these Operational Strategies, we

         15  took that longest travel time and we increased it by

         16  ten percent, again, just to be conservative. And the

         17  number of trucks we will be sending over the George

         18  Washington Bridge, starting at seven p.m. will be

         19  six trucks per hour, one every ten minutes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You did do that

         21  in June of this year; is that correct?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: We

         23  started collecting data on travel times almost a

         24  year ago. We have done it throughout the year.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: My understanding
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          2  is that your environmental assessment statement says

          3  you did it in June.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: We did

          5  the most recent estimates in June, but we started

          6  collecting data as long as a year ago.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, okay. I

          8  hope you are right, but my nose tells me you are

          9  wrong. And what time are most of these trucks going

         10  to be going over? I would hope way after eight

         11  o'clock.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: They

         13  will be starting at seven p.m. and they will be

         14  going fairly evenly distributed throughout the

         15  evening and the night.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And how much

         17  time did you say it takes to go from George

         18  Washington Bridge, on this side of the George

         19  Washington Bridge, to the Essex County resource

         20  recovery plant? What is the amount of time you

         21  estimate?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS:

         23  Approximately a half hour each way.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Half an hour.

         25  And the route that is taken is across the George
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          2  Washington Bridge to the New Jersey Turnpike?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And down the New

          5  Jersey Turnpike, how many miles is that?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: To Exit

          7  15E.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Which is near

          9  Newark Airport?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: No, it's

         11  --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is near

         13  Newark Airport, right?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: No, it

         15  is north of Newark Airport.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: North of Newark

         17  Airport.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And you can do

         20  that in half an hour?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Each

         22  way.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I know each way.

         24  I use Newark Airport, I go down by 15. And you can

         25  do that during traffic?
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          2                 Okay, I have a lot of problems.

          3                 I would like to recognize that

          4  Council Member Oddo from Staten Island is also here.

          5  And our next questioner is Council Member Freed from

          6  Manhattan.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you.

          8                 Of course I am still sort of in shock

          9  at the idea that you can get across the George

         10  Washington Bridge in a half an hour. Is that with a

         11  truck, or is that with a helicopter?

         12                 Yes, I don't know, I mean I hardly

         13  know where to start with this. Obviously the

         14  community I represent, which is lower Manhattan,

         15  already has air pollution rates that read off the

         16  charts. Canal Street is a parking lot, it is

         17  arguably the worst street in the City, and this

         18  Administration I know has been targeting that to try

         19  and clean it up, i.e., get the traffic to move

         20  pretty much for about over four years. The truth is

         21  it is still a parking lot. And this is at a time

         22  when the traffic in the City overall is getting

         23  worse and worse. Anyone who tries to drive around in

         24  the City or who uses a cab knows that we are

         25  approaching complete gridlock throughout the City.
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          2                 But let me just ask you, just looking

          3  at Canal Street for a second. If Canal Street

          4  monitors consistently show, even before the

          5  commercial truck traffic was on Canal Street, that

          6  we constantly read in the red that we violate every

          7  federal standard, that if you look at PM 10s, if you

          8  look at PM 2.5, we are literally choking to death.

          9  How do we add any trucks? And that includes not only

         10  the commercial trucks that we now see go by

         11  constantly. And I will tell you standing at a fixed

         12  point just the other night when we had a rally, at

         13  least four or five garbage trucks went passed while

         14  we were there and that was in a relatively short

         15  time. This is without the impact of the Interim plan

         16  that is going on. How do we add any trucks to that?

         17                 And let me just add that if you saw,

         18  I believe it was the Daily News that just came out,

         19  with the ten most polluted cities in the United

         20  States, Baltimore was first, Manhattan was second,

         21  and Bronx, Queens and Brooklyn were all in the top

         22  ten, and Staten Island was somewhere around 25th,

         23  close to 25th, right? So, we already have a huge

         24  problem. Doesn't it seem to you that it is

         25  incredibly irresponsible to have any kind of plan
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          2  based on diesel trucks?

          3                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well,

          4  Councilwoman, I agree with you in terms of the

          5  seriousness of the -- what would you call it?

          6  Gridlock, or almost gridlock problem.

          7                 And not to disagree, I thought that

          8  in recent days the traffic, my personal experience

          9  on Canal Street had abated somewhat.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: At 3:00 a.m. in

         11  the morning.

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, I can't say

         13  I was there at 3:00 a.m. in the morning, not

         14  publicly anyway.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: That is

         16  overlooking the fact we have had something like ten

         17  fatalities or 18 fatalities in the last four years.

         18                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: There is no

         19  doubt that when you look at a specific area, such as

         20  Canal Street, Canal Street is a good example, and

         21  you say things can be improved, I agree. At what

         22  cost and to what inconvenience I am not certain.

         23                 The fact is, and I said earlier, we

         24  have a situation of some immediacy here. When I say

         25  that, of course people think I am talking about the
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          2  closure of Freshkills, and that is true, but the

          3  immediacy that I was speaking about was the

          4  collection of garbage and the disposal of it on a

          5  day-to-day basis. That is what I am responsible for,

          6  and as you well know, the health implications of any

          7  build-up in garbage is considerable and something

          8  that I think we are all concerned about.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: The same stands

         10  true of course for soot.

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, I know.

         12  But I must get rid of the garbage on a day-to-day

         13  basis.

         14                 Also, in this plan there is no

         15  increase in the number of trucks. The trucks are on

         16  the street in Manhattan.

         17                 Now, in terms of, well, will there be

         18  a few more trucks on Canal Street? The answer to

         19  that is yes, on at least one portion of Canal Street

         20  leading to the Holland Tunnel.

         21                 The number of trucks? Well, I am not

         22  sure.  I believe it was approximately, in the

         23  daytime hours, five trucks per hour. And that kind

         24  of fits in with your observation, as you had a rally

         25  and you said several trucks went by in a relatively
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          2  short period of time.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Except we

          4  weren't on Canal Street. On Broome Street, where

          5  they are not supposed to be on in the first place.

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, that is a

          7  separate issue. I would be happy to look into that

          8  for you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: I won't even

         10  track the fact that you probably had no less than

         11  two dozen, if not three dozen, you meaning both DOT

         12  and Sanitation, have letters from me going back for

         13  several years asking someone to do something about

         14  it.

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I am well aware

         16  -- I am aware of your advocacy on behalf of your

         17  constituency, there is no question about that.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: It is not just

         19  my constituency, this is a problem throughout the

         20  City, and quite frankly, the fact that you are

         21  putting in these truck routes, the fact that some of

         22  the communities that have already been overburdened,

         23  like Red Hook, is still going to get overburdened,

         24  is still going to have problems, and it is all the

         25  communities that have already been hit and already
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          2  are adversely impacted by this that are getting even

          3  more adversely impacted.

          4                 And quite frankly, why would trucks

          5  go over the George Washington Bridge, when as nearly

          6  as I can predict, looking at Jersey, my guess is the

          7  minority then will go through the Holland Tunnel

          8  because it simply --

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, we have

         10  very carefully laid out what we think are the most

         11  efficient routes, and they are as we have presented

         12  them.

         13                 There will be no further increase,

         14  other than what we have said. You know, we use all

         15  of the Hudson River crossings, and the truck routes

         16  are there, all we are doing is using them. And we

         17  are using them to the extent, as I have explained,

         18  that -- I will have to put my glasses back on.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: And those are

         20  the truck routes going over, what about the truck

         21  routes coming back?

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The Holland

         23  Tunnel, by the way, has the lowest number of loads

         24  going through it. The Lincoln Tunnel has close to

         25  three times that amount.
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          2                 But we do things as a balance. There

          3  is a question of efficiency, we must get rid of the

          4  garbage, as you well know. We can't let it build up.

          5  The truck routes are there, I am using them. And we

          6  are using them to the extent in the case of the

          7  Holland Tunnel. We will put five additional trucks

          8  through the Holland Tunnel per hour at night, and

          9  four per hour during the day.

         10                 I will admit to you that that is an

         11  increase, but it is a non-significant increase.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: However, if you

         13  are already living near the Holland Tunnel, and

         14  allow me to point out, it is totally residential, we

         15  already have incredibly high asthma rates, everyone

         16  in that area has respiratory problems. I can tell

         17  you since I have been living there I now get a nose

         18  bleed every summer, even my cat has asthma. Everyone

         19  is suffering from it. We need a reduction. The last

         20  think we need is anything that increases it.

         21                 Also, quite frankly, listening to the

         22  SWAB and listening to a number of the environmental

         23  groups, I have to tell you that very few accept your

         24  estimate of some 300 trucks. I have seen as high as

         25  a thousand trucks a day going across into Jersey.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, I can

          3  only say that is the estimate that we present, the

          4  estimate we have predicted. Only time will tell if

          5  we are correct, and time will tell that very

          6  quickly.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: And then what

          8  do we do?

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: As a matter of

         10  fact, I expect to be right, so we will continue.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay, but if

         12  you are not, what do we do? Because remember, it is

         13  our lungs that are being assaulted, and I am just

         14  not talking about Lower Manhattan. I am really

         15  talking about everyone in the City who is on any of

         16  these truck routes. And understand, I was a

         17  co-sponsor of the bill to close the Freshkills

         18  Landfill because it is totally unfair for New Jersey

         19  to bear the brunt, and to have that there for so

         20  many years for Staten Island. But the point is, we

         21  have to come up with a plan, and quite frankly,

         22  Interim plans, as Staten Island will tell you, the

         23  original plan for garbage in Staten Island was an

         24  interim plan and 50 years later they were still

         25  faced with it.
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          2                 And interim plans have a nasty habit

          3  of becoming permanent.

          4                 So what is our redress? At a time

          5  when we should be doing, when this Administration,

          6  in fact when the City is doing nothing overall to

          7  reduce the impact of traffic where we need an

          8  aggregate traffic study that will cut down on

          9  traffic throughout the City, that will take it off,

         10  that will take the trucks off the narrow residential

         11  streets that they are not supposed to be on, because

         12  we have got trucks, diesel trucks, going through

         13  narrow residential streets, we have buses going

         14  through them.

         15                 I mean, we need an aggregate plan. We

         16  need an aggregate plan that cuts down on buses that

         17  are diesel. We need a plan that will cut down on the

         18  amount of trucks that go through diesel trucks,

         19  where we get non-diesel trucks. We have to seriously

         20  look at rail freight, particularly in Manhattan

         21  because we basically have none, but for all of the

         22  other boroughs that will hook up to some of the

         23  marine transfer stations so that communities don't

         24  have to bear this burden.

         25                 But the question in my mind is how
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          2  quickly will we move because we may be stuck with an

          3  interim plan for 50 years.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I think, Council

          5  member, that is the point that we have made, and we

          6  agree with you. And I think that she is absolutely

          7  correct. We are now posing on our neighborhoods this

          8  additional traffic, and I have never gone anywhere

          9  near the Holland Tunnel, we have different routes

         10  but they all lead to the Holland Tunnel or to the

         11  Lincoln Tunnel or to the George Washington Bridge, I

         12  have never gone to the Holland Tunnel, as late as

         13  yesterday, where traffic is almost at a standstill.

         14  And I guess the question is with you, how are we

         15  going to coordinate your efforts, and I would ask

         16  the Council member to listen to this, how are we

         17  going to coordinate your efforts with the Department

         18  of Transportation and the Police Department? Because

         19  we are now putting more traffic on, and not only is

         20  it important because we are putting additional

         21  trucks on, but we are going to try to move these

         22  trucks, get them in and out because they have to get

         23  in and back as quickly as possible to meet your

         24  needs.

         25                 Are we going to get more police, more
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          2  Department of Transportation attention? You know,

          3  very often the lights are out of sync. I have seen

          4  that sometimes where you have got to be really on

          5  it, and your trucks, or whoever is going to be there

          6  should be able to report back to the

          7  Department, come on over here your lights are out,

          8  or when one turns red the other one turns green, the

          9  other one turns green, turns red, and you can't get

         10  your trucks moving.

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I see you come

         12  to work the same way I do.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes. And are we

         14  going to get some traffic enforcement on the streets

         15  in these routes near these places to move that

         16  traffic out? Because very often you get these

         17  blockages of traffic, so we are going to need some

         18  extra help from the agency, and I would venture a

         19  guess that in the future we may have to call the

         20  Department of Transportation and the Police

         21  Department to come in here and report to us how they

         22  are helping to expedite the traffic, the Sanitation

         23  trucks, in and out of the City to go where they are

         24  supposed to be going. And I would hope you would

         25  join with me in helping on that.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I would join

          3  with you in any effort of that nature. I also want

          4  to stress this point, that it is our regulations and

          5  it is my philosophy and the Department's posture

          6  that our trucks will not go where they are not

          7  permitted to go.

          8                 In other words, the truck routes are

          9  there, I use them.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is not what

         11  I am talking about. What I am talking about is in

         12  the truck traffic where you can, you were a former

         13  police officer, you were higher up in the Police

         14  Department, you understand what the capabilities of

         15  the police are, and now --

         16                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: You are

         17  certainly drawing me into --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Here is a good

         19  marriage between you, from the Department, in

         20  understanding what has to be done and the ability of

         21  the police. We have to make sure this traffic moves

         22  in and out of this City, and I don't know what

         23  consideration, and I guess I should ask this

         24  question, in developing these interim plans and

         25  these routes, have you been consulting with the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            89

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  Police Department and the Department of

          3  Transportation?

          4                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, I can't

          5  say that we have specifically consulted with them.

          6  We do test runs on established routes, and we choose

          7  the route that is most efficient.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Then I would

          9  suggest, sir, I would respectfully suggest, that

         10  before we start in November doing this Interim plan,

         11  that you meet with the Police Department, the

         12  Traffic Enforcement Agents, that you meet with the

         13  Department of Transportation, and make sure before

         14  you even put a truck on the road, that the routes

         15  are an optimum availability by way of the street

         16  signs, the traffic lights are coordinated properly

         17  and that you have at the right intersection police

         18  enforcement officers to get this traffic in and out

         19  of the City. And I know we need it up in Northern

         20  Manhattan. I have never seen a police officer

         21  directing traffic on the entrance to the George

         22  Washington Bridge. You have a lot of police down by

         23  the tunnel, directing traffic, but you really need a

         24  terrific job to be done, and you are not going to be

         25  able to do it by yourself. You are using our city's
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          2  streets and we need you to work on them.

          3                 I think Commissioner Chapman will

          4  work with you and Commissioner Safir will work with

          5  you.

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I certainly

          7  hope so.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Especially

          9  Commissioner Chapman who was also a police officer

         10  --

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Chapman and I

         12  shared an office at one time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS he was my

         14  commander of Northern Manhattan at one time also.

         15                 But we have some terrific problems

         16  and anticipation of problems would be very good.

         17                 Council Member Rodriguez.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Thank you,

         19  Mr. Chair.

         20                 I have a few questions. Let me begin

         21  by saying that much like Council Member Freed, I

         22  don't know where to start, because I read this and I

         23  am sitting here going am I hearing the same things

         24  that I am seeing every day as I walk in my district?

         25  But that is another story.
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          2                 And I am just going to ask you what I

          3  believe to be just a simple question. The ultimate

          4  goal is to close Freshkills, and the ultimate goal

          5  is to close Freshkills on time; how are we doing

          6  with that?

          7                 The short-term plans were never meant

          8  to be --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Council Member,

         10  can you speak up a little louder, I am having

         11  trouble hearing you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Sure. The

         13  short-term plans were never meant to be a five-year

         14  plan. I remember I met with, interim Commissioner

         15  Carpinello and Commissioner Doherty and I asked him

         16  the question, I said how is our time line doing? How

         17  is our time line doing to accomplishing the ultimate

         18  goal, in a fair and equitable way makes

         19  environmental sense, not in a way that goes out

         20  there and does what the Administration wants to do

         21  without consulting, without dealing with

         22  environmental, the environmental need of the

         23  community.

         24                 So, I just want to know basically,

         25  where are we with regard to (a) closing Freshkills
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          2  on time, but at the same time having a plan that is

          3  a long-term plan that solves the problem for the

          4  long-term.

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, let me

          6  address the interim period first, which is being

          7  addressed by these interim contracts. And as I have

          8  said in the past recently, as recently as this

          9  morning, I am happy to report that we are ahead of

         10  schedule.

         11                 In fact, we are about, we have with

         12  the awarding of these four contracts, we have

         13  roughly 5,700 tons per day yet to be disposed of,

         14  which means of course that we have gotten rid of

         15  approximately 7,000 tons per day and have passed the

         16  half-way point.

         17                 We are ahead of schedule, and I think

         18  that that is significant in two ways: First of all,

         19  it is always good to be ahead of schedule, it shows

         20  that the interim contract technique is working, but

         21  more to the point, and I think the Council

         22  appreciates this, that once we have in the temporary

         23  sense, in the interim sense, disposed of the refuse

         24  problem, and the accompanying health problem or

         25  health danger, I think that we have that much time
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          2  to devote our full resources to both the long-term

          3  plan, as has been announced by this Administration,

          4  and any other areas that the Council or other

          5  authorities will bring to our attention, any other

          6  paths we might follow.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: That

          8  suggests that at this time you are not really

          9  focusing on the long-term plan, that is what I got

         10  from that.

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, no, I am

         12  sorry. I didn't mean to give that impression.

         13                 What I am saying is that it is only

         14  common sense --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It certainly

         16  sounded like that.

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, it may

         18  be. I said we were devoting a great deal of effort

         19  to the interim contracts. It goes without saying

         20  that when we dispose of that effort we will be able

         21  to do additional effort in terms of the long-term

         22  plan. I am sorry if I misled any of you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And that

         24  has always been my contention in that we need to

         25  focus at the end of the day, we need to focus in
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          2  making sure that Freshkills closes on time and that

          3  those resources that are maybe not being directed in

          4  that direction now have to be directed in that

          5  direction because we can't, clearly as I am seeing

          6  in this hearing, we can't continue to go -- let me

          7  ask you another question, just from a philosophical

          8  question, with regard to the MTS's, do you think

          9  that that is the best way to go at the end of the

         10  day when it comes to --

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I personally

         12  believe that marine transfer stations are a very

         13  valuable, and the most efficient way of handling the

         14  garbage problem.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Why is

         16  truck-based not efficient?

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, it is not

         18  a question of it not being efficient, it is a

         19  question of the marine transfer stations obviously

         20  are all regionally located.

         21                 I mean, the garbage from the

         22  accompanying area goes to the marine transfer

         23  stations. It is tip, there are no mechanical devices

         24  to break down other than the truck itself.

         25                 You see, with compactors and things
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          2  you have things like skid plates and things that

          3  break, and that kind of thing. So, the present

          4  marine transfer station, dumping into a barge, you

          5  know, is one that works very well, and it is the one

          6  that I think will ultimately provide relief in the

          7  long-term.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay. I

          9  have a couple of other questions.

         10                 You mentioned in your testimony that

         11  the Department has reached out to New York City and

         12  New Jersey officials for support for these four

         13  contracts. And I thought I read in the paper that

         14  the Mayor of Elizabeth wasn't that satisfied with

         15  our contention that we can go into his town, and he

         16  will do whatever he can to stop it. I just wanted to

         17  know how your conversation went with the Mayor of

         18  Elizabeth?

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, I believe

         20  I said that we reached out to New Jersey officials.

         21  I tried to avoid an all-inclusive statement such as

         22  reached out to all New Jersey officials.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So, we

         24  don't know that the Mayor of Elizabeth is okay with

         25  this plan. We don't know that the Mayor of Elizabeth
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          2  is going to take a half hour trip and make it a

          3  three-hour trip like he suggested. So, then if he

          4  holds true to his word, then the half hour trip one

          5  way and half hour trip the other way will be a

          6  six-hour trip.

          7                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, to be

          8  truthful, I am not aware of any plans, either

          9  negative or positive that that Mayor has.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, that

         11  leads me right to another question that you are not

         12  aware.

         13                 Council Member Robles asked Deputy

         14  Commissioner Carpinello with regard to waste

         15  management and with regard to the environmental

         16  record of waste management and some questions asking

         17  if he was aware of any fines by any governmental

         18  agency, and the response was, I thought, that you

         19  didn't know; is that accurate?

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I believe that

         21  was Commissioner Carpinello's response.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So, he

         23  didn't know whether one of the top garbage companies

         24  in the world, the one that is going to be doing

         25  business with New York City, had any infractions.
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          2  You haven't heard something that has been all over

          3  the paper that the Mayor of Elizabeth is not happy

          4  with this plan.

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, I didn't

          6  say I haven't heard.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, then

          8  what did you say?

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I said I was

         10  not in direct contact with him. I can't predict what

         11  his plans are.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, his

         13  direct plans have been in the paper. His direct

         14  plans have been all over the place. That is what I

         15  am saying. That is where I am going with this

         16  question. I am saying, you guys are doing

         17  investigations, but you are not --

         18                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, we are not

         19  doing investigations.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Well, you

         21  are doing an investigation for the companies before

         22  you give them an interim contract; is that right?

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: We rely on the

         24  Trade Waste Commission and the Department of

         25  Investigation to do those kinds of investigations.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And I assume you

          3  also look into VENDEX?

          4                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, that is

          5  true, yes, of course.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: The problem

          7  I am having here with this whole, what I am trying

          8  to ask you is, as you sit here and you give us these

          9  answers, it leads me to believe only one of two

         10  possible of things. Either your investigation or the

         11  information that you know about this industry is

         12  terribly flawed and you just are not caring what is

         13  going on. That is one of the answers, that you guys

         14  just don't know, and that you are completely

         15  incompetent. That could be one of the answers. Or

         16  that you are purposely giving us wrong information.

         17  It could only be one or the other. It can't be none

         18  of the above, because either you do know that Waste

         19  Management has one of the worst records in the

         20  country and you do know that Waste Management has

         21  been fine, and you decided not to tell us that, or

         22  you don't know that, and if you don't know that,

         23  your agency does not know that, and you are sitting

         24  here today telling us that you don't know that, and

         25  that leads me to think about the competence level of
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          2  what is going on here. That is all I am saying, and

          3  I don't expect a response, because I think that it

          4  is a little tough and my colleague over here just

          5  told me to keep my temper down, I am trying really

          6  hard to do that.

          7                 But I just want you to know that that

          8  --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I think your

         10  point has been made.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Yes, I want

         12  to move on. I want to move on.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We understand

         14  that. And there are agencies that perhaps we will

         15  have to call in front of us to answer those

         16  questions.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay.

         18                 Let me ask a question with regards to

         19  Manhattan garbage. Is that all going to be going to

         20  Newark on an interim basis?

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, that is not

         22  correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Where is it

         24  going to be going? Do you know that?

         25                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:
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          2  The 700 tons will be going to the Newark

          3  incinerator. Then the balance of Manhattan's waste

          4  will be going to two transfer stations, one in

          5  Newark and one is Elizabeth, New Jersey.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Was all of

          7  this considered when you did your EAS?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          9  That's correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The Newark

         11  incinerator is the Essex County Resource Recovery

         12  Plant.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         14  That's correct.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: There are no

         16  additional incinerators involved.

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         18  No, it is located in Newark, New Jersey, it is known

         19  as the Essex County.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I just want to

         21  be sure everybody is reading off the same page.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Now, your

         23  Staten Island EAS, let's go to Staten Island for a

         24  second, suggests that the facility that all of that

         25  garbage is going to, the 24-hour facility; is that
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          2  accurate?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Only one

          4  of the two facilities that will be taking Staten

          5  Island waste is currently permitted to receive waste

          6  24 hours a day.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: But your

          8  EAS said that it was on a 24-hour basis, when you

          9  give us information you tell us there is going to be

         10  one truck every 15 minutes, one truck every this

         11  amount of time, when in fact in Staten Island I am

         12  looking at a report here that said that 77 percent

         13  of the garbage will be at night, when in fact from

         14  10:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. one of the transfer stations

         15  is closed?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: How can you

         18  give us that information? How can you put that

         19  information into an EAS, and expect us to sit here

         20  and say well this is right, this is okay? It is

         21  misleading. At the very least it is misleading, and

         22  I don't know whether it is intention, I don't know

         23  that. But how can you give us this information and

         24  expect us to sit here and say this is great,

         25  everything is going good, this is a great plan?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: The

          3  transfer station on Front Street in Elizabeth, which

          4  is the station that is currently permitted to

          5  receive waste only until 10 p.m. has applied to the

          6  New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection to

          7  extend its permitted operating hours to 24 hours a

          8  day.

          9                 In the event the event that they do

         10  not receive that change to their permit before the

         11  operation begins, the waste management facility on

         12  Elizabeth, Julia Street in Elizabeth, which is

         13  permitted to operate 24 hours a day, will receive

         14  the waste from Staten Island between 10:00 p.m. and

         15  7:00 a.m.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And they

         17  are one next to each other, so it has no impact?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: They are

         19  a couple of miles apart.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So then you

         21  are suggesting that that is okay, but it was the

         22  wrong formula to use for EAS, right?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: The

         24  travel time difference at that time of night,

         25  between going to the Front Street facility and going
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          2  to the Julia Street facility is insignificant, and

          3  that difference was considered in the traffic, air

          4  and noise analysis in the EAS.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay. I

          6  only have a couple more questions, okay?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Second round.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Fiala.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Chair.

         12                 Welcome, Commissioner. Three very

         13  quick questions. Let me ask them and you can answer

         14  them.

         15                 Now, I have been on this panel for

         16  two years and your predecessor and yourself have

         17  communicated to me over and over again and have done

         18  so in public. I am just going to ask you to do it

         19  again, because I understand the concern expressed by

         20  my colleagues in other boroughs. I understand that

         21  there is a fear that they are going to be saddled

         22  with something, and the players aren't going to be

         23  around to protect their constituencies in the

         24  future. None of us are going to be here, you know,

         25  more than four years from now, and some of us gone
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          2  well before then.

          3                 But this Administration, the edich

          4  put out at the announcement of the landfill closure

          5  was that the goal, the end game here is

          6  borough-based management. Every borough will be

          7  responsible for handling its own residential waste,

          8  right?

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That is

         10  correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: That still

         12  stands.

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Absolutely.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Now, it was

         15  further determined that if we were to honor the

         16  landfill closure date established by New York State

         17  and signed into law, and it is a covenant with the

         18  people I represent, the only way to do it would be

         19  to apply something that has been termed an interim

         20  plan, and part of that established tonnage reduction

         21  on an annual basis; is that right?

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That is

         23  absolutely correct, yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Where are we

         25  with respect to that?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: We are ahead of

          3  schedule.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: We are ahead of

          5  schedule.

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Ahead of

          7  schedule significantly.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: You said

          9  earlier, and I hope this allays the concerns of some

         10  of my colleagues, you know, that if we are honest,

         11  and I think all of us believe you are very sincere,

         12  and I have to say that you have been very

         13  cooperative with my office, as is your staff, and

         14  you have said over and over again that the goal is

         15  to have a long-term plan, and we will have one, but

         16  that we need an interim plan.

         17                 For those that have concerns that the

         18  interim plan might become a permanent plan, this is,

         19  this interim plan is self-ending, I think you used

         20  the term. These are contracts --

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Self-limiting.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Self-limiting.

         23  They run from three to five years max, right?

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: And it is in

         25  the control of the Administration.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Well, I have to

          3  say, I think that future administrations, it would

          4  behoove me to think that a future Mayor after this

          5  one would change the rules, because it wouldn't be

          6  in his or her best interest to do so.

          7                 One final question. On this interim

          8  plan, the New Jersey element --

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: The mileage

         11  that will be placed upon our equipment, the trucks,

         12  I assume will increase. Has the Department done an

         13  analysis of the impact that this will have on the

         14  fleet of trucks, and have they factored that into

         15  their future budgets?

         16                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: They have done

         17  an analysis, and to be truthful, in terms of annual

         18  mileage, there is not a significant increase.

         19                 Perhaps Commissioner Lawitts would

         20  address that in more detail.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Thank

         22  you.

         23                 Council member, the question is will

         24  we need more trucks --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Has an analysis
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          2  been done on what impact this Interim plan with

          3  respect to the trip to New Jersey will have on the

          4  current fleet, and subsequently will we need

          5  additional trucks.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Yes, we

          7  have done an analysis. On average the trucks will be

          8  traveling three times more than the distance they

          9  are now traveling to go from their collection routes

         10  to their unloading locations at the marine transfer

         11  station. For the distance to unload will increase to

         12  three times the current distance, but the primary

         13  determinant of where on our trucks, engines and the

         14  hydraulics and so on, is the number of hours that

         15  the trucks operate, because they were designed to

         16  operate eight hours a day on City streets. That

         17  amount of time is not going to increase because of

         18  this interim export contract, and there is not

         19  expected to be an increase in the fleet size because

         20  of the export contract. We should not have to

         21  purchase additional trucks for the fleet because of

         22  this contract.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: So as it stands

         24  now, see you are the experts and I like to defer to

         25  experts, your confidence level is sufficient that we
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          2  have sufficient existing resources within the budget

          3  with respect to the hardware needed.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Yes. And

          5  we are still planning, as the Commissioner indicated

          6  earlier, that the useful life of our trucks will

          7  remain seven years, as it has been for the last many

          8  years.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: All right,

         10  thank you, Commissioner.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Just as a

         12  follow-up to that, these trucks do not travel very

         13  fast. Presently in the City of New York, you can't

         14  go that fast, you go 30 miles an hour.

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's correct.

         16  Absolutely.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: If they go on

         18  that Thruway, and Route 80, the GW you take Route 80

         19  and the Turnpike.

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Minimum you are

         22  going to go 50 miles an hour. You have to go at

         23  least 50 miles an hour or else you are going to hold

         24  up traffic and you are going to really have problems

         25  in New Jersey, especially on the Turnpike.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Have these

          4  trucks been tested for sustained periods of time,

          5  and won't that have an effect on the life of these

          6  trucks going the higher speeds?

          7                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Chairman, the

          8  trucks are equal to the task. I think the point to

          9  be made here --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You will be

         11  covering more mileage.

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: And I don't

         13  profess to be a mechanical expert, but I believe

         14  that the stop and go collection of the normal

         15  activity of these trucks is more wearing on it than

         16  driving on the Turnpike.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: On the brakes.

         18                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The other one

         20  may be on the transmission.

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: As a matter of

         22  fact, the brakes are probably the most significant

         23  problem that we have, yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: In terms of the

         25  high speeds they are going to be going.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, the high

          3  speeds --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: When you buy a

          5  car, the first thing you want to know, in a used

          6  care, is how many miles do you have on it.

          7                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That is the

          8  first thing that people ask, yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And my experts

         10  say, the real way of telling is, don't trust the

         11  mileage, look at the accelerator pedal. If it is

         12  worn you know the car has gone a lot of mileage.

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I think that

         14  that is probably a good way for all of us who are

         15  amateurs to approach it. However, our technical

         16  experts, and we have a very good resource in our

         17  repair facility, can do a very detailed analysis of

         18  an engine and piston wear and that kind of thing.

         19  And I am assured --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What is the

         21  guarantee on these trucks when they are new? How

         22  long do we have the guarantee for?

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I am afraid you

         24  have me there. I don't know.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mike seems to
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          2  know, how many years of a guarantee?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          4  On a truck, various parts of the truck have

          5  different lengths of warranty.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The power train

          7  usually has a longer guarantee.

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          9  So, I can't answer specifically, but I do know

         10  usually it is, on the operating hydraulic parts it

         11  is one year, but on transmissions and other parts of

         12  the vehicles, it is longer but I don't know the

         13  exact length of time.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Can we find out?

         15  I think that is important to know.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         17  Absolutely.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I would like to

         19  see one of the guarantees of these trucks. Because

         20  these trucks have never been tested to whether or

         21  not --

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I can only say

         23  this, Chairman --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:-- For sustained

         25  longer periods at high speeds.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: If I was buying

          3  a car, I think I would probably prefer to buy a car

          4  that was driven consistently at 50 miles an hour,

          5  than one that spent its life on the streets of New

          6  York stopping and going and stopping and going.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: If they have the

          8  same mileage, you are absolutely correct.

          9                 But the fact of the matter, and I am

         10  doing this as a suggestion, because if we are going

         11  to have a plan that is going to last, you know,

         12  worst case scenario, and maybe it is not the worst

         13  case scenario, five years, three years plus two

         14  one-year periods of time, and God forbid it should

         15  go longer, I want to make sure you are going to

         16  have, the expenditure you are going to make that

         17  your trucks are up to it.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FARRELL: Well, your

         19  suggestion --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Because I know

         21  we are very careful about our trucks, and the

         22  manufacturer is very carefully selected and they are

         23  made to our specifications so that what I am

         24  suggesting to you is another area where you have to

         25  be extremely careful in making sure that these
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          2  trucks, the newly purchased trucks, trucks you have

          3  now obviously, and you do have a reputation of

          4  having some of the finest mechanics of all of the

          5  agencies in the City, and are we still using our own

          6  mechanics? Because at one time they were thinking of

          7  dismantling, taking away your mechanic.

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Your mechanics

         10  have a reputation, they like to bring other agency

         11  vehicles to your garages to be fixed because of your

         12  reputation. Am I correct in my representation of

         13  that?

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That is

         15  correct, yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So, it is really

         17  important that your maintenance of the trucks be

         18  good, where you don't lose mechanics, don't let them

         19  take mechanics away from you. If anything, get more

         20  mechanics. And the specifications be looked at with

         21  an eye to the fact that they are going to be doing

         22  different types of work, not only the heavy duty of

         23  pushing snow around which is important. And the

         24  maintenance. Perhaps you need a longer guarantee and

         25  a residual of parts.
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          2                 Because I remember one of the things

          3  you talked about was that you were going to have

          4  cars, trucks with parts at the various intersections

          5  being able to help repair these trucks in case they

          6  break down.

          7                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's correct.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Nobody has

          9  mentioned that, but that is another area where you

         10  look to make sure this works. This is all our

         11  effort, to make sure this does work?

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, it is. And

         13  your suggestion about the maintenance or the

         14  monitoring of the equipment is well taken.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We have Council

         17  Member Oddo, from Staten Island.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         19  Chairman.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And we are also

         21  joined by Council Member Quinn of Manhattan.

         22                 Council Member Provenzano is next.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         24  Chairman. Welcome, Commissioner.

         25                 Commissioner, anyone who knows me
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          2  well, I would say would not deem me as an optimist.

          3  I am not a pessimist, cynical I will take. But

          4  several months ago I had this uncharacteristic surge

          5  of optimism that technology could get us all out of

          6  this mess, and one of the things that was the cause

          7  for that optimism was this shrink-wrap technology

          8  that ECDC had come up with.

          9                 The Borough President had a

         10  presentation I think at his State of the Borough

         11  Address, and there was a lot of hope that this could

         12  be incorporated into the MTS system and perhaps

         13  address a lot of the concerns on both sides of the

         14  Verrazano.

         15                 Could you give me an update as to the

         16  status of that pilot project we had at Freshkills?

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The pilot

         18  project, which we will call Shrink-Wrap, was

         19  concluded at Freshkills, and what it is is that

         20  while garbage can be shrink-wrapped, the time it

         21  takes causes a problem.

         22                 We felt that this proposal, as

         23  presented in that project, was not a viable choice

         24  for us. The cost was competitive but not, it was not

         25  a cost that would give us any great financial break.
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          2                 The throughput, the time it takes to

          3  practice or the time that it took to prepare the

          4  waste for export, it was slower, let me just say it

          5  was slower.

          6                 And finally, while the process

          7  itself, the shrink-wrap machine was there, the

          8  company presenting it had no transfer station,

          9  therefore did not have the means of implementing a

         10  system, and so until such a proposal is made to us,

         11  you know, where they say we have the ability to

         12  process garbage now, give us a contract, then you

         13  know --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: The machine that

         15  was at Freshkills would create one-ton bales.

         16                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's correct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: It was my

         18  understanding that that was coming down the pike, a

         19  machine that could handle five tons; would that

         20  address the time issue?

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, I don't

         22  think so. But let me say this, and I must admit that

         23  you have caught me on a subject that I don't have

         24  the most current recollection of. But it is my

         25  recollection that the five-ton machine was in the
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          2  design stage, rather than in an actual reality.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: There was a lot

          4  of press attention given to Comptroller Hevesi's

          5  concept of a particular type of truck, and I

          6  apologize if this was addressed earlier.

          7                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, it wasn't.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: My question is,

          9  is the Department actively, aggressively looking at

         10  other types of technology that hopefully could get

         11  us out of this situation?

         12                 I mean, how creative is the

         13  Department being? And I have to say this, I have a

         14  great deal respect for some of your colleagues in

         15  other agencies, but when I drive in New Jersey and I

         16  hear stories about Florida and I come back to the

         17  City, I get the sense that some of the higher-ups in

         18  DOT aren't as creative as their colleagues in other

         19  states. How creative is this Department today and

         20  how aggressively are you seeking solutions that

         21  maybe none of us here in this Council or the folks

         22  out there are aware of?

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well,

         24  specifically relating to the Comptroller's

         25  presentation of a new truck, I welcome that
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          2  presentation, and we are aggressively looking into

          3  it, we will try to evaluate it.

          4                 It was presented, I don't have the

          5  material in front of me, but the Comptroller's

          6  Office did in fact in their presentation express the

          7  fact that this is a theoretical truck, the truck

          8  does not exist. But I wish it did because I would

          9  like to give it a real test.

         10                 There are, of course, other issues,

         11  even if the truck did exist, and I really do wish it

         12  did. But if it did exist, we might today be

         13  discussing how to implement the use of that truck,

         14  and it is part of a system of course, it is a

         15  container truck. Well, you fill up the container,

         16  you have to replace it with another container, the

         17  full container gets somehow loaded on something,

         18  either a barge or a train or a truck even, and it

         19  gets taken away. That technology doesn't exist

         20  either, in terms of transferring those containers.

         21  So that requires a certain amount of study.

         22                 There is also a question, I think a

         23  very significant question, and I want to stress that

         24  I am very interested in this proposal, but there is

         25  a question as to what I would do with the empty
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          2  containers while I was waiting to load them onto the

          3  trucks. It is possible that I would have to expand

          4  the footprint, the area of each of the marine

          5  transfer stations or garages perhaps, I don't know,

          6  double it, it would have to -- we would have to

          7  study this. Let's stop and think for a second. We

          8  have a truck, it has got a container, it is out on

          9  the street, it is collecting garbage, okay?

         10                 You need at least the container to

         11  replace that container when that container is full

         12  and it is taken away. And unless that empty

         13  container is brought back within a day, perhaps even

         14  12 hours, well, you replace it, you need another

         15  replacement, and if those containers are loaded on,

         16  let's say ocean-going barges or railroad cars and

         17  they are taken to Texas or dare I say Virginia, or

         18  any other place, that container is out there in

         19  another state. There is a container needed on the

         20  truck, there is a container needed to replace the

         21  one on the truck. These are all logistical and

         22  technical problems that have to be addressed.

         23                 Nevertheless, I think it is a concept

         24  well worth looking into, and I share, I am not

         25  necessarily an optimist either, 37 years in the
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          2  Police Department got rid of all of that optimism.

          3  But let me say this, I experience optimism on a

          4  daily basis when we talk about new technologies. I

          5  will welcome any suggestion and we will look into

          6  it.

          7                 We will make, and the chairman asked

          8  for the responses to the RFEI that I had originally

          9  asked for on the retrofitting of the marine transfer

         10  station, I don't think that they yielded anything

         11  that we can use, unfortunately, however, any

         12  additional suggestions are welcome and we will

         13  certainly look at them.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Mr. Chairman,

         15  one last brief question.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Please try to

         17  confine yourself to the Interim plan. I have given

         18  plenty of leeway here, but there are so many

         19  questions and we have a lot of people waiting.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay. I have one

         21  brief question.

         22                 Commissioner Farrell, this is a

         23  question I asked Commissioner Carpinello when he was

         24  the Acting Commissioner.

         25                 Are you confident that every member
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          2  of the Department of Sanitation hierarchy shares

          3  your optimism in your desire to see Freshkills close

          4  on time? Are you as confident?

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, you know,

          6  in civil service testing techniques, Council Member,

          7  they say to avoid those absolute statements.

          8                 Every member of the seven or 9,000?

          9  No, certainly not.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I am not talking

         11  about the rank and file, I am talking about the

         12  leadership of the Department of Sanitation. Do they

         13  share your desire and your commitment to close

         14  Freshkills on time?

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Absolutely, and

         16  without reservation.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You asked about

         18  if they share his optimism.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you,

         20  Commissioner.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I should ask

         22  you, Councilman, do you share the optimism?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I will reserve

         24  comment, Mr. Chairman.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.
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          2                 Next we have Council Member

          3  Provenzano.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          5  I will be brief.

          6                 In reading the briefing paper that

          7  was prepared by the City Council staff, it says that

          8  the new export plan, which I believe is beginning by

          9  the end of the year?

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Actually this

         11  month, Councilwoman.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: This

         13  month, okay.

         14                 Will require more drivers, something

         15  like an additional 325 new Sanitation workers that

         16  are expected to be hired, mechanics, and as my

         17  colleague suggested, driving more miles, maintenance

         18  costs, tolls on the Turnpike; how does all this fit

         19  into our budget?

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: It has all been

         21  funded, Council member.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: It has

         23  already been funded?

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Let me say one

         25  thing, that we are now talking about my request,
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          2  particularly let's say for the 325 Sanitation

          3  workers, and let me say that as an agency head,

          4  trying to get as many resources as possible from

          5  those people to whom I am accountable, I have to

          6  make an argument, I need 325.

          7                 Now, it may be that those 325 may not

          8  all at every moment be involved in the interim

          9  export contracts. I need them as a sense of -- I

         10  need them to be available should we have a snow

         11  storm. I am a manager, so it would be misleading if

         12  I were to tell you that I need 325 Sanitation

         13  workers for the interim export contract. I need 325

         14  Sanitation workers to give me a level of confidence

         15  that whatever snow storm or other garbage emergency

         16  arises, I can handle it, and I want to avoid

         17  overtime costs and things of that nature.

         18                 It is all a package of management

         19  rather than simply the export plan.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: So you say

         21  that you already have budget money available at the

         22  present time --

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: To

         25  accommodate the possible hiring of 325 new
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          2  Sanitation --

          3                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: We did hire

          4  them.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: They are

          6  already hired?

          7                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: They are

          8  already hired in three groups - 110, 110 and 105.

          9  Yes, 325, right. Math is really not my strong point.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: And that

         11  was over what period of time?

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Six weeks.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: In the

         14  last six weeks?

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay.

         17                 So, as you said to Councilman Fiala,

         18  there is absolutely no fiscal impact that this new

         19  plan would have? Additional fiscal impact.

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: What I am

         21  saying to you is that everything that we need is

         22  currently budgeted. Actually Council Member Fiala

         23  did not ask me that question, or at least I didn't

         24  understand it that way. If I am answering your

         25  question, the answer is yes. Fully funded at the
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          2  present time.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: At the

          4  present time. Okay, thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: One of the

          6  things that has to be asked, and has not been asked

          7  at all, what affect will these interim plans have on

          8  your recycling operation?

          9                 Are we using any of these trucks for

         10  --

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The recycling

         12  operation --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are not

         14  transporting any of the recycling materials out to

         15  --

         16                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We are keeping

         18  the recycling?

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Absolutely.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: All right.

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: In fact, if

         22  anything we are expanding it, as I am sure you know,

         23  as we have discussed.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And of course,

         25  the more recycling you do, the less trucks you are
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          2  going to have --

          3                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Absolutely

          4  correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Tell me how the

          6  recycling will be affected by this Interim plan?

          7                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, I don't

          8  think that the Interim plan has an affect on

          9  recycling at all.

         10                 The question really is, does

         11  recycling have an affect on the Interim contracts?

         12  And the answer to that is yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: In what way?

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, we have

         15  just expanded recycling in Queens, weekly recycling,

         16  and we will expand it to the remainder of the Bronx

         17  in April.

         18                 Historically --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Your records

         20  seem to indicate that has resulted in an increase in

         21  recycling.

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: It increases

         23  recycling, it decreases the waste stream.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Putrescible

         25  waste.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

          4                 So, how is this going to affect these

          5  interim plans?

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, let's say

          7  this: We let out the contract for a certain amount

          8  of tonnage. The way the Department of Sanitation is

          9  able to craft these contracts is that we are not

         10  committed. It isn't that we have to meet a certain

         11  level. We need up to a certain level, so we may very

         12  well be exporting less, at less cost, less trucks,

         13  less truck traffic. I am certainly hopeful that that

         14  is the case.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I mean, the

         16  point I am making, and it was sort of indicated

         17  before, that while you are concentrating on this,

         18  and I understand this is the thrust of your efforts,

         19  to make sure this is successful, the Interim plan,

         20  and that you have still got to do more in Brooklyn

         21  and other places, other phases, we are in the third

         22  phase, you have got a fourth phase to go, and all of

         23  your resources are being directed toward that, which

         24  you said when this is finished you will be spending

         25  more attention on the long-range plan, although I
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          2  hope you are doing it as much as you can now. We

          3  also don't want you to forget that one of the

          4  biggest programs we have and one of the most

          5  important programs in this Council is recycling. So

          6  we don't want any lessening of your efforts on that.

          7  I know that Commissioner Hirst feels the same way I

          8  do.

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes. I can

         10  assure you, Chairman, and members of the Committee,

         11  that recycling will increase, Freshkills will close

         12  on time, and there is in fact, and there will be in

         13  place a long-term plan.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay. I just

         15  want to recognize that we have up in the balcony

         16  students from PS 107, from Flushing, New York. We

         17  are very pleased to have you here. And this is from

         18  Council Member Julia Harrison's district, and the

         19  teacher I guess is Marsha Lufkin. Is she there?

         20  There she is.

         21                 We want to welcome all of you here.

         22  We are discussing in this Committee a very important

         23  issue, having to do with the waste that is produced

         24  by each of your homes and what we do with it. We

         25  think it should be recycled. We are hoping they are
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          2  teaching you this at your school and that you are

          3  bringing home the lessons you learn in your school

          4  to recycle all that you can recycle, and you know,

          5  you have seen the ads on it, that that which is not

          6  recyclable, that you put that in the proper bags to

          7  be picked up by the Department of Sanitation.

          8                 What we are discussing is what to do

          9  with it after you have done all of that.

         10                 We welcome you and we are very glad

         11  you are here.

         12                 Council Member Carrion is here.

         13                 The next question is for Mr. Robles,

         14  the second round.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chairman.

         17                 Let me, before I do get to the gist

         18  of my question, I am just a little baffled, that

         19  maybe I need to perhaps ask something.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Can I have a

         21  little quiet, please.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And,

         23  Commissioner, maybe not so much you because I don't

         24  recall, but I repeat, there are those around you who

         25  have been around, so let me ask it.
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          2                 Are you aware of a truck in Brooklyn

          3  that backed in, by parking into one of these

          4  facilities, actually went into the wall and we had

          5  to actually close down the building for awhile?

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, I can't say

          7  that I personally --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Anybody at

          9  this table?

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: An accident?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Yes. I am

         12  curious. Since you didn't know about Waste

         13  Management being cited by the federal government, I

         14  am just curious that when things happen, you know,

         15  the chain of command. I know every time an instance

         16  happens in my district the police call me because

         17  they know if they don't I am on the phone -- well,

         18  you know that, you were precinct commander.

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Right?

         21  Remember?

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, that's

         23  correct. I won't refer to those as always good

         24  times. They were interesting times.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Does anybody
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          2  know about the accident?

          3                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: This was not a

          4  sanitation truck, it was a private sanitation truck?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: No, no, no. I

          6  am not saying Sanitation. I am simply discussing

          7  what is, what will be, and what we have to live

          8  with, and we are talking about the trucks that might

          9  be part of this transfer operations.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: These trucks are

         11  not involved in the Interim plan, the Sanitation

         12  trucks are involved.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I am not

         14  talking about Sanitation trucks.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Can you ask your

         16  question, please?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay.

         18                 Commissioner, let me say that Waste

         19  Management had a permit, I can recall, for 3,700

         20  tons. And before this interim went into place, they

         21  were doing about 2,400. Currently they still have

         22  the same permit for 3,700, but they are now at the

         23  max with this Interim. So they are up there, they

         24  are at the maximum.

         25                 And while we are talking about

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            132

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  Manhattan and Staten Island at the end of the year,

          3  let me say that Brooklyn and the Bronx are already

          4  in place.

          5                 Let me share with you my frustration.

          6  I have been here for two hours and I have been

          7  trying to understand this rationale, and one of the

          8  things I would like to see us get back to is what I

          9  call the, maybe parochial, but the nitty-gritty

         10  about the impact on our communities, even though the

         11  impact statement says there will be no impact. So,

         12  let me just share with you my frustration.

         13                 I live on Siegel Street, as you know,

         14  between Bushwick Avenue and White Street. I used to

         15  go into meetings in Greenpoint. Are you aware there

         16  was a mass rally last week at St. Cecelia.

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: There was a

         19  march.

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, I was.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Tell that to

         22  those people that the impact study showed to be no

         23  impact, and I wonder what they will do to you.

         24                 But anyway, the point is, and I used

         25  to hear people complain about the stench, about the
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          2  smell, and I really didn't understand it because I

          3  was going into Greenpoint.

          4                 I must tell you that I get up at 6:00

          5  every morning, and by 7:00 I am in my car warming it

          6  up, and I must tell you that on Siegel Street,

          7  because Waste Management is about five to ten blocks

          8  from where I live, it is incredible, and yet there

          9  is no impact, there is no change.

         10                 Let me ask you this: Since they are

         11  at the maximum, how do you monitor, that what you

         12  are hearing from communities like North Brooklyn and

         13  whatever they are alleging, which stench is one,

         14  watering down trucks in the street in front of

         15  Morgan Avenue, around Morja Street (phonetic), that

         16  after awhile those sewers get clogged, and then when

         17  it really rains like we had recently, I don't have

         18  to go to East River, I have it in North Brooklyn on

         19  Morgan Avenue; how do we deal with those kinds of

         20  what I call quality of life issues, that this

         21  Administration, and I must say the other one, too,

         22  with all due respect, we made a commitment to the

         23  people of New York City to address quality of life

         24  issues, so that whether it is asthma, whether it is

         25  environmental, or whether just simple quality of
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          2  life, how are we, the government, overseeing that

          3  whatever we contract out are not only conforming to

          4  what is contracted out, but that they are not in

          5  violation of not sanitation rules, but the

          6  Administration's quality of life issues of which

          7  noise is one, of which, you know, smell and stench

          8  and --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: He got the

         10  point, Mr. Robles. What is your answer?

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, let's say

         12  that there is a problem in any facility, sometimes

         13  it doesn't come to the attention of my

         14  Administration, perhaps not of the Administrations

         15  of the Police Department or the Department of

         16  Transportation, or whoever else is involved. When it

         17  does, when it does I think it is incumbent upon that

         18  agency, certainly on this agency, to respond to

         19  community concerns.

         20                 Now, Council Member Robles has a long

         21  history of advocacy for his constituents, as do all

         22  of the members of the Committee and I would only say

         23  this, that having become just recently aware of that

         24  issue, the Department, I mean that issue in that

         25  particular St. Cecilia's rally, the Department of
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          2  Sanitation will increase its monitoring effects, and

          3  we stand ready to cooperate with Council members,

          4  their offices, and certainly other agencies that you

          5  may be able to involve in any effort. Because as you

          6  remarked, I have a long history of enforcement, and

          7  while I don't think that Sanitation is necessarily

          8  all about enforcement. We will do all necessary

          9  enforcement, and I look forward to working with you

         10  on that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I would, too,

         12  but let me just say --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Robles.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: -- Quickly.

         16                 The question really was, since you

         17  had two boroughs that this interim plan has already

         18  been on for some time; has there been any evaluation

         19  of the plan and its implementation and what the

         20  outcome has been, so as we move into two new

         21  boroughs, before the end of the year, when we come

         22  before this Committee and say that it is our belief

         23  that there is no impact or any negative impact on

         24  those communities.

         25                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, there is
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          2  no single document that sums up, to my knowledge, I

          3  mean what we have experienced.

          4                 There is, on the other hand, a

          5  considerable amount of scrutiny that goes on on a

          6  regular basis. Some of that is generated by this

          7  agency, and some of it is, of course, in response to

          8  community concerns and community groups.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Chairman.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, I think

         12  what Mr. Robles is asking, and I think it is a good

         13  question is, in phase one and two of your Interim

         14  plan, we are entering phase three, is there anything

         15  that you have learned and you have applied in phase

         16  three? I know it is a different operation, that the

         17  first time in phase three, the Department of

         18  Sanitation trucks are actually going to be

         19  delivering the refuse to out-of-state facilities, is

         20  there anything short of that where you experienced

         21  in phases one and two that you applied to phase

         22  three, that we should know about, that we should be

         23  using?

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Because of the

         25  nature, I mean the operations are different in major
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          2  respects, I can't say that there is an overriding,

          3  something that we have learned. There are little

          4  things that we have learned here and there.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And we are

          6  applying them I hope?

          7                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I hope we are

          8  certainly applying them.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Such as?

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That is the

         11  nature --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Such as?

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, the

         14  constant inspection of our trucks, for instance.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You anticipate

         16  --

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The emissions,

         18  for instance. We have a stepped-up emissions policy.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: First of all,

         20  before I ask any other questions, we have Mr.

         21  Carrion who is here, and I want to ask him for his

         22  vote on Intro. 531-A.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: I vote aye,

         24  Mr. Chairman.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, let the
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          2  record indicate the aye vote and the vote now stands

          3  nine in the affirmative, none in the negative.

          4                 Okay, getting back to this issue of

          5  the facilities.

          6                 You are going to be delivering most

          7  of the waste from Manhattan to the Essex County

          8  Resource Recovery in Newark. What is the total

          9  capacity of that Resource Recovery facility?

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, let me

         11  just check. Excuse me, I have to go to my reference

         12  materials. The facility's permitted capacity is

         13  985,500 tons per year.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am talking

         15  about on a daily basis.

         16                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Thirty-two

         17  hundred tons per day.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thirty-two

         19  hundred tons. And I guess the question is, at what

         20  capacity is that facility presently operating?

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Actually, I am

         22  not aware of what their capacity is.

         23                 We will be sending them what they

         24  told us they could accept, which is 1,700 tons per

         25  day.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Will that result

          3  in them having to decrease what they accept from

          4  other people?

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: My own opinion

          6  is that they had 1,700 tons per day unused capacity.

          7  However, I am only --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Could you find

          9  that out for us?

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I could ask

         11  them. I certainly could ask them.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And do you know

         13  whether or not -- I know you have entered into a

         14  contract with the operator --

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And are you

         17  satisfied that the operation of that particular

         18  facility is optimal? Because after all, it is not

         19  too far from the prevailing winds coming into

         20  Manhattan, and if they are not operating properly,

         21  then we will have some problems. As you know, we do

         22  not have an incinerator in New York City --

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Absolutely.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mainly because

         25  we were concerned about the emissions.
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          2                 Now, we will be very unhappy if we

          3  find out we have gone to another facility that would

          4  result in those same emissions which we are unhappy

          5  with coming into the City of New York. We don't want

          6  to do indirectly which we ask the Sanitation

          7  Department not to do directly.

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, I can

          9  assure you that we did not and we will not enter

         10  into any contract with a concern, a facility that is

         11  not meeting all of the local or state standards.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How about the

         13  New York City standards? And how do you go about

         14  checking that out?

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Chairman, New

         16  York City has a standard that says there will be no

         17  incinerators, or as we say today, waste energy

         18  facilities.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am talking

         20  about the emissions standards in New York State. We

         21  have a clean air standard both in the City and in

         22  the State, as well as the federal government, so I

         23  want to know that the facilities that we are

         24  contracting with, which are going to be burning

         25  garbage in the City of New York is not going to
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          2  produce an emission and it will come over to the

          3  City of New York which will be violative, and I want

          4  to know what you have done about it, what your

          5  agency has done about it to make sure that the

          6  facility is operating so this won't happen.

          7                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, honestly,

          8  I can tell you that, again, the facility is in

          9  compliance with all New Jersey standards and federal

         10  standards. Obviously we wouldn't have contracted

         11  with them otherwise.

         12                 In terms of a comparison with New

         13  York State standards for incinerators, I will have

         14  to do that and get back to you, I don't have the

         15  answers.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And would you

         17  also tell me how you know they are in compliance

         18  with the New Jersey and the federal standards, and

         19  whether or not you did an independent assessment

         20  using some of our own experts, our own consultants,

         21  make sure that is the case. I don't want to merely

         22  take the word of the New Jersey officials.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: As part

         24  of the evaluation of the facilities that bid for

         25  this contract, especially for the Essex County
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          2  Resource Recovery facility, we reviewed their past

          3  inspection reports from the New Jersey Department of

          4  Environmental Protection, and they were found to be

          5  in compliance, as the Commissioner indicated, with

          6  New Jersey DEP emission standards.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You didn't have

          8  anyone out there from New York City, go out there

          9  from New York City, to actually examine their

         10  facility.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: We did.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Who did?

         13                 Did we have experts do it?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: We had

         15  our waste disposal staff review the permit

         16  compliance documentation and our consultants

         17  reviewed it.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Did you have any

         19  engineers go out and test the emissions?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: We

         21  didn't do an independent testing of the emissions,

         22  no.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, did you

         24  evaluate any independent testing by anyone else?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: The
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          2  consultants who prepared the environmental

          3  assessment reviewed the inspection reports that are

          4  conducted by the New Jersey Department of

          5  Environmental Protection.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

          7                 Council Member Quinn.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you. I

          9  apologize if some of my questions were asked before,

         10  I was over with some of your other colleagues at

         11  EDC.

         12                 This question I am going to ask is

         13  both parochial, as it relates to my district, but I

         14  think it is also a more general Citywide question as

         15  well.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Council Member

         17  Quinn, as they say, all politics are parochial, and

         18  all garbage is also parochial.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Anyway, the

         20  Holland Tunnel, which is one of the tunnels that you

         21  are going to use, and also the Lincoln Tunnel as

         22  well are both in my district. They are nightmarish.

         23  Both of them, and even the Holland Tunnel, I mean it

         24  just is, you know, horrendous, and it has been an

         25  issue that neighborhood residents have complained,
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          2  demonstrated about, et cetera, for years.

          3                 I am, quite frankly, terrified about

          4  the impact that this Interim plan will have on

          5  traffic in and out of both of those tunnels, and

          6  then the impact that will have on residents and on

          7  quality of life and air quality.

          8                 So, I would like to know, you are

          9  thinking about it, but given that as I understand it

         10  in the past some of those areas around the tunnels

         11  have been dangerously close to being considered EPA,

         12  you know, hot spots; how is it that this plan was

         13  given a no impact, since if we are teetering on the

         14  edge in those areas of being in violation and being

         15  an EPA hot spot, it seems like adding all of these

         16  diesel trucks is very likely going to push us over,

         17  which would be an impact.

         18                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, certainly

         19  I think so much hinges on the definition, the legal

         20  definition of significant impact.

         21                 We have found that there is no

         22  significant impact.

         23                 Now, obviously adding a single truck

         24  has I guess some impact. I mean, I don't know, maybe

         25  it displaces another truck that doesn't get onto
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          2  Canal Street or go through the Holland Tunnel. For

          3  our purposes, I can assure you that our experts, our

          4  assessment is that there is no significant impact

          5  and that is a legal statement. In real life terms, I

          6  think it is useful again, and not to be repetitious,

          7  but I don't believe you heard me say this before, in

          8  relation to the Holland Tunnel, the total impact is

          9  that we will be sending five trucks per hour during

         10  the nighttime hours through that tunnel. In the

         11  daytime we will be sending four trucks.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, is that

         13  four of five, 24 hours of every day?

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, that is

         15  like a maximum number.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Could you

         17  define daytime and nighttime, what are the

         18  parameters?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: The

         20  nighttime begins at 7:00 p.m. and ends at 5:00 a.m.

         21  The daytime begins at 9:30 a.m. and ends at 1:00

         22  p.m.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So that is more

         24  than one, which was your hypothetical.

         25                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes. But I said
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          2  so much hinges on the word significant.

          3                 And, again, to go back to my

          4  statement about the immediacy of things, the garbage

          5  is picked up, it is picked up in individual boroughs

          6  and the Mayor's philosophy policy is that each

          7  borough will take care of its own garbage.

          8                 In pursuit of that, we have crafted

          9  these contracts which we believe are the best we can

         10  do in order to facilitate the removal of garbage

         11  from the Borough of Manhattan.

         12                 So, we are sending the garbage

         13  through those Hudson River crossings, there is no

         14  other way to fill these temporary interim contracts.

         15  And any other suggestions that anyone can make, I am

         16  certainly willing to look into.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: You raised the

         18  issue of the definition of significance --

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, this is not

         21  what I think, but let's for argument sake say the

         22  five trucks, potentially from 7:00 p.m. to 5:00

         23  a.m., four trucks 9:30 a.m. to 1:00 p.m., just for

         24  argument sake.

         25                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: That is not a

          3  quote/unquote significant impact, we all agree with

          4  that for argument sake. Let's say a month from now

          5  we are wrong, how is it that the Department is going

          6  to monitor to see whether your belief that this is

          7  not a significant impact was not incorrect (a)? (b)

          8  how does the community get to be part of that

          9  evaluation? And (c) what would the process be that

         10  you would use to respond to an error in the

         11  definition of significance and then have things

         12  change?

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, let me

         14  talk first about our reliance on consultants. We

         15  will evaluate periodically, through the use of

         16  expert consultants, things like air quality.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: What is

         18  periodically? Like quarterly or --

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Depending on my

         20  budget I would estimate it would probably be

         21  quarterly.

         22                 I have yet to enter into those

         23  contracts, so let's hope they are not exorbitant in

         24  their charges.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I mean, it is
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          2  significant to note that you are prepared to

          3  reevaluate, if there is a reason to do it, and that

          4  these contracts that you are entering into have

          5  clauses in them which you are allowed to make

          6  certain changes, if you find that the things are not

          7  working out to your satisfaction.

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, there are

          9  certain things within our control that can be

         10  changed unilaterally.

         11                 As Commissioner Lawitts suggested --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am asking

         13  about escape clauses in the contract, to allow you,

         14  if your finding -- in other words, not to be stuck

         15  with a contract that you can't deliver on.

         16                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I don't know if

         17  I would call them escape clauses --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Pardon the

         19  lawyers --

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, I would

         21  have to call on a lawyer then to explain that, I am

         22  not.

         23                 However, what I was talking about in

         24  terms of our unilateral changing of things, there

         25  are, for instance, we defined nighttime and daytime
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          2  and it didn't cover a 24-hour period. So, obviously

          3  we could extend if we wanted to.

          4                 We can change collection hours. I

          5  don't want to do that because I think communities

          6  are happy with their present --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Are those

          8  collection hours within the contracts themselves? I

          9  would think the only thing that is in the contract

         10  is delivery hours.

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I am talking

         12  about other options open to the Department of

         13  Sanitation.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Let's say you

         15  have a contract with a facility --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Stanley.

         17  Stanley.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Excuse me,

         19  please.

         20                 You have a contract with the Essex

         21  County facility to deliver a certain tonnage of

         22  garbage.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes. Up to a

         24  certain tonnage.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Up to a certain
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          2  tonnage. Does that include the hours of delivery?

          3                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: It does, yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So, in other

          5  words, if you find those hours are unreasonable and

          6  causing you problems, is there clauses in the

          7  contract to allow you to change those hours?

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, well, that

          9  would not be a problem I think for them. They are

         10  open 24 hours a day, six days a week.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is not my

         12  question.

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: All I am

         14  saying, Chairman, is that it is still a unilateral

         15  decision --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What I want to

         17  know is whether written into that contract is the

         18  capability of changing those hours if you find you

         19  cannot meet the time constraints? Does the contract

         20  provide that you can make changes in those hours?

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: We are able to

         22  deliver at other hours than we currently have

         23  described to you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: In other words,

         25  in the contract you allow for delivery of other
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          2  hours --

          3                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That is

          4  correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: -- And the

          6  window of time which to deliver it. A certain

          7  window. Say they are supposed to be there at 9:00 at

          8  night, and say, well, what if they come at 9:15?

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, they are

         10  not that specific.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How does that

         12  work?

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The description

         14  of daytime and nighttime is the Department of

         15  Sanitation device.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: In other words,

         17  you are not bound to deliver the truck in certain

         18  hours?

         19                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: We are not

         20  bound by Essex County, no.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are not

         22  bound by certain hours.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That's right.

         24  That's right. They are open and they are willing to

         25  accept 24 hours a day, six days a week.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And there is not

          3  time specific?

          4                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, there is

          5  not. On their end, no.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Or any of the

          7  other facilities which they are going to?

          8                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, there is

          9  pending applications to go to a 24 hour per day

         10  operation.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am just trying

         12  to determine whether there is a sufficient

         13  flexibility in these contracts to allow you to make

         14  adjustments when you find there are things you can't

         15  do.

         16                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: We believe

         17  there is, yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Stanley, can I

         20  just get the B and C part of my question answer; is

         21  that all right?

         22                 Just let me recap. They were, (a), or

         23  whatever letter it was, (c), how is the community

         24  input going to be included in your process? And I

         25  guess you kind of answered my other part, which is
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          2  the decision about whether or not it is significant

          3  is up to you all, there is no other body. So, if you

          4  can tell me how the community will be involved,

          5  their input?

          6                 And also, based on what you just

          7  said, I just want to ask you guys, what do you --

          8  since you said it may go to 24 hours, what are you

          9  anticipating that the truck volume will be six

         10  months from now?

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Let me clarify.

         12  I didn't say that it would go to 24 hours. I said

         13  the 24-hour day operation is something that is on

         14  our side of the table an option.

         15                 We have excluded certain periods of

         16  the 24 hours, in order to avoid rushhour, as an

         17  operational efficiency, that's all, and to be

         18  truthful, with some neighborhood concerns also.

         19                 To go to your (b) --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And also, what

         21  is it going to be in six months, do you know? Do you

         22  have an anticipated volume?

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: There is no

         24  reason to believe that it is going to change. We

         25  have for the most part given you what I -- I

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            154

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  wouldn't call worse case scenarios, but rather

          3  maximum numbers. If anything, as we increase our

          4  recycling efforts which the Chairman made a

          5  reference to before, I am hopeful that the waste

          6  stream will decrease.

          7                 Now, to go to your --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: To (b), right?

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: To (b). This

         10  Department runs, as I am sure you know, a fair

         11  amount of community outreach. To that end, we will

         12  keep you and your constituents in the loop. You know

         13  I have a Deputy Commissioner for community affairs,

         14  she I believe is in the audience here today. We

         15  would be happy to meet with any group and discuss

         16  the progress or, you know, whatever stage we find

         17  ourselves at at any time.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: On the contract,

         20  the issue with contracts here, are those contracts

         21  available to be looked at by the Committee?

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I would think

         23  so. Sure. Why not.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I would like to

         25  see them, because I would like to know under what
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          2  condition. Let's say that during the middle of one

          3  of your time periods, whether it is a three year or

          4  a two-year extension, we find ourselves operational

          5  on the long-range plan, we have a plan, whatever it

          6  is, you utilize the MTS's hopefully --

          7                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And you no

          9  longer need this contract for the Interim plan, are

         10  there provisions where we can cancel the Interim

         11  contract?

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, there are

         13  --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And not incur

         15  substantial liability?

         16                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: There are

         17  cancellation clauses, a 30-day notice.

         18                 You know, it is an interesting thing,

         19  and I hope I am not off the point, Chairman, but to

         20  go back to my own commitment, and this Department's

         21  commitment to maintaining the marine-based system, I

         22  just thought I would mention that in furtherance of

         23  keeping the transfer, the marine transfer stations

         24  alive, there is a statute of New York State

         25  regulations that say that if a transfer station
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          2  closes for a year, it is closed, and then in a sense

          3  it does not exist any longer, and you have to go

          4  through the whole process of --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Every once in

          6  awhile we are going to have to use it.

          7                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, that is

          8  exactly the point. You went right to the heart of

          9  it. I have been in contact with the State

         10  Commissioner of DEC, John Cahill, about perhaps

         11  receiving an exemption to that policy, because I

         12  firmly believe that the marine transfer stations

         13  will come back, and come back and be the solution to

         14  any of these problems.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I don't know

         16  what other choice you have, except air lifting the

         17  garbage out of the City.

         18                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: And someone did

         19  mention the use of helicopters earlier.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: They don't come

         21  that big anymore.

         22                 But I think that anticipates another

         23  question I had and that was, during this period of

         24  time where we are waiting to put into effect the

         25  interim plan, the long range for which I fully
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          2  anticipate we will also be utilizing the marine

          3  transfer station.

          4                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I certainly do.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What will we be

          6  doing by way of maintenance of these -- this is

          7  going to involve closing down, people should

          8  understand by using the Interim plan we are closing

          9  down all of the marine transfer stations in

         10  Manhattan, all three of them.

         11                 What maintenance is going to be going

         12  on, and do you have plans to update them, to fix

         13  them up, to of course preventive maintenance and to

         14  keep them in operation, what are you going --

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: We have the

         16  resources, both material and personnel, dedicated to

         17  maintaining them in pristine condition.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Are we going to

         19  go into any sort of a rehab of them, I didn't say

         20  retrofit. That is one of the things we are looking

         21  at, talking about rehabbing them. They have been in

         22  constant use. They have had a terrific amount of

         23  wear and tear on the facilities, I have been to

         24  them.

         25                 Now, are there any plans afoot, do
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          2  you have any plans, specific plans or programs to

          3  bring them back to optimum levels?

          4                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: You know, as

          5  part of our routine maintenance we will take another

          6  look at that.

          7                 I can't say that we have crafted a

          8  specific plan, because we have not yet of course

          9  closed them down.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I commend you to

         11  do such.

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes,

         13  absolutely.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: To look at it.

         15                 Council Member Freed.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you.

         17                 Commissioner, I want to get back to

         18  where I have a couple of questions, and I have

         19  actually been looking at the supplemental report to

         20  the EAS, so it brings a couple of questions to me.

         21                 On the fact that you are talking

         22  about the 650 truck trips I guess per day is the

         23  worst case scenario.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Actually it is

         25  almost a fantasy.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Well, I

          3  probably agree with you, but I have a hunch I am

          4  going in the other direction.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: An extremely bad

          6  fantasy, I might add.

          7                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: A very bad

          8  fantasy.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Anyway, as I

         10  understand from this, that 650 is based on trucks

         11  carrying ten tons of garbage, but in reality, don't

         12  they usually carry seven tons?

         13                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: For which?

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Average truck

         16  load is more likely to be ten than it is to be

         17  seven.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay, I have

         19  seen --

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That can of

         21  course vary from district to district.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Right. Well,

         23  that gets to another question, because when I am

         24  looking at these different tables and I understand

         25  that the table B12, which is really the worst case
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          2  scenario, but it is based on two potential schemes,

          3  it comes up with something like 2,450 additional

          4  trips per day. Now, let me explain that as I

          5  understand it, and if I am wrong, you will explain

          6  it to me.

          7                 But looking at this, and one of the

          8  problems with the 650 trip is, that is an ideal

          9  situation, and we can differ on the ten tons to

         10  seven tons for a second, but that is if a truck

         11  leaves at a certain time and it actually takes the

         12  amount of time that you are guesstimating it should

         13  take.

         14                 However, this back-up scenario is

         15  what happens if it doesn't, and quite frankly, it is

         16  like a half hour across the George Washington Bridge

         17  is highly unlikely.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Highly unlikely?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Highly

         20  unlikely, unless they are using those helicopters.

         21                 What is your average time, what is

         22  your estimated time to get across Canal Street if

         23  you are coming from say District 1? Which means you

         24  have to get all the way across Canal, out the

         25  Holland Tunnel and down to Essex County?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I think we

          3  would have to research that one, Council Member.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: All right. Let

          5  me suggest to you that the times I see in here are

          6  highly fanciful, unless they are walking, because

          7  you can actually walk across Canal Street, and

          8  probably if you could walk across the tunnel

          9  quickly.

         10                 The point is, however, that if the

         11  ideal situation doesn't happen, then you are

         12  supposed to come up with back-up situations, and the

         13  supplemental EAS posit two, one talks about chaser

         14  trucks, and one talks about relay trucks, and the

         15  way they got to this 2,450 worst case scenario is by

         16  using both of those, a combination of both of those.

         17  Because in reality, and you state it right here, you

         18  haven't got a clue what is going to happen. You

         19  really don't know.

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Did I put it in

         21  those words?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: I think clue

         23  was probably wrong, but it basically says we really

         24  don't know.

         25                 And having looked at some of the
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          2  times and the way you calculated the times, and for

          3  instance, I see that most of these times were done

          4  in mid-December, and for instance --

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I don't believe

          6  that is correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: That is what it

          8  says in your EAS.

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, we have

         10  more current information.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Well, this is a

         12  supplemental EAS. This is what you based your

         13  figures on, I understood.

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I will let

         15  Commissioner Lawitts talk about it.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Anyway, that is

         17  not even my question.

         18                 Let me just suggest that the other

         19  thing that this 2,450 number does is, it picks up

         20  all the additional trucks and the additional

         21  garbage, if you will, that the City has to take care

         22  of and will have to, in this case since we are only

         23  dealing from Manhattan, will have to transport out

         24  of Manhattan.

         25                 In other words, if I understand it,
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          2  that 650 you were using doesn't include things like

          3  lot-cleaning trucks, vehicle operations, and it

          4  doesn't include garbage or what is picked up by

          5  other City departments, such as Parks.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's a good

          7  point.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Is that

          9  accurate? I mean, it is because I just read it, but

         10  go ahead.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: The 650

         12  trips in the combined worst case scenario was laying

         13  --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Well, that is

         15  not your combined worst case scenario. Your combined

         16  worst case scenario is 2,450.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: The 650

         18  trips results from layering two scenarios on top of

         19  each other, Operational Strategy 1 and Operational

         20  Strategy 2.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: I am probably

         22  going to have to disagree with you, because if I am

         23  misreading it, then you explain to me what I am

         24  misreading, because according to table B12, this

         25  talks about layering the two, and this takes two

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            164

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  potential strategies. And I am admitting, and it

          3  says right here it is probably higher than it should

          4  be, but it does take the combination of the two

          5  strategies together.

          6                 When I look at the 650, that is not a

          7  layering of two different strategies. And it doesn't

          8  include those other trucks.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Do you have an

         10  answer?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: First on

         12  the other trucks, the lot-cleaning trucks and the

         13  trucks from other City departments, were included in

         14  the traffic and air and noise analysis.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: But I am asking

         16  about trucks per day. And as I read these it wasn't.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Right.

         18  This number of 2,450 trucks is a number, again, it

         19  is combining two operational strategies --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: I said that.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Right.

         22                 And in any event, it says that if

         23  that worst unexpected case happened, that even with

         24  that number of trucks there was no significant

         25  impact on traffic, air or noise.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: I am sorry, you

          3  are going to have to excuse me if I have trouble

          4  believing that if you are going to add 2,450 new

          5  additional trucks per day, that is not going to have

          6  an impact? There wouldn't be room for any other

          7  vehicles in the entire way going on any of these

          8  crossings of the Hudson River. No other vehicle

          9  could ever get out of the City.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Council Member,

         11  you may disagree with their answer, but that is

         12  their answer.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay, but I

         14  really would --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's their

         16  answer.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: It is really

         18  kind of offensive to give a Never Never Land

         19  scenario. I mean, clearly --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I agree with

         21  you, but that is their answer.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: All right.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We are stuck

         24  with their answer. You can ask the question but you

         25  can't tell them what the answer is.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay. Well,

          3  okay.

          4                 Let me ask another couple of quick

          5  questions.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, please.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: One of the

          8  things is, we are only talking about in this, we are

          9  only talking about generated in Manhattan going out

         10  across the Hudson River, my understanding is that

         11  there will be trucks, for instance, from Brooklyn

         12  that will also be going through Manhattan and out

         13  probably the Holland Tunnel, because all three East

         14  River bridges feed into the Holland Tunnel.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: That's

         16  not true.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Really?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Is there any

         19  such plans?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: That's

         21  not true. It's not true.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Even in the

         23  future for phase four?

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Not even.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: You are telling
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          2  me that Brooklyn itself, interior to Brooklyn, takes

          3  care of all of its garbage. My understanding was

          4  some of the Brooklyn garbage actually has to be

          5  shipped as well to other points. I mean, who is

          6  going down to Virginia or those other points? Where

          7  is that garbage coming from?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: If you

          9  are talking about our Brooklyn export garbage, under

         10  the contracts that were let last year, that tonnage,

         11  when it leaves the transfer station, exits Brooklyn

         12  by getting on the Brooklyn Queens Expressway, going

         13  over the Verrazano Narrows Bridge, going through

         14  Staten Island and then from New Jersey it continues

         15  on to its final destination in an out-of-state

         16  landfill.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Because

         18  currently those trucks are coming across Canal

         19  Street, so you are telling me that none of those

         20  trucks are coming --

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: As I

         22  just said, they are getting on the Brooklyn Queens

         23  Expressway, going over the Verrazano Narrows Bridge

         24  and going through Staten Island.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: I will have to
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          2  say that my colleagues from Brooklyn are not under

          3  that impression.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Just to add to

          5  that, let me add something. We are not talking about

          6  merely Sanitation trucks, we are talking about the

          7  trucks of the contracting agencies, which will be

          8  then picking up the trucks from the land transfer

          9  stations, and then transporting them out. None of

         10  those trucks are going to go through Manhattan?

         11  Private trucks carrying City waste, residential

         12  waste?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Our

         14  environmental assessment from last year's contracts

         15  for the Brooklyn export specified that the tonnage

         16  going out of the City, going out of Brooklyn would

         17  leave via the route I described --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The Varrazano.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: This

         20  transportation plan that those vendors submitted

         21  under the terms of our contract specified those same

         22  routings.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: And if they

         24  don't do that, because I guarantee to you right now

         25  that they are not doing that, what are you going to
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          2  do about it?

          3                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: They would have

          4  to get caught first, Council Member.

          5                 I mean, just because someone said

          6  it's true --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: I will help you

          8  catch them.

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: We don't know

         10  and we don't believe that they are doing it.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Take her up on

         13  it.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Please take me

         15  up on it.

         16                 I have one last question.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We have plenty

         18  of witnesses.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Again, and this

         20  is a concern I have heard even from some of the bids

         21  who do take care of some of their own garbage and

         22  they are currently going to New Jersey.

         23                 A lot of New York City's commercial

         24  garbage is currently going to like Newark. In fact,

         25  I think something like a thousand tons per day. They
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          2  are at capacity already. When they start picking up

          3  and taking our residential garbage where we have

          4  long-term contracts as opposed to the commercial

          5  garbage that has short-term contracts, where do they

          6  go?

          7                 Will they not have to, at least at

          8  some point will they not have to start going into,

          9  for instance, the Brooklyn marine transfer stations?

         10  Some of them are actually going to come back and go

         11  through the City. Because they can no longer drop,

         12  there is no additional capacity there and they have

         13  short term contracts.

         14                 Does your estimate of where the

         15  trucks go and how many that we are going to be

         16  impacted by, consider that? And if not, would you

         17  take that into consideration? Because it is highly

         18  likely that the residential garbage is going to bump

         19  some of the commercial garbage.

         20                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I don't know

         21  that for a fact.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is

         23  something that is very important and should be

         24  looked at.

         25                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I understand
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          2  what you are saying, but I have --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is called

          4  an unintended consequence.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Yes. Because I

          6  will tell you, I have heard from the different bids

          7  who currently, because they are doing, picking up

          8  their garbage, and say there is maybe one pick-up

          9  from the City, while they are doing two or three or

         10  sometimes as many as four a day, they are all

         11  running out to New Jersey. They figured they are not

         12  going to be able to do that anymore. They also

         13  figure that they don't even know when they are going

         14  to get their pick-ups, because they believe there

         15  will be such back-ups and delays in the city's

         16  trucks getting out there, that they will be lucky if

         17  they get one pick-up.

         18                 So, they are afraid that they are

         19  going to have a lot more garbage to deal with and

         20  they don't know how they are going to get rid of it

         21  and whether they are going to take it, because they

         22  said they expect to be bumped from New Jersey. And I

         23  would like to see the figures on those as well.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, thank you.

         25                 The other thing, and I think the
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          2  Council Member raised it, and that is the issue, the

          3  Department of Sanitation is not the only agency that

          4  was using Freshkills for their waste. There are

          5  other agencies such as the Parks Department as well,

          6  they have their own facilities, their own trucks.

          7  Are there any other agencies that were using

          8  Freshkills to dump their garbage which is now going

          9  to be foreclosed from using Freshkills?

         10                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, certainly

         11  --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What other

         13  agencies?

         14                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Anyone who does

         15  use it will be foreclosed because we are going to

         16  close it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What other

         18  agencies do, and what is the tonnage? Because that

         19  tonnage is now also going to have to be

         20  trans-shipped out of the City.

         21                 The Parks Department, do we know what

         22  their facility plans are?

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I don't know

         24  what their facility plans are.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mike, do you
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          2  know what other agencies? Who else has their own

          3  trucks besides the Parks Department? Is there any

          4  other agency, HHC or anyone like that?

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          6  The New York City Housing Authority and DOT.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The NYCHA. You

          8  pick up NYCHA's trucks -- their garbage.

          9                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         10  We pick up their garbage. They also have their own

         11  trucks that use our facilities. And they are

         12  formulating their plans right now as to where and

         13  how they will dispose of their waste once we close

         14  the landfill, once we close the marine transfer

         15  stations.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, we have to

         17  know what those plans are.

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         19  Right. We are working with them right now.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right now they

         21  are still going to Freshkills?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         23  Well, right now they are going to the marine

         24  transfer stations in Manhattan, and then the garbage

         25  goes to Freshkills. They are formulating their plans
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          2  now.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Once we close

          4  down in the middle of November and thereafter all of

          5  the marine transfer stations in Manhattan, there are

          6  other agencies that are not going to be able to use

          7  them, what are they going to do with their garbage?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          9  We are working with them right now as to plans on

         10  where they are going to go.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Obviously that

         12  is going to have to be trans-shipped to New Jersey.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FARRELL:

         14  Most of that will be, yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And what

         16  agencies are there, NYCHA, probably with C&D when

         17  they do construction?

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         19  Well, you have DOT, you have NYCHA, you have Parks.

         20  We can provide you with a complete list.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, could you

         22  give us a complete list in the tonnage per day, and

         23  what the plans are, because we want to work with you

         24  on that. It is important that we understand that

         25  there are other trucks using Freshkills.
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          3  We will do that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And they may

          5  have to go directly to Freshkills by truck until it

          6  is closed.

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          8  Well, like I say, we are still working with them and

          9  finalizing their plans, so that is why I am hesitant

         10  to tell you specifically since the plans are not

         11  finalized.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Could you tell

         13  us what the various regulatory approvals that are

         14  needed for the Department of Sanitation to bringing

         15  their trucks to New Jersey, and vehicle inspections

         16  and other requirements that they are going to

         17  require from you in New Jersey?

         18                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Certainly.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And as to

         20  whether or not you think you are going to have any

         21  problem getting approval.

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, actually,

         23  we have all of the approvals that are necessary.

         24                 We obtained permits from New Jersey

         25  Department of Environmental Protection, one permit
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          2  for the entire Department, and then individual

          3  permits for each truck. We obtained permits from the

          4  New Jersey Turnpike Authority for servicing trucks

          5  that might become disabled. We have every permit

          6  that is required today.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And they are in

          8  good shape?

          9                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Absolutely.

         10                 We have, in fact, I mean just to show

         11  you the extent of our preparations, we have things

         12  like this rather extensive checklist for the driver

         13  to check for every trip, and this is then put

         14  together by our experts and with the help of some

         15  law enforcement people.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is very

         17  good. But notwithstanding all of your preparation,

         18  notwithstanding, do you have a strategy for dealing

         19  with the opposition and harassment of some

         20  officials, as I mentioned before, the Mayor of

         21  Elizabeth who said that he is going to be doing?

         22                 By the way, I should tell you that we

         23  do have a number of people here from New Jersey who

         24  will be testifying.

         25                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I am not going
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          2  to accuse anyone ahead of time of harassment --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: No accusations

          4  intended. I am talking about a strategy, just in

          5  case you have to deal with such a situation.

          6                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: We are --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We have a very

          8  extensive plan, a very expensive plan, and we ought

          9  to at least develop a strategy to deal with a

         10  possibly anticipated problem.

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: The only thing

         12  I would say is this: To plan for some inappropriate

         13  action on the part of another municipality would in

         14  fact I think be inappropriate for us.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Maybe

         16  inappropriate to talk about.

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: We have planned

         18  --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Perhaps you

         20  ought to have a group of lawyers ready, who are

         21  admitted to New Jersey, ready to go to court there

         22  to get an injunction to stop our trucks.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I want to make

         24  a real effort to avoid any confrontational language.

         25  Let us say that the Department of Sanitation trucks
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          2  are fully permitted, completely equipped suitably,

          3  our drivers have been extensively instructed and

          4  will be supervised.  There will be no -- there is no

          5  violation possible that I would predict ahead of

          6  time, and should any of our drivers or trucks be

          7  found or it be suggested that they are wanting or

          8  have committed some offense in any other

          9  jurisdiction, we will address that legally, as is

         10  our right.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So your answer

         12  to me is you are fully prepared to see to it that

         13  this plan is implemented in light of all

         14  circumstances?

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I couldn't have

         16  said it better myself.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

         18                 Mr. Rodriguez.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Thank you,

         20  Mr. Chair. I just want to follow up on what Council

         21  Member Freed was asking you.

         22                 The incinerator in Newark --

         23                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay,

         25  whether it is operating at capacity now, you are
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          2  saying you don't know that?

          3                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, I don't

          4  know that.

          5                 They said to us we can take, we want

          6  to take 1,700 tons per day.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Let me tell

          8  you they are operating at capacity, from everything

          9  I have read, and I have read extensively on this

         10  issue.

         11                 Let me say that what you suggested

         12  was that as a result of that there will be New York

         13  City commercial garbage that can no longer go there.

         14  Let me say that I am telling you this. You don't

         15  know it, let me tell you. And for you to sit there

         16  and to enter an agreement with the incinerator and

         17  to respond to us that you did not know that they

         18  were taking 1,000 tons a day or 1,500 tons a day

         19  from New York City garbage, and for you to simply

         20  displace garbage A to garbage B, garbage A being

         21  residential, and garbage B being the commercial, and

         22  then for you to basically say, well, that is not my

         23  problem --

         24                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: No, I didn't

         25  say that. I didn't say that. Nor am I going to sit
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          2  here and talk about things that I don't know to be

          3  factual.

          4                 I have said to you that we have

          5  entered into a contract, they said they could take

          6  1,700 tons per day. I believe they are fully

          7  compliant with the regulatory agencies in their

          8  jurisdiction, and we are fully compliant with the

          9  regulatory agencies in our jurisdiction.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Do you

         11  think it was at all necessary to find out if your

         12  giving a contract to Elizabeth would have any

         13  negative impact on the community of New York City as

         14  a result of this placement of garbage that can no

         15  longer go there as a result of your contract, do you

         16  think that was necessary or do you think that was

         17  not necessary to find out?

         18                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: We believe that

         19  there is no adverse impact, in any manner, shape or

         20  form.

         21                 I cannot predict the future. I don't

         22  know what people are going to do.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: But you

         24  didn't think it was necessary to find out whether or

         25  not --
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I am telling

          3  you that we have found out as much as we can find

          4  out, and fortune-telling is not what I get paid to

          5  do.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Except it

          7  is not fortune-telling, Mr. Commissioner. Let me

          8  tell you, if we can find out and we can ask if

          9  garbage is coming from New York, if it is commercial

         10  garbage that's not fortune-telling. It is getting

         11  the information from the vendor. That is asking them

         12  the simple question, are you at capacity? Are you

         13  not at capacity? Just ask the question. The answer

         14  will be yes or no.

         15                 If the answer is yes, if some of the

         16  garbage is coming from New York, what percentage of

         17  the garbage is coming from New York, if any is

         18  coming from New York. If the answer is 1,000 tons a

         19  day, then to find out whether or not that is going

         20  to be displaced. If you found that out, then you

         21  would know the answer today.

         22                 Now, you didn't bother to ask, that

         23  is what I am trying to say. It just leads to

         24  everything else that you are not bothering to ask,

         25  that you are not bothering to find out. It leads to
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          2  all of the questions with regard to the plan, the

          3  plan continually, you just say I don't know, we

          4  didn't ask, we haven't found out, I don't need to

          5  know.

          6                 Let me tell you something, the

          7  problem is that the community does want to know. The

          8  communities want to know if in North Brooklyn there

          9  is going to be another 1,000 tons a day coming in.

         10  North Brooklyn is entitled to know that. North

         11  Brooklyn is entitled to know --

         12                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: It is not the

         13  subject of this hearing.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: The

         15  Committee hearing is about the Interim plan. This is

         16  about the Interim plan --

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: As it relates

         18  to Manhattan and Staten Island.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Oh, I am

         20  sorry. So, it is just about Manhattan and Staten

         21  Island, so we can't ask anything else?

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That was my

         23  understanding.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It's true.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay.

          3  Excuse me, Mr. Chairman, for asking an inappropriate

          4  question. I would never dream of doing that to you.

          5                 Let me ask you a question about

          6  peaking now, I thought I would get to the other

          7  point anyway.

          8                 You are saying in your testimony that

          9  there are so many per hour and all of this, can you

         10  give me at least an indication of your MTS's; when

         11  do they operate at the highest capacity? At what

         12  point during the day, during the week, what day

         13  during the week? Can you just tell me at what point

         14  that happens?

         15                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Mike.

         16                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         17  The normal peak capacity, as far as receiving loads

         18  on the day shift, are between about 9:00 a.m. and

         19  noon time. And between that time, between about 9:00

         20  and 10:00, is probably the peak of the peak for the

         21  daytime shift.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So, I may

         23  be wrong, so is it safe for me to assume that at

         24  that time is when you are going to be taking garbage

         25  to New Jersey?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

          3  No, not necessarily.

          4                 The way the plan is is that in order

          5  to maximize the efficiency and cut down on the

          6  traffic congestion, most of the trucks that will be

          7  going to Jersey will be going during the nighttime

          8  hours, as Deputy Commissioner Lawitts stated,

          9  starting at the 7:00 p.m. at night.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So, today

         11  the garbage gets dropped off at 9:00 in the morning?

         12  That is what is happening today basically?

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         14  It starts around 9:00 and it continues on through

         15  the rest of the day.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Tomorrow,

         17  in the future, those trucks full of garbage will be

         18  sitting in a garage somewhere; is that right?

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CARPINELLO:

         20  Some will be, yes. As some are now.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I just

         22  wanted to clarify that, because I just wanted to

         23  make sure that we knew what our communities were

         24  getting into, having trucks full of garbage all day

         25  long in our communities while we wait for the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            185

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  nighttime to come around to drag this across. I just

          3  wanted to know that. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Council Member

          5  Oddo.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chairman.

          8                 Commissioner, earlier the Chairman

          9  stated the need for us to communicate to other City

         10  agencies, such as the Police Department and the

         11  Department of Transportation, which I think is a

         12  valid point, and I think it raises the issue of

         13  whatever the number is of trucks that are going to

         14  be going over to Port Authority facilities, whether

         15  it is the Goethels or the tunnels. Have we

         16  communicated with the Port Authority to let them

         17  know of the increase in trucks, particularly in

         18  light of the fact that the Goethels Bridge is slated

         19  for work for the next several years which results in

         20  lane closures at night, precisely the time that

         21  these trucks are to be traveling to New Jersey.

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes, we have,

         23  Council Member. We have been in extensive

         24  conversations with the Port Authority police -- I am

         25  sorry, the Port Authority authorities, on all
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          2  aspects and all times.

          3                 Now, could I tell you that we have

          4  discussed specifically lane closures on the Goethels

          5  Bridge? Right now I am informed by Commissioner

          6  Lawitts that we have. I was about to say we have

          7  not, because I don't like to take credit for things

          8  that I didn't know for a fact, but Steve has now

          9  informed me that we did.

         10                 Again, the total increase in volume,

         11  and I don't mean to be repetitious, but our best

         12  estimates, allowing for normal delays, difficulties,

         13  whatever, is that in the totality of Port Authority

         14  crossings, which include the bridge, the tunnels,

         15  based on 1998 figures, the maximum number of trucks

         16  we will add, we will add one additional vehicle for

         17  every 500 vehicles using those crossings.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: One last

         19  question, Mr. Chairman.

         20                 The Bayonne Bridge is probably the

         21  most underutilized crossing on Staten Island. Is

         22  there any consideration given to using that? Or what

         23  kind of difficulties would that create, to sort of

         24  steer some of this truck traffic to the Bayonne

         25  Bridge to access Elizabeth and Newark, et cetera?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I would like

          3  to, if you really want to specifically talk about

          4  Bayonne Bridge, I will defer the question. But I

          5  would say just speaking generically that the routes

          6  were established by all people, you know, once we

          7  knew where we were going to go, we rode every

          8  available route, looking for mileage, looking at

          9  tolls, looking at neighborhoods that we go through,

         10  and in fact we have made adjustments; for instance,

         11  staying on the Turnpike a little longer so that we

         12  avoid residential areas, and therefore avoid

         13  community opposition.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         15  Chairman.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Council Member

         17  Quinn.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Before you gave

         19  me the Holland Tunnel numbers for daytime and

         20  nighttime, could you give me those for the Lincoln

         21  Tunnel, please?

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I was afraid

         23  you were going to ask that. Yes, I really was, once

         24  you said they were both in your district.

         25                 The Lincoln Tunnel figures are, for
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          2  our definition of night, 11 trucks per hour, and for

          3  the daytime, 12 trucks per hour.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: That is a lot.

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Well, it is

          6  more than going through the Holland Tunnel,

          7  certainly.

          8                 But it doesn't increase what I said

          9  before about one vehicle every 500.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right. But let

         11  me ask you, there is presently an interagency task

         12  force within the Giuliani Administration working

         13  specifically on the issue of traffic in the Hell's

         14  Kitchen Clinton area, where the Lincoln Tunnel is,

         15  and that is one of the things, entrance and exit to

         16  the Lincoln Tunnel is one of the things that

         17  obviously is on the agenda.

         18                 Have you been in touch with Robert

         19  Kurtel in the Office of Transportation? Is this

         20  being factored into the numerous ideas, legislation,

         21  planning that that task force is coming up with?

         22                 Or are too many things going on

         23  which, you know, (a) I think it is too many trucks

         24  for the Lincoln Tunnel, but (b) it would be

         25  completely frustrating if you spent all this time
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          2  working with Mr. Kurtel and his office to come up

          3  with solutions that might be negated by the

          4  additional trucks.

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I don't know

          6  that answer to your specific question of being in

          7  touch with that task force.

          8                 However, to be truthful, I will make

          9  an effort to do that, and I would say that if there

         10  was another way to go across the Hudson River, I

         11  would use it. I don't mean I would not use the

         12  Lincoln Tunnel, but I will use every means we can to

         13  get the daily requirement of moving that garbage off

         14  the streets and out of the City, and we will use

         15  every possible, efficient means of doing so.

         16                 And as of right now we are restricted

         17  to a finite number of tunnels and bridges and there

         18  is no choice, we just do it in the best way we can.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The finite

         20  number being the ones that exist.

         21                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: That is

         22  correct, yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And I was just

         24  wondering, in the EIS, B12 is the chart that

         25  outlines the truck numbers; is that right?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Yes.

          3                 To be truthful, I would immediately

          4  defer to Commissioner Lawitts on interpreting that

          5  chart.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay. Yes, I

          7  looked at it myself, there are a lot of

          8  abbreviations.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: The

         10  purpose of that chart is to show under a worst case

         11  scenario the number of trucks that might be

         12  traveling per hour, and as Council Member Freed had

         13  indicated at the bottom of that chart, each of those

         14  hours is summed up and the total of those hours was

         15  2,400. And it is unfortunate that that number was

         16  there. That is not to be interpreted that that

         17  scenario is so we would operate 2,400 trucks per

         18  day. It is looking at the maximum possible number of

         19  trucks under these conditions that could be seen in

         20  each one of the 24 hours.

         21                 It would physically impossible for us

         22  to operate 2,400 trucks per day. We don't do that

         23  Citywide.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How many trucks

         25  do you have?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Can I --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How many trucks

          4  do you have?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: We have

          6  fewer than 2,000 trucks.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So, you couldn't

          8  operate 2,400 a day, no.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: That's

         10  right.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: If you took B12

         12  and broke it down, you know, by access route out of

         13  Manhattan, aren't 11 and 12 and 4 and 5, I thought

         14  the Commissioner said those were the worst case

         15  scenarios for these tunnels. So, would B12 have 11,

         16  12, 4 and 5, or there a more worser (sic) terrible

         17  scenario in B12? It is like we are having a hearing

         18  on vitamins but --

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: One

         20  moment.

         21                 B12 is the worst. That was the worst.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, it is 4 and

         23  5 for the Holland, 11, 12 for the Lincoln.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: The

         25  number of trucks on a normal operating day, if we go
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          2  back to the earlier discussion about the normal day

          3  consisting of fewer than 400 trucks per day, that is

          4  consistent with the figures that you just cited, the

          5  4 and 5 per hour and the 11 and 12 per hour.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I thought --

          7  maybe I misunderstood, but I thought the

          8  Commissioner had said that the 4 and the 4, when we

          9  were discussing the Holland, was the upper end, the

         10  worst case scenario, and that it would be

         11  anticipated that it was left, so based on that is

         12  what I thought, I would think, since you also said

         13  B12 was the worst, that your worst and the other

         14  worst would be the same, but maybe I misunderstood

         15  and the Commissioner didn't say that 4 and 5 were

         16  the worst.

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: If we were

         18  talking, and I may be at fault here, I wasn't

         19  describing worst case scenarios. I was talking

         20  about, we have estimated it's a normal workload.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Do you know --

         22                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: This chart, B12

         23  or whatever it is, to be truthful, as I understand

         24  it, and I will confess, my understanding is

         25  developing as we sit here, someone has sat down and
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          2  said what is the worst possible thing that could

          3  happen between 1:00 and 2:00 in the morning.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right.

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: And then what

          6  is the worst possible thing that could happen

          7  between 2:00 and 3:00 in the morning, and as a

          8  consequence, and correct me if I am wrong, I need to

          9  verify this, as a consequence they have counted

         10  trucks more than once, more than twice, perhaps they

         11  have counted them, if they cover 24-hour periods,

         12  they have counted the same truck 24 times.

         13                 When I find out who is responsible

         14  for this chart, you know --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Given that

         16  understanding --

         17                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I mean, total

         18  fantasy.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: And to

         20  be compliant with the City and State environmental

         21  quality review regulations, that is the way we have

         22  to analyze the potential number of truck trips per

         23  hour.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Given that

         25  understanding, to save me the couple hours of trying
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          2  to figure it out, which will just be frustrating and

          3  remind me how poorly I did in statistics in college,

          4  if you could tell me what B12 would tell me for the

          5  Holland Tunnel and the Lincoln, so we have the 4, 5,

          6  the 11, 12, what would the B12, given the understand

          7  that was described, what would that be?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: Yes, we

          9  can do that. I can't do that at this moment.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: If you could,

         11  that would be great. I would appreciate that. Thank

         12  you.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LAWITTS: I think

         14  it is just a question of breaking out each

         15  individual line.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, thank you

         18  very much.

         19                 This was the last question from the

         20  Council Members. I want to thank you very much for

         21  being here. I want to ask you if you have somebody

         22  to stay to listen to some of the witnesses? And also

         23  understand, I believe that the greatest motivation

         24  it will be to put in the long-range plan is your

         25  interim plan. Because I think there are all sorts of
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          2  things that we don't know about yet that you are

          3  going to learn about, but I think it behooves us all

          4  to move as expeditiously as possible.

          5                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: I can tell you,

          6  Chairman, no one, no one is more anxious to begin

          7  the long-term plan than I am. And we will close

          8  Freshkills ahead of time.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And we will

         10  implement the long-range plan.

         11                 COMMISSIONER FARRELL: Ahead of time.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Ahead of time,

         13  very good.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 The first witness is the

         16  distinguished State Senator from the City of New

         17  York Tom Duane. When he was an important individual

         18  he was known as a Council Member.

         19                 Senator, it is good to see you.

         20                 SENATOR DUANE: Thank you very much.

         21  Good afternoon.

         22                 I do want to, just based on the last

         23  comment, or the last line of questioning about B12,

         24  and the statement was made that B12 was a chart

         25  which had to be created to comply with State and
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          2  federal environmental impact regulations, well,

          3  there was no argument made with what is wrong or why

          4  it is that they think that shouldn't count. I mean

          5  they made it sound as if it was a stupid thing to

          6  have to do, but in fact I think it portends some

          7  accuracy for what is going to be the level of

          8  traffic from the Sanitation trucks going through

          9  Manhattan. So I do think we need to pay attention to

         10  that, and if the Department of Sanitation believes

         11  that we -- that it is a stupid thing that they just

         12  had to include in their report, they should then be

         13  clear about why it is that it doesn't matter. So, I

         14  would ask the Committee to follow up on that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Absolutely.

         16                 SENATOR DUANE: Thank you. Good

         17  morning -- good afternoon. My testimony is

         18  incorrect. I do appreciate the opportunity to

         19  testify before you regarding the interim solid waste

         20  disposal plan, which I believe and I think we have

         21  heard is going to have an enormous impact on the

         22  environmental health of our City for some time to

         23  come. I am incredibly concerned about this plan,

         24  particularly the Manhattan component, and I believe

         25  it will result in the generation of thousands more
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          2  miles of diesel truck traffic every day and

          3  concentrate that traffic in those areas of Manhattan

          4  already most intolerably congested.

          5                 I believe the alternative to this

          6  plan must be explored and I question the veracity of

          7  the Department's finding of no impact from this

          8  plan, and the three impacts that they say are not an

          9  impact are that there is no significant adverse

         10  traffic impacts, I don't believe it; not cause

         11  potentially significant traffic-related noise

         12  impact, I don't believe it; and, not cause a

         13  potentially significant adverse traffic-related air

         14  quality impact, I don't believe that either, and I

         15  don't think you should either.

         16                 The interim plan shifts reliance upon

         17  barges for transport of the City's waste to

         18  Department of Sanitation diesel trucks, which has

         19  nightmarish implications for the air quality of not

         20  just our City but the entire region. The vastly

         21  longer trips which each garbage hauling truck will

         22  take will increase the generation of highly

         23  polluting particulate dense diesel exhaust on both

         24  sides of the Hudson River. This is exactly opposite

         25  of the direction we should be moving in, as air
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          2  pollution levels and the levels of respiratory

          3  elements rise in our region. While the barges used

          4  under the old plan are relatively low-pollution

          5  generators and generally had comparably shorter

          6  distances to travel, this new plan multiples

          7  distance, number of truck trips and particulate

          8  emission output.

          9                 I am going to skip ahead.

         10                 Even in the best case scenario, were

         11  it possible to make all of these trips at night,

         12  which they said they will do some during the day,

         13  without the shift in hours generating any additional

         14  negative impacts, this would simply have the result

         15  of extending the hours of horrendous congestion, air

         16  quality contamination around the Hudson River

         17  crossings, exits and entrances, well into the

         18  evening and early morning hours.

         19                 The estimates that I looked at says

         20  there will be at least 400 more truck trips a day to

         21  the Hudson River crossings right of way, and I also,

         22  they said there wouldn't be any increase, I don't

         23  believe that either, I believe that will double over

         24  the next year.

         25                 The Holland and the Lincoln Tunnels
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          2  are at or in the district I represent, and I can't

          3  -- I mean, I was very alarmed that they had not

          4  even talked with Robert Grotel about the impacts in

          5  the Midtown and Clinton Hell's Kitchen areas where,

          6  I mean for them to be adding traffic to an area

          7  where the City itself has already acknowledged that

          8  there are intolerable traffic problems is just

          9  outrageous, and it is nice for them to say they are

         10  going to get in touch with them now, but they have

         11  developed this entire plan in a vacuum of what the

         12  actual conditions are all along the lower west side

         13  of Manhattan.

         14                 I would encourage anyone just to take

         15  a look at the entrances to the Holland and Lincoln

         16  Tunnel any time of the day or night. There is

         17  virtually no time when there isn't horrendous

         18  back-ups into both the residential areas and also

         19  causing havoc on the businesses which are struggling

         20  to exist, particularly those light manufacturing

         21  businesses of which our City's economic health

         22  depends, and which we don't have enough of and

         23  depend too much on Wall Street.

         24                 Federally EPA air quality monitors in

         25  these areas have shown some of the worst air
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          2  pollution and airborne particulate levels in the

          3  country, and because of their violation of federal

          4  clean air standards, these areas have been

          5  determined air quality, non-attainment zones and hot

          6  spots, so to add more traffic is just

          7  unconscionable.

          8                 Because of my concerns about this, I

          9  have been drafting and I am going to introduce

         10  legislation in the next session in the Senate to

         11  require the Department of Sanitation utilize only

         12  clean fuel compressed natural gas vehicles, and for

         13  them not to make that a part of this plan as well

         14  just shows how shortsighted and how they have not

         15  thought this through, particularly as it is going to

         16  have a huge impact on us as we go into the next

         17  century, and that is what we are going to need to

         18  do, is to use compressed natural gas vehicles.

         19                 Of course, though, I am sure I will

         20  be able to pass it immediately in the State Senate,

         21  short of that it would be good for DOS to -- don't

         22  look at me like that, Stanley, it's going to happen

         23  -- short of that it would be a good idea for DOS to

         24  make themselves comply with that.

         25                 Also, once in place, there is nothing
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          2  that says that DOS' Interim plan will not turn into

          3  a permanent one or last for an incredibly long

          4  period of time. Remember that the Freshkills

          5  Landfill, the closure of which is really in large

          6  part precipitated, this plan was open 50 years ago

          7  as an interim measure as well.

          8                 Without a long-term plan in place to

          9  replace this one, DOS should not be allowed to move

         10  forward on implementation of this plan under the

         11  assumption that it will be terminated in the near

         12  future.

         13                 We must also examine whether or not

         14  this plan will have the effect of reducing DOS'

         15  ability to collect garbage in a timely fashion,

         16  given that trucks will have substantially longer to

         17  go to drop off their load. The frequency and

         18  reliability of both residential and street can

         19  collection is already terribly problematic as it is,

         20  and anything that reduces the efficiency of DOS as

         21  garbage collection efforts would have a devastating

         22  impact on residential and business neighborhoods

         23  alike. You need only go out to look at how, as it

         24  is, the street collection, can collections are

         25  already overflowing very early in the day. They
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          2  remain that way throughout the day, and for them to

          3  in any way suffer from more pick-ups would just

          4  cause more problems on our streets.

          5                 If the City plans to make up the

          6  slack by purchasing more vehicles, this will, of

          7  course, only add more traffic and air pollution, so

          8  it just continues the -- it becomes a treadmill of

          9  traffic and pollution. And, again, if they are going

         10  to purchase more vehicles, they should only be

         11  purchasing CNG.

         12                 The entire debacle we face highlights

         13  the troubling failing on the part of this

         14  Administration to reduce the amount of garbage

         15  generated by the City, we should have been spending

         16  the last six years expanding our recycling efforts,

         17  and I know you have been a leader in that battle as

         18  well, Mr. Chair, to bring these levels down,

         19  educating the public about the need for recycling

         20  implementing more source separation programs and

         21  increasing the frequency of recycling pick-ups.

         22  Instead, we find ourselves in this situation with

         23  more and more garbage being generated and fewer

         24  options located farther away to which garbage must

         25  be transported. But responsibility must not be
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          2  advocated at this point. Any new garbage disposal

          3  plan, interim or otherwise, must not make our

          4  terrible traffic and air pollution problems worse.

          5  We have to formulate an environmentally responsible

          6  plan which reemphasizes reduction of the waste

          7  stream and utilizes lower polluting methods, such as

          8  barge and rail for transporting the garbage we do

          9  generate to its ultimate destination.

         10                 So, I implore you, Mr. Chair, and the

         11  members of the Committee and the members of the

         12  Council to continue in your close examination of

         13  this plan and lead the Administration towards a more

         14  environmentally safe one for everyone in New York

         15  City and indeed throughout the New York region.

         16                 I want to make one additional point.

         17  You know, right now the sanitation is transferred

         18  out from three sites, one on the east side, two on

         19  the west side, but remember, under this it is all

         20  going to just go through the Lincoln and Holland

         21  Tunnel, so as it is, I mean just imagine squeezing

         22  all that additional traffic and what I would argue

         23  is going to be more traffic through those two access

         24  points, and you see just how terrible this plan

         25  really is.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Senator, I

          3  appreciate what you are saying, and that is why I

          4  said as the Commissioner was leaving that you have

          5  only two choices at this particular point, one is to

          6  implement as soon as possible the long-range plan,

          7  which is acceptable, and which we will utilize in

          8  marine transfer stations, and the other choice is

          9  unacceptable and something that we will not do; and

         10  that is, fail to close Freshkills. We must close

         11  Freshkills on time, and therefore we must implement

         12  the long-range plan. And I think the motivating

         13  factor for the long-range plan is going to be this

         14  interim plan. It is going to be very difficult for

         15  all of us.

         16                 I thank you very much once again.

         17                 SENATOR DUANE: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And we miss you.

         19                 Tim Forker.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Wait, Stan.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I hear a very

         22  familiar voice from the back of me. Do you know her?

         23                 SENATOR DUANE: She looks familiar.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Allow me to

         25  introduce Council Member Quinn. Your new Council

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            205

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  member, serving her first term.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Actually I just

          4  had two comments, Senator.

          5                 One, you know when you are right, you

          6  are right. That was excellent testimony. And

          7  secondly, on a more serious note, I want to thank

          8  you for raising the issue about natural gas, and I

          9  hope that was raised before I was at the hearing,

         10  and I regret not having raised it with the

         11  Commissioner, but I think that is a point and

         12  anything that the Council, you know, we should do to

         13  help with your legislation in Albany, I know when I

         14  worked for you in the City we worked on that, but

         15  that would not make this interim plan good, but it

         16  would certainly make it more bearable.

         17                 SENATOR DUANE: I just also want to

         18  add just for the record, that our letter, our joint

         19  letter to Mr. Grotel did raise this whole issue, so

         20  I am also taken aback that Mr. Grotel did not raise

         21  it with the Department of Sanitation. So maybe we

         22  will enter that into the record as well so it shows

         23  for how long we have been concerned about this. But

         24  thank you, Council member.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Someone said you
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          2  might have mispoken. You do realize of course there

          3  are three points of exit from Manhattan, Holland

          4  Tunnel, Lincoln Tunnel and the George Washington

          5  Bridge.

          6                 SENATOR DUANE: Yes but --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: In your area it

          8  is going to be the Holland Tunnel and the Lincoln

          9  Tunnel, I understand.

         10                 SENATOR DUANE: Yes, but even more,

         11  all of that, the east side, that used to go out from

         12  the east side marine transfer station, virtually all

         13  of that, if not all of that is going to go out now

         14  through the Holland or the Lincoln Tunnel.

         15                 So, I didn't mean to imply that none

         16  of it is going to go there, but whereas the garbage

         17  was now split among three different sites, it is now

         18  going to be squeezed through two sites. That is true

         19  that the Upper Manhattan is going to go out of the

         20  --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I understand,

         22  but we have always maintained there is life above

         23  96th Street.

         24                 SENATOR DUANE: No, no, I know that.

         25  But the marine transfer station on the east side
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          2  used to take the sanitation from districts 6 and 8

          3  and probably some of 3, too, though I would have to

          4  look at my map again to make sure, but now 6 and 8

          5  are going to go through the Lincoln Tunnel as well,

          6  as opposed to the way it used to go out from the

          7  east side marine transfer station.

          8                 And you know, I represent very

          9  magnanimous areas, we are already siting a large

         10  number of facilities along the west side in a very

         11  collegial way. As you know we thought we had an

         12  agreement with the Department of Sanitation where

         13  they would leave Ganesvoort and we found other

         14  locations for their Department of Sanitation trucks

         15  again doing a --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are correct.

         17                 SENATOR DUANE: But now as you see,

         18  the Department of Sanitation is backing off what we

         19  believe was an ironclad agreement to get off

         20  Ganesvoort, so they start with a disadvantage when I

         21  hear them talk about their plans because long-term

         22  planning is actually not something that they do

         23  well.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, they are

         25  going to have to do it here, there is going to be
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          2  motivation to do it. Because there is just a certain

          3  amount of time that people of the City are going to

          4  put up with this additional traffic, this additional

          5  problem. Thank you, again.

          6                 SENATOR DUANE: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Tim Forker, of

          8  the Manhattan Borough President's Office.

          9                 MR. FORKER: Good afternoon, Chairman

         10  Michels and other members of the Committee. My name

         11  is Tim Forker, and I am pleased to be here to

         12  present Manhattan Borough President C. Virginia

         13  Fields' comments on the Sanitation Department's

         14  proposed interim export plan for Manhattan.

         15                 But before I get into my comments, I

         16  just wanted to add my voice to Senator Duane and

         17  Council Member Quinn's call for cleaner fleets of

         18  Sanitation trucks. There are many ways they can go

         19  about that and some require, such as CNG, to redo

         20  the whole infrastructure. They could also

         21  immediately start using an ultra-low sulphur diesel

         22  fuel that is available and currently being used by

         23  New York City Transit.

         24                 In the interest of time, I think I

         25  will try to summarize the written testimony that I
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          2  am giving you. There are basically two major parts

          3  to this testimony. First, it is crucial to once

          4  again look at the big picture. The Freshkills

          5  Landfill needs to be closed in a timely manner, but

          6  even after the landfill is closed, garbage will

          7  continue to be generated across the five boroughs

          8  into the next millennium, just as it has done in

          9  this one.

         10                 The City needs to be expeditiously

         11  putting together a long-term plan that does not add

         12  traffic to Manhattan's already overcongested

         13  streets, further foul our pollutant-laden air or

         14  increase the din that plagues our ears.

         15                 The Sanitation Department has already

         16  stated that its interim export program that will

         17  probably extend years beyond the closure of

         18  Freshkills Landfill, however, interim solutions

         19  should not become the stopping place or even an

         20  extended rest stop.

         21                 The City Council, the Mayor and the

         22  rest of the City's leaders, must focus on what to do

         23  beyond 2002. It is critical that the Council keep

         24  its sites on implementation of the long-term plan

         25  and it is very good to hear you, Mr. Chairman,
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          2  emphasize that.

          3                 In terms of the Manhattan Interim

          4  export plan, I think we should recognize that

          5  Sanitation is now charged with doing, making the

          6  best of a bad situation, that is, replacing the, if

          7  you will, elegant marine transfer system, with a

          8  truck-based system.

          9                 Many of the reasons why the pressure

         10  needs to be kept establishing the long-term system,

         11  are suggested by the environmental assessment of the

         12  interim export plan. And the Borough President has

         13  many serious concerns about the interim system,

         14  despite the fact that sanitation has found that

         15  there is no "significant" impact.

         16                 The Borough President remains

         17  concerned that the Interim plan will impose new

         18  traffic, air quality and noise impacts in Manhattan

         19  communities.

         20                 Although export, the export procedure

         21  in the Interim plan seems straightforward, as people

         22  have already noted, Sanitation's own analysis admits

         23  that there is a lot of uncertainty about how the

         24  system will really work.

         25                 In particular, the analysis leaves
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          2  open the question of how many trips will be made

          3  during the daytime or nighttime hours, which makes

          4  assessing the specific impacts more difficult.

          5                 At the crossings, the environmental

          6  assessment predicts that there will be no

          7  significant impact because basically using the CEQR

          8  cookbook, they say that less than 30 trucks will be

          9  passing through any intersection during a peak hour.

         10                 But it is important to note that this

         11  same guidance states that a significant impact is

         12  also possible when traffic, when less than 30

         13  additional vehicles are added, especially when the

         14  vehicles are trucks or buses, which is the case

         15  here.

         16                 This has a direct affect on what we

         17  are faced with in terms of air quality. The

         18  environmental assessment also contends that there

         19  will not be a significant impact here, but does

         20  admit that the ambient levels of PM 10 particles,

         21  the soot particles, will increase. And it finds that

         22  at a site around the Holland Tunnel, average

         23  concentrations will increase to about 45 micrograms

         24  per cubic meter in terms of the annual average.

         25                 While this is startlingly close to
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          2  the national health standard limit of 50 micrograms

          3  per cubic meter. But perhaps even more of a concern,

          4  it represents an increase of about six and a half

          5  micrograms on that annual average, which is,

          6  according to Sanitation's own estimate, about 16

          7  percent above the existing levels.

          8                 There seems to be a reliance on the

          9  standard to find out what is significant, but this

         10  kind of an increase certainly does seem significant

         11  to us.

         12                 Equally troubling, and perhaps the

         13  most noticeable thing for City residents is the

         14  noise to be generated by loaded trucks that are

         15  bound for New Jersey leaving the Sanitation garages.

         16  At night on the streets, for example, on the upper

         17  east side, near the District 5 and 8 garage, which

         18  in just a few years, as you know, will become the

         19  District 6 and 8 garage, thus making that fleet

         20  quite a bit larger, according to the analysis

         21  scenario that was in the EAS, approximately 13

         22  trucks would leave that garage at 3:00 a.m., but it

         23  appears that the noise assessment really only uses

         24  about six trucks for its analysis. There is a big

         25  question mark there.
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          2                 There is also a big question mark

          3  about what is a significant noise. The analysis that

          4  we have seen in the environmental assessment follows

          5  by road the CEQR manual guidelines for noise impacts

          6  for traffic. But this procedure really does not

          7  recognize that noise at night is usually perceived

          8  as more intrusive and more of a problem.

          9                 For example, the noise of even a

         10  single rumbling sanitation truck at 3:00 a.m. is

         11  capable of ruining a nice sleep for many, many

         12  people.

         13                 The analysis should follow the lead

         14  of other noise analyses that have been done recently

         15  and apply sort of a penalty for nighttime noise. For

         16  example, this Administration has done so in the

         17  Economic Development Corporation's recent helicopter

         18  plan, which for all of its flaws at least did

         19  recognize that nighttime noise had to be factored

         20  in.

         21                 The analysis should also include a

         22  measure beyond an average hourly measure, and look

         23  at an instantaneous sort of measure, such as a sound

         24  exposure level, to take into account sort of single

         25  noise events that really could ruin a night's sleep.
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          2                 Just to finish off here, the negative

          3  affects of Manhattan's communities that are detailed

          4  in the environmental analysis for truck noise,

          5  traffic congestion and more toxic diesel

          6  particulates being spewed into our already polluted

          7  air, underscores the need to reexamine this plan and

          8  to rapidly identify and implement alternatives to a

          9  truck-based export system for the long-term.

         10                 Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         12  much. As usual it is very interesting and very

         13  knowledgeable testimony. I appreciate it.

         14                 Next we are going to have Hagen

         15  Maroney, from Senator Martin Connor's Office. Is he

         16  here? Hagen Maroney? No, okay.

         17                 Lisa Schreibman and John McCrory, the

         18  State Transportation Campaign.

         19                 Welcome, John. It is good to have you

         20  here. Your newsletter is very interesting.

         21                 MR. McCRORY: Lisa Schreibman, who was

         22  originally supposed to appear with me from the

         23  Tri-State Transportation Campaign has already

         24  distributed the testimony from Tri-State to you,

         25  along with the press statement that the Tri-State
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          2  Transportation Campaign released earlier this

          3  morning, and I believe you have both of those

          4  documents.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, thank you

          6  very much. I appreciate it.

          7                 MR. McCRORY: And the reason she was

          8  called away is that Tri-State Transportation

          9  Campaign has been getting so many responses, that to

         10  handle the load she had to return to the office and

         11  help out. So, it is obviously an important issue.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But you are

         13  here.

         14                 MR. McCRORY: I was simply prepared to

         15  sort of back her up and Tri-State up on many of the

         16  figures and consult, but I do have a few responses

         17  to what emerged today that I can summarize quickly.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Please do.

         19                 MR. McCRORY: First, I think it is

         20  interesting that what most of today's testimony

         21  focused on was what is not in EAS, and all of the

         22  things that could and should have been studied that

         23  weren't. And the sum total of what I saw from the

         24  questions you asked and the responses we heard was

         25  that what the EAS studied was really nothing like
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          2  the actual program that is going to be implemented

          3  in a few weeks.

          4                 One simple example is that in the

          5  negative declaration, for example, it mentions that

          6  they studied the distances to all four facilities,

          7  that they are contracting with, in order to come up

          8  with how much time it would take for the garbage

          9  trucks to get from the garage or the centroid to the

         10  facility in New Jersey where it will be dumping its

         11  garbage. But if you look at the actual charts in the

         12  EAS they did not study from Manhattan going to the

         13  three destinations Manhattan trash will be going to,

         14  they only studied the distance and the time it took

         15  to get to the Newark incinerator.

         16                 And the reason is when they prepared

         17  this EAS several months ago, they were not

         18  contemplating that trash anywhere but the

         19  incinerator. All of Manhattan's trash, they had

         20  hoped, would go to the incinerator in Newark, but

         21  because of problems with how much capacity is

         22  actually available, since that incinerator is also

         23  used by Essex County, there simply wasn't enough

         24  room for Manhattan's trash, therefore they had to at

         25  the last minute contract with one of the highest

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            217

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  bidders, solid waste transfer and recycling, also in

          3  Newark, for an additional 200 tons, and they had to

          4  take the remaining 300, 400 tons from Manhattan and

          5  send that to one of Waste Management's transfer

          6  stations in Elizabeth, so that extra length of

          7  travel to Waste Management's Elizabeth facility, or

          8  the solid waste transfer and recycling in Newark is

          9  nowhere in this environmental assessment statement,

         10  and that would seem to call into question all of the

         11  travel time for the trucks that will be going there,

         12  and consequently the times they will be returning.

         13                 So, how can you know how many trucks

         14  will be traveling through an intersection if you

         15  don't have the correct times for probably about,

         16  between a quarter and a third of the trucks that

         17  will be leaving Manhattan every day.

         18                 The other issue is that this is based

         19  on a -- a lot of the numbers we hear are how many

         20  tons a day are they exporting, is it 2,300 tons? How

         21  many trucks is it going to be? Is it going to be 347

         22  trucks a day?

         23                 Well, the 2,300 tons figure is what

         24  is in the contract, but as I understand it, that is

         25  a daily average based on operating 365 days a year,
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          2  you take the annual total of trash that is produced

          3  in Manhattan, now will be exported and divided by

          4  365, but Sanitation only collects about 312 days a

          5  year. They don't collect on Christmas Day and they

          6  don't collect on Sundays, except to catch up on a

          7  little bit which is less than one percent that

          8  doesn't get picked up during their normal

          9  operations.

         10                 So to get a more accurate number of

         11  how many tons a day and how many trucks a day we are

         12  talking about, you have to divide the annual total

         13  by 312 to get the real number, and that results in a

         14  tonnage that is 17 percent higher.

         15                 In addition, some days of the week

         16  are busier than others, and as the EAS says, they

         17  use the peak day of Tuesday, as the example for much

         18  of their snars (phonetic), but it is unclear in EAS

         19  which figures reflect Tuesday peak tonnages and

         20  numbers and which reflect weekly average, that daily

         21  average that is just for any day of the week.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You know, there

         23  is an older expression which says figures don't lie,

         24  but liars figure. I am not accusing anyone of lying,

         25  obviously, it is just an expression.
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          2                 The fact of the matter is, you can

          3  have whatever statistics you want here, when they

          4  start implementing it and there is going to be

          5  traffic congestion and problems all over the place,

          6  it is going to be revealed very quickly. So nobody

          7  is going to be fooled by this. It is not one of

          8  those things that can be put under the rug and say

          9  it can't happen. It is going to be open and

         10  revealing to everybody as to what took place and

         11  what is taking place here.

         12                 So, they have got to be very careful,

         13  and understand that we are going to be watching you,

         14  and we are going to count on the fact that they are

         15  telling us what the truth is.

         16                 MR. McCRORY: That is why I was very

         17  happy to hear that Commissioner Farrell is willing

         18  to do a follow-up study on a quarterly basis of the

         19  impacts, and I think there are a lot of people in

         20  this room that could help them determine what sorts

         21  of things they could measure to, and I would call

         22  upon the Department and hopefully the Council to

         23  encourage them to do this, to help determine what

         24  exactly should they be measuring and what is it that

         25  New Yorkers care about.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The only thing I

          3  fear is the traffic congestion in this City leading

          4  to and from New Jersey is so terrible now that if it

          5  gets worse, people won't even realize it. That is

          6  always a problem.

          7                 Thank you very much.

          8                 MR. McCRORY: That is about all I

          9  have.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I appreciate it.

         11  You have always been very helpful. Please keep in

         12  touch.

         13                 MR. McCRORY: I will.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you.

         15                 Next we are going to hear from some

         16  people from New Jersey, and I hope they are still

         17  here.

         18                 Michael Gordon, is he here?

         19                 Par Lewis?

         20                 Are you from New Jersey?

         21                 MS. AKSAY: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Why doesn't the

         23  New Jersey crew come up here and identify

         24  yourselves. Is anyone else here from New Jersey?

         25  Just you. And you are Reverend Joseph Parrish?
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          2                 REVEREND PARRISH: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Would you join

          4  us. There is an extra chair there, if necessary.

          5                 I have an Evin Aksay. That is you,

          6  okay.

          7                 I want to ask you when you do speak

          8  to identify yourselves, because this is all being

          9  tape recorded, and in order to get the transcript

         10  accurate, we have to know who you are when you

         11  speak.

         12                 And Eduardo Kracilousky. Is that you?

         13                 MR. KRACILOUSKY: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And that's it, I

         15  guess.

         16                 Will you identify yourselves, each of

         17  you, when you speak. And you can take your turn in

         18  any way you wish to speak.

         19                 MS. AKSAY: Evin Aksay, from the

         20  Ironbound Committee Against Toxic Waste. The

         21  Ironbound is home to the Essex County Resource

         22  Recovery, as better put as the incinerator. There is

         23  a lot of issues that were touched on today that I am

         24  grateful for that raise a lot of concerns about the

         25  impacts of the Department of Sanitation plan, but I
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          2  really wish to speak today about garbage that is

          3  being burned in New Jersey.

          4                 Now, I am aware that New York did not

          5  have and has no intention of putting an incinerator

          6  here because of an environmental and health hazard.

          7  I am glad you recognize that, but I am angered that

          8  you feel it is okay to incinerate in New Jersey.

          9                 It is almost as if your consciousness

         10  no longer exists beyond the Hudson River.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, you did

         12  hear some comments I made with respect to that. I am

         13  concerned about that also.

         14                 MS. AKSAY: Yes, and you had some

         15  questions about the incinerator, which I will touch

         16  on in a little bit.

         17                 When you did your environmental

         18  impact study, I am wondering, you know, as I heard

         19  from the Department of Sanitation that they didn't

         20  seem to look at the environmental impacts on New

         21  Jersey --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: They didn't do

         23  an EIS either. They did an environmental assessment

         24  and and a negative declaration, which our position

         25  has always been, since we heard about, that we think

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            223

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  they should have done an environmental impact

          3  statement. And if they do, they should definitely

          4  include New Jersey, or any one of these facilities.

          5                 MS. AKSAY: It is part of the whole

          6  Department of Sanitation plan, so they should

          7  include all of the areas which will be impacted by

          8  the plan.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I think it

         10  impacts what we call the metropolitan area, which

         11  certainly includes New Jersey.

         12                 MS. AKSAY: And it is not just New

         13  Jersey, it is also areas which I am aware will be

         14  impacted, Connecticut, Virginia, from what I am

         15  aware.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I would say

         17  Virginia is part of our metropolitan area, but

         18  certainly Connecticut is.

         19                 MS. AKSAY: But more importantly, is

         20  that the incinerator not only affects our air but it

         21  affects all of our air, and if you go by the

         22  incinerator any time during the day or night, the

         23  smell is very atrocious and it is not something that

         24  I wish upon anybody. I have gone by Freshkills

         25  several times and I am aware that it is very, it
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          2  smells there as well, and it is something that I

          3  don't -- I am sad that they had to go through that

          4  and I don't wish the burden of carrying everybody's

          5  garbage for any one community.

          6                 But other major concerns which have

          7  been touched on are truck traffic. Now, during the

          8  day I see New York trucks go by. I live in Jersey

          9  City, I go back and forth between Jersey and New

         10  York quite a bit, and Newark, and I see New York

         11  trucks going up and down what is called 1 and 9,

         12  Raymond Boulevard, any time during the day. So after

         13  7:00, after 7:00 p.m., I question that highly.

         14                 And more importantly, it doesn't

         15  really matter what time of day they go, they travel,

         16  it is the fact that there is a lot of truck traffic,

         17  night or day they have an impact. And the pollution

         18  from the diesel trucks is also very visible.

         19                 Newark has three or four times the

         20  highest, higher than the State of New Jersey,

         21  asthma. Asthma is affecting our children, children

         22  in Newark, in New York, and it is a disease that is

         23  killing our families and our children.

         24                 Now, you might be wondering, okay,

         25  well, we should be addressing our state and local
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          2  officials in New Jersey. Believe me, we have been,

          3  and we are continuing to do that on a daily basis.

          4                 But I want to address what is one of

          5  the potential, one of the sources of our problem,

          6  and I emphasize our because it is not just Newark,

          7  it is not just Elizabeth, it is New York, and all of

          8  the boroughs around it.

          9                 And the other issues that were

         10  touched on today that I want to clarify, waste

         11  transfer stations. Now, the garbage that goes to

         12  waste transfer stations, they do whatever they have

         13  to do at the waste transfer stations and they send

         14  their garbage, after it has been processed at the

         15  waste transfer stations, to incinerators and

         16  landfills. So, they should also look at the amount

         17  of garbage that they are sending to the waste

         18  transfer stations, which indirectly go to the

         19  incinerator as well.

         20                 And some of the comments that were

         21  made by the gentlemen here from the Department of

         22  Sanitation that were here earlier, they say that no

         23  neighborhoods are affected and I believe folks in

         24  New York have already been astounded by them being

         25  able to say that, because they know here in New York
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          2  communities are affected, residential neighborhoods

          3  are affected, and also there are a great amount of

          4  community and residential neighborhoods affected in

          5  New Jersey as well.

          6                 As I mentioned before, these trucks

          7  go through, not only the Turnpike, there is 1 and 9

          8  and the incinerator is within blocks from a housing,

          9  several housing projects, within blocks of

         10  elementary schools, and residents in Newark,

         11  Harrison, Kearny, so this definitely affects

         12  neighborhoods.

         13                 And the number of -- the comment was

         14  made that the number of vehicles aren't significant.

         15  And one in 500 or some number like that, but the

         16  vehicles of garbage incinerator trucks, have a large

         17  impact, mainly in points that were mentioned

         18  earlier, the diesel trucks and the diesel fumes,

         19  black smoke blowing around schools and residents, it

         20  is of great concern. One truck, 20 trucks, how ever

         21  many, they are all significant.

         22                 And one thing that you made a comment

         23  yourself earlier about, how you don't want to take

         24  care of other people's waste, and my comment to you

         25  is, well, why should we?
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          2                 I see you have no problem letting

          3  other people take care of New York's waste, now I

          4  don't want to get into an argument of our waste,

          5  your waste, I know there have been comments made by

          6  Giuliani in previous incidents where New Jersey and

          7  State come to New York to contribute to the amount

          8  of waste, so it's okay if we deliver the waste back

          9  to them. But the most important thing, what I am

         10  primarily trying to get across is that we are all in

         11  need of dealing with our garbage in a more

         12  responsible way, whether it is New Jersey, New York,

         13  whomever. We are not taking all of the necessary

         14  precautions and the measures to deal with our

         15  garbage. We don't reuse, we don't recycle enough,

         16  and there are a number of other steps that we all

         17  could be taking.

         18                 And now, some of the other things

         19  that were asked earlier about the incinerator, the

         20  capacity of the incinerator. Now, I don't know if

         21  you are aware, but Essex County Utilities Authority

         22  is putting together a new plan, and they are getting

         23  all of the municipalities in Essex County to agree

         24  to send all of their garbage to their incinerator.

         25  And it is not just Essex County, it is Hudson
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          2  County, Bergen County, a lot of counties all

          3  throughout New Jersey send their garbage to the

          4  incinerator, the Essex County incinerator. And also,

          5  Essex County incinerator receives garbage

          6  internationally from Connecticut, from Virginia,

          7  Pennsylvania, and there is a great concern about the

          8  incinerator about health and how safe it is.

          9                 Just last December there was a fire

         10  there at the incinerator because material of unknown

         11  -- well, they later found that it was actually a

         12  household by-product, it was delivered from I

         13  believe Illinois, I am not exactly certain on the

         14  source, and it was taken in and a fire broke out and

         15  the firemen who came to the incinerator were not

         16  prepared to deal with the hazardous conditions of

         17  the smoke that resulted from the fire and were sent

         18  to the hospital, about 40 firemen.

         19                 And I wanted to address that to you

         20  because you were concerned about the safeties of the

         21  incinerator, you were concerned about violations and

         22  I can guarantee that that incinerator, as long as

         23  including Waste Management and BFI have all had

         24  violations and I can get those contracts to you. And

         25  just as an example, I want to stress what happened
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          2  last December, and share what will happen again as

          3  more garbage unmonitored or otherwise continue to

          4  come to this incinerator and also other facilities.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The incinerator

          6  is owned by Port Authority, isn't it?

          7                 MS. AKSAY: Yes. It is owned by Port

          8  Authority, it is run by American Refuse.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And Waste

         10  Management?

         11                 MS. AKSAY: Waste Management is

         12  another contracting agency that deals with Port

         13  Authority, yes.

         14                 And a question was asked about

         15  emission standards of the incinerator. Now, I do

         16  want to notify you that New Jersey has in the past

         17  few years relaxed its emission standards to allow

         18  these facilities to operate without difficulties,

         19  and I can furnish documentation and show you what

         20  the emission standards are.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Please do.

         22                 MS. AKSAY: That is really all I

         23  wanted to say. I just want to close in saying that

         24  25 years ago Philadelphia and New York buried New

         25  Jersey in landfills, and 25 years later we are not
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          2  going to let that happen again with incineration.

          3                 We are the "garden state" and not the

          4  garbage state.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 MR. KRACILOUSKY: Good afternoon. My

          7  name is Eduardo Kracilousky. I am fairly new in this

          8  environmental business. Actually I began to recycle

          9  and to compost only about three years ago. I am a

         10  member of SWAP, Solid Waste Alternative Partners. We

         11  are a new group, and groups like mine are growing in

         12  New Jersey. We don't want the incinerators, we don't

         13  want to burn our garbage. I live in Montclair and my

         14  garbage is burned today at this moment in the

         15  incinerator in Newark, and about 20 towns in Essex

         16  County are being literally coerced to enter into a

         17  new voluntary contract with the county to keep

         18  burning our garbage in this incinerator for another

         19  ten years. Now, we are all opposing it.

         20                 As people begin to know more about

         21  the flaws of this new contract, and about the

         22  consequences of municipal waste incineration, they

         23  are beginning to speak out.

         24                 I want really to make you New Yorkers

         25  generally aware of the fact that I live about 13
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          2  miles from this. The incinerator burning my and your

          3  garbage is about six miles from my house and seven

          4  miles from this building, and actually about ten

          5  miles from Central Park.

          6                 Linden, for those who do not know, is

          7  a New Jersey town 13 miles from here. Now, you may

          8  ask why I bring Linden, you know, what does it have

          9  to do with garbage incineration. Well, your town in

         10  1992 fought the building of an incinerator, you may

         11  recognize this, it is a copy of a booklet, that was

         12  in 1992, it says A Tale of Two Incinerators, How New

         13  York City Opposes Incineration In New Jersey, While

         14  Supporting It At Home.

         15                 I suppose some of you look young

         16  enough that may not be knowledgeable of it, maybe

         17  you saw some of the records, others probably are

         18  very well aware of what happened at those times in

         19  these towns.

         20                 Our garbage, your garbage is being

         21  burned today six miles away from here. To me it is a

         22  paradox and it is a contradiction. On any day at any

         23  time, depending on the wind's direction and force,

         24  you, we now may be inhaling our own garbage. In

         25  addition, if you happen to like fish, you may even
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          2  chew on some of the mercury extracted from your

          3  garbage by the process of incineration.

          4                 How do you like this reality? I mean,

          5  it is a reality. I mean, we cannot touch it but it

          6  goes inside our bodies, and this reality is created

          7  by New Yorkers, because according to the figures I

          8  read, you recycle only about 14 percent.

          9                 Maybe I just heard from somebody who

         10  told me it is wrong, it is about 17 percent.

         11                 Now, I know Rhode Island recycles 70

         12  percent. I know that, I read, I learned recently

         13  that all Austin, Texas, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

         14  --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Seventy percent?

         16                 MR. KRANCILOUSKY: Seventy percent,

         17  Rhode Island.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Seven zero?

         19                 MR. KRANCILOUSKY: Seven zero, yes.

         20                 In Montclair we claim --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It depends on

         22  what you count.

         23                 MR. KRANCILOUSKY: In Montclair we

         24  claim we recycle 60 percent.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And I went to
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          2  Newark and they said 50 percent, and they included

          3  things that we don't count. We don't count abandoned

          4  cars and C and D --

          5                 MR. KRANCILOUSKY: I realize that. I

          6  realize --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You don't count

          8  that criteria --

          9                 MR. KRANCILOUSKY: I know the criteria

         10  is different, I am just talking numbers. It looks to

         11  me like there is a problem here, that we don't

         12  recycle enough. Not only New Yorkers, but New Jersey

         13  also.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We probably have

         15  as good a record as anyplace for recycling.

         16                 MR. KRANCILOUSKY: I bet that if I

         17  walk behind any garbage truck in New York, like I

         18  did behind the garbage trucks in Montclair, I can

         19  show anybody that we, people in the whole area, here

         20  in the metropolitan area, we don't do a good job of

         21  recycling.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I think we

         23  should do better, but I don't think this country

         24  does as good a job as it should.

         25                 MR. KRANCILOUSKY: We should increase

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            234

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  100 percent our recycling in Montclair. I believe

          3  here in New York if we would do that, then we

          4  wouldn't be sitting here and talking about all of

          5  this.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Very difficult

          7  to compare Montclair to the City of New York.

          8                 Go ahead.

          9                 MR. KRANCILOUSKY: It's okay.

         10                 The main point I am trying to make is

         11  that municipal solid waste incineration is

         12  destructive, and in our case it is self-destructive,

         13  because it is coming back to all of us, to our

         14  children and into future generations.

         15                 This incinerator out there is

         16  extracting from our garbage all of the heavy metals,

         17  like mercury, lead and --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Sir, I must tell

         19  you, we know that, we are aware of that, we are

         20  quite aware of all of that.

         21                 MR. KRANCILOUSKY: You are.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I must tell you

         23  one other thing, if you didn't have the incinerator

         24  there, our people wouldn't be going there, and I am

         25  not happy they are going there either.
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          2                 MR. KRANCILOUSKY: Well, the Port

          3  Authority is called the Port Authority of New York

          4  and New Jersey.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That we have

          6  known for 30 years.

          7                 MR. KRANCILOUSKY: It has something to

          8  do with the incinerator.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: There are many

         10  people in this state who want to do away with the

         11  Port Authority.

         12                 MR. KRANCILOUSKY: Well, we too. We

         13  also want to do away with it, really.

         14                 Okay, let me finish.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, please.

         16                 I think your testimony is very

         17  valuable and you just made a good point about the

         18  incinerator and the congestion.

         19                 MR. KRANCILOUSKY: There is one more

         20  general philosophical point I would like to make.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, please.

         22                 MR. KRANCILOUSKY: After listening for

         23  the four hours I was sitting here, it is my first

         24  listening to a situation like this, the ultimate

         25  goal shouldn't be to close. It is the goal to close
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          2  the Freshkills.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is an

          4  ultimate goal.

          5                 MR. KRANCILOUSKY: I think the

          6  ultimate goal is to take the bird's eye view of the

          7  whole point, the whole situation.

          8                 This town, this City, this

          9  metropolitan area, cannot sustain itself without

         10  important food and exporting garbage. If we try to

         11  solve that problem, then we will solve all the other

         12  problems. The point is that your bureaucrats here

         13  are taking a way to problem solving that was made

         14  for a planet who have maybe 2 billion people, 3

         15  billion people. We have 6 billion people now and

         16  growing. We need to take a whole totally different

         17  approach to problem solving. Like many corporations

         18  are even taking that approach, by producing no

         19  garbage. And that is where recycling and composting

         20  comes into.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: This is not

         22  testimony that we have not heard before.

         23                 MR. KRACILOUSKY: Okay, thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 Next.

          3                 MS: LEWIS: Good afternoon,

          4  distinguished panel. I am very happy to be here

          5  today and I want to commend all of the interesting

          6  and insightful questions that you posed to the

          7  Transportation Committee.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Would you please

          9  state your name for the record.

         10                 MS. LEWIS: I am sorry. Pam Lewis from

         11  Cornucopia Network of New Jersey.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I love that name

         13  Cornucopia.

         14                 MS. LEWIS: It means bountiful.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's right.

         16                 MS. LEWIS: It's a basket of good

         17  things. And if we use the analogy of baskets, we can

         18  see we have one of the bad things that is about to

         19  descend upon both of our states, and I was going to

         20  read this beautiful paper that was written by the

         21  president of Cornucopia, but I decided not to read

         22  it right now because my question today is that we

         23  are in a state of emergency about garbage, and this

         24  is really the fact, and it seems to me that we

         25  should immediately look at the senator's proposal
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          2  about the compressed gas. I don't think that this

          3  plan should be initiated without these diesel trucks

          4  being totally eliminated out of the picture and

          5  replaced with the cleaner fuel of trucking. And this

          6  young lady made a very valid point, Newark stinks.

          7                 I was just there the other day, I had

          8  to go and see Senator Latenberg's Office for

          9  something else I was doing, and I was just choking

         10  on the smell of that city. So, now we are preparing

         11  to put even more particulate smelly matter into the

         12  air, and Mr. Chairman, I was very happy that you

         13  brought up the fact with your Department of

         14  Transportation how the independent assessment, they

         15  can't just take for granted that the DEP of New

         16  Jersey has been accurate in assessing the toxicity

         17  of this incinerator's emissions, and I hope you

         18  follow up on that and make sure that it does meet

         19  the standards.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We will. It is

         21  very important to us.

         22                 MS. LEWIS: And the asthma is another

         23  reason why I have become involved in this issue, is

         24  because I know a lot of people who suddenly have

         25  developed asthma in the past couple of years and I
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          2  am trying to understand if these incinerators are

          3  really the culprit. So, I have come today to learn

          4  --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am convinced

          6  the biggest culprit is diesel.

          7                 MS. LEWIS: You do.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And I think most

          9  medical authorities are concerned about particulates

         10  they found in diesel that get into the lungs of

         11  children and they become asthmatics. Or else they

         12  have predisposition to asthmatic.

         13                 MS. LEWIS: But so many people today

         14  that never, ever before. Even older people that I

         15  know that never had asthma in their life are getting

         16  asthma. So, this is why I say it is a state of

         17  emergency. If we don't have clean air, we are not

         18  going to live very much longer as a planet.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Can't disagree

         20  with you.

         21                 MS. LEWIS: Right?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 MS. LEWIS: You are welcome.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I appreciate it.
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          2                 Father.

          3                 REVEREND PARRISH: My name is Joseph

          4  Parrish, I am the rector of St. John's Church in

          5  Elizabeth, New Jersey, and I live in Manhattan.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You live in

          7  Manhattan.

          8                 REVEREND PARRISH: I live in

          9  Manhattan. I am a New York City resident, so you

         10  would represent me.

         11                 I have traveled about, I have

         12  calculated around 153,000 miles back and forth over

         13  these routes that the garbage trucks have been

         14  taking over the last ten years, I have been in New

         15  Jersey since July of 1989.

         16                 On the test rides that they have

         17  already participated in, I am aware that the Burger

         18  King at the corner of Route 1 and 9 and North

         19  Avenue, there are four municipal waste incinerator

         20  trucks parked there eating hamburgers. So the trucks

         21  will bring in business to New Jersey and I guess we

         22  should be happy for that. However, I am afraid the

         23  consumption of hamburgers is not going to offset the

         24  health affects that we will be suffering there.

         25                 I have a Ph.D in medical sciences
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          2  from Harvard University. I write a column in a

          3  newspaper called The Air We Breathe, and I testified

          4  to the Blue Ribbon Committee for EPA and on several

          5  citizen advisory committees for EPA and New Jersey

          6  DEP.

          7                 We have worked steadily trying to

          8  bring down the rate of asthma in the New York City

          9  area, as well as Elizabeth. The three peak asthma,

         10  childhood asthma childhood areas are Elizabeth,

         11  Newark, Red Hook, Brooklyn and South Bronx.

         12                 Those three areas have childhood

         13  asthma rates exceeding 40 percent, we are 40 percent

         14  Elizabeth, 50 in South Bronx and 80 percent in parts

         15  of Brooklyn.

         16                 Just having asthma, I happened to

         17  grow up with asthma, but just having asthma doesn't

         18  sound like a trivial thing, but it is more

         19  significant when we measured out of 4,000 people in

         20  Elizabeth, we had two, actually three asthma deaths

         21  in the last period that we measured that, that is 50

         22  times higher than the national average for childhood

         23  asthma deaths.

         24                 It is striking to have a eight, nine

         25  or ten-year-old die of asthma, and that is typically
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          2  where the death range is occurring.

          3                 They are more active, more outside,

          4  more away from their parents and they die quicker.

          5  Their lives are truncated and the ones who don't die

          6  are severely impaired. And to have 40 percent of

          7  your children in hospitals at one time or another

          8  with asthma, it is a traumatic event.

          9                 So, we are trying to reduce this

         10  rather tragic statistic.

         11                 Also, in the area -- the American

         12  Cancer Society calls us, official known as "Cancer

         13  Alley", it extends from roughly New Brunswick to

         14  Paterson, but the center of Cancer Alley is Newark,

         15  Jersey City and Elizabeth, New Jersey. We have the

         16  highest cancer rates in the country.

         17                 Cancer is caused usually by the

         18  emissions of VOC, volatile organic compounds,

         19  typically from mobile air sources, diesel trucks,

         20  automobiles and other sources. We have a 14-lane New

         21  Jersey Turnpike through Elizabeth, we have a 6-lane

         22  Routes 1 and 9 Highway through Elizabeth, we have

         23  Route 22 just slightly at the border of Elizabeth

         24  and Newark, you know all of the routes, 280, 78 and

         25  so on. I can name them, we are at the crossroads of
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          2  the country. We have the Newark Airport, and as one

          3  747 takes off, it is equivalent to 5,000 automobiles

          4  traveling for 30 miles an hour for five minutes. And

          5  there are a lot of 747s, 727s, 737s, taking off.

          6  This is immediately beside the Fort Lee incinerator.

          7  So, we continuously have an off-flow of incineration

          8  fumes coming across the airport and into Elizabeth

          9  and I am one of the regular reporters and we have

         10  the county is cleverly set up so I can report

         11  something from my county but the people who live

         12  around Essex County can report the odor. It is very

         13  unusual but that is typically what happens in

         14  certain areas, to be sure that not too many people

         15  complain about the stench, which is unbelievable.

         16                 We fought for six years. My diocese

         17  has something called New Jersey Environmental Watch,

         18  we fought for six years to get mercury controls

         19  placed on that incinerator. It was built in 1990, we

         20  finally got them put on in 1997. They are competent

         21  to regulate mercury to a level of about 550 tons,

         22  150,000 tons per year. The new plan for the New York

         23  City garbage coming in there, they have discovered a

         24  loophole in the sizing of incinerator and it will be

         25  increased 80 percent capacity, beyond what its
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          2  current capacity is based on some sort of a steam

          3  limitation.

          4                 So, the controls which are on

          5  currently, which can barely control 550 will

          6  suddenly have to control 985. Obviously they will be

          7  overwhelmed, so we will have more mercury poisoning

          8  in the area. We are one of the highest mercury

          9  levels, childhood blood levels in mercury in the

         10  state, as well as lead. Newark is probably number

         11  one in the country for childhood lead. Currently

         12  permitted 2 tons of lead in the air to come out of

         13  that incinerator per year. It frequently exceeds

         14  that.

         15                 Elizabeth is between the Newark

         16  incinerator and the Rahway incinerator. One is

         17  called Essex County, the other one is union county.

         18  We are strictly between the two and it burns over

         19  500,000 tons itself. So, we are situated in this

         20  area which is Cancer Alley, we have constructed two

         21  major incinerators since --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So you already

         23  have a problem.

         24                 REVEREND PARRISH: Clearly.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And you are
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          2  saying we are going to exacerbate it?

          3                 REVEREND PARRISH: There is no

          4  question.

          5                 We are trying to find out, we are in

          6  non-compliance -- our church was the lead

          7  organization in getting the particulates measure

          8  2.5, which are more deadly than the ten micron

          9  particulates.

         10                 We are in the second year, nearing

         11  the end of that year, which is the federal mandate

         12  standard, and we exceed the particulates, 2.5

         13  particulates in Newark, Elizabeth and Jersey City.

         14  So, we exceed all federal clean air guidelines. We

         15  exceed it for nitrogen oxide, we have exceeded it

         16  for volatile organic compounds and we exceed it for

         17  ozone. So we are the non-compliance center.

         18                 Linden, New Jersey, seeing this

         19  problem, as was mentioned here, fought valiantly

         20  with New York City to prevent the building of a

         21  third incinerator in Linden. And what they found was

         22  they are able to pass local ordinances to prevent

         23  the use of local roads for trucking and waste.

         24                 Linden fought the State of New Jersey

         25  and Linden spent over a million dollars, and Linden
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          2  won.

          3                 There is not that much of a stretch

          4  to see Elizabeth preparing to do the same thing, it

          5  was self-held by the Supreme Court and Linden, and

          6  the State of New Jersey and probably will be held if

          7  Elizabeth or Newark decides to move in the same

          8  direction.

          9                 So, that is an immediate problem that

         10  you may face that you don't realize -- I have heard

         11  people say, well, the Mayor of Elizabeth is going to

         12  test the truck tire pressures and they are going to,

         13  because he is inhibiting some kind of transport

         14  between states, he will be kicked down, but the

         15  local municipalities do have control over the roads,

         16  which means this interim plan may simply not happen.

         17                 So, even though it seems like it is

         18  going to happen, and I know I saw the DOS people

         19  here who think it is going to happen, I would think

         20  there needs to be some fast planning in case it

         21  suddenly doesn't happen.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I might just

         23  comment on the latter in front of us that you didn't

         24  read from.

         25                 REVEREND PARRISH: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Where you make

          3  an accusation against the City Council. And the fact

          4  is this is not our plan, this is the plan of the

          5  Department of Sanitation, and that is why this

          6  hearing is here, to hear about the people's comments

          7  on the plan.

          8                 REVEREND PARRISH: Well, we don't make

          9  accusations against the City Council.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are saying

         11  how can the City Council be so two-faced. We haven't

         12  -- we have not accepted this plan.

         13                 REVEREND PARRISH: Good, I hope you

         14  don't.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We are hearing

         16  about it for the first time in these hearings.

         17                 REVEREND PARRISH: You know, we have,

         18  as a citizen of New York City we have stopped

         19  incineration here --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I think you

         21  heard my statement --

         22                 REVEREND PARRISH: Yes, I know, if we

         23  didn't have an incinerator, but the fact that we do

         24  have an incinerator certainly makes it okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I didn't say
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          2  that.

          3                 REVEREND PARRISH: But understand, you

          4  are trying to have a leverage -- no, the City, you

          5  aren't. I understand you aren't. But the City is --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Because it is

          7  there they are going there.

          8                 REVEREND PARRISH: Right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: If the facility

         10  wasn't there they would find landfill for it.

         11                 REVEREND PARRISH: Well, Elizabeth is

         12  from here to Broadway. That is the distance from

         13  Elizabeth to Staten Island, from here to Broadway;

         14  how far is that? That is very close. I mean we are

         15  basically moving Freshkills across this little water

         16  body that the Goethels Bridge crosses.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Reverend, I am

         18  very glad to listen to you and coming here from New

         19  Jersey. I really appreciate your being here.

         20                 REVEREND PARRISH: Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We will read all

         22  of the materials you give to us and please keep in

         23  touch with us. And if there is anything else you

         24  want us to hear about, let us know. But we are

         25  continuing these hearings and we are continuing to
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          2  do oversight on it.

          3                 MS. LEWIS: When will you make up your

          4  minds on this?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We are not

          6  required to approve or disapprove of this particular

          7  interim plan.

          8                 What we are required to approve or

          9  not approve is the solid waste management plan, the

         10  overall plan, dealing with our solid waste.

         11                 MS. LEWIS: Okay.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And right now I

         13  am hoping that, as you may have heard me say, that

         14  the most important thing is to put in a long range

         15  plan so that this is a temporary, we should reduce

         16  this temporary interim plan to as short a time as

         17  possible.

         18                 But it seems to me that you have a

         19  bigger problem, that even if we don't use your

         20  incinerator, your incinerator is going to be used by

         21  others.

         22                 REVEREND PARRISH: They are expanding

         23  it specifically for New York City, that's the

         24  problem.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You have a
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          2  certain capacity, and that capacity is being used no

          3  matter who uses it.

          4                 REVEREND PARRISH: It wasn't set for

          5  this capacity, it is being expanded specifically for

          6  New York City garbage.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's something

          8  we want to find out about.

          9                 REVEREND PARRISH: We know that is the

         10  case. If it wasn't for the New York City garbage we

         11  would have a more, you know, a smaller incinerator,

         12  now it is double --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We understand

         14  that.

         15                 REVEREND PARRISH: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I want to thank

         17  you very much, each one, for coming over here. And

         18  please keep in touch with us, we appreciate hearing

         19  from you.

         20                 REVEREND PARRISH: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We do want to be

         22  good neighbors.

         23                 Next we will hear from Hagen Maroney

         24  from Senator Martin Connors, the minority leader of

         25  the New York State Senate's Office.
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          2                 MR. MARONEY: Good afternoon. I have a

          3  statement from Senator Martin Connor, the Democratic

          4  Minority Leader in the New York State Senate. I will

          5  be brief. I will just read it quickly.

          6                 The statement at the public hearing

          7  of the New York City Council, Committee on

          8  Environmental Protection concerning the Department

          9  of Sanitation, Interim export contracts.

         10                 The City's first attempt at

         11  developing a long range solid waste management plan

         12  was conducted with more secrecy than a Manhattan

         13  project, and with no input from anyone outside of

         14  Staten island. The result was a document where as

         15  far as Sanitation was concerned all roads led to

         16  Brooklyn.

         17                 The plan they originally produced

         18  would have turned our coastline into the Rivera of

         19  Garbage. This is unfair. All five boroughs produce

         20  garbage, all should do their share.

         21                 Future decisions concerning solid

         22  waste must be developed with real community input.

         23  No sanitation without representation.

         24                 Interim plans by their very nature

         25  are products of a process where the public input is
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          2  even more limited, if such a thing is actually

          3  possible.

          4                 This City's interim waste export

          5  contracts have brought even more garbage to the

          6  already oversaturated Greenpoint Williamsburg area

          7  of Brooklyn.

          8                 We need a moratorium on new transfer

          9  stations in Greenpoint, Williamsburg, Red Hook, and

         10  other areas which are oversaturated with such

         11  facilities, and which every day suffer the

         12  consequences of such oversaturation.

         13                 We also need a cap on the capacity of

         14  these facilities, on the cap that these facilities

         15  are allowed to process. There should be stricter

         16  enforcement of existing laws regarding trash

         17  processing and hauling and facilities with a history

         18  of violations should be closed. We must develop

         19  alternatives to truck-based export, such as

         20  rail-based export facilities. The City's exclusive

         21  focus on the residential portion of our waste stream

         22  is shortsighted and any plan must deal with the

         23  whole picture, residential and commercial.

         24                 New siting regulations must be

         25  written and implemented which restrict clustering of
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          2  such facilities in any community board.

          3                 Such regulations should also increase

          4  distance requirements between these facilities and

          5  any residence, school, church, park or community

          6  use. The City's interim contracts to handle

          7  residential garbage should be withdrawn until a

          8  solid waste management plan is approved that follows

          9  fair share requirements and does not overly burden

         10  communities like Greenpoint, Williamsburg, Red Hook

         11  and Sunset Park.

         12                 In this City interim plans have a way

         13  of becoming permanent. So far the interim plan

         14  developed by the City have involved the wording of a

         15  contract to Waste Management, which operates two

         16  transfer stations in East Williamsburg and South

         17  Greenpoint which handle about 20 percent of the

         18  City's residential garbage, and generate around

         19  1,200 truck trips a day.

         20                 So, these neighborhoods not only have

         21  the worst garbage but the worst company.

         22                 Waste Management is the dinosaur of

         23  the sanitation world. Their idea of recycling was to

         24  hire Dennis Vacco. Any interim contract should be

         25  directly connected to the implementation of a solid
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          2  waste management plan that is broadly supported and

          3  meets the conditions I just outlined. Such contracts

          4  should also have firm dates of expiration. In

          5  addition, waste companies so contracted should be

          6  required to provide alternative plans for truck

          7  traffic routes, focusing on non-residential areas in

          8  order to alleviate already congested traffic routes.

          9                 And New York City should get out of

         10  the garbage business. We produce a staggering amount

         11  of waste on our own, there is no need for the City

         12  to serve as a dumping ground for garbage from

         13  outside the City as well.

         14                 Finally, the Mayor's Office and the

         15  Department of Sanitation must be more open to the

         16  exchange of ideas with the affected communities in

         17  every borough.

         18                 I thank the City Council for my time.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON FIALA: Thank you,

         20  Mr. Maroney.

         21                 We will now call up the following

         22  people, and forgive me if I mispronounce the names.

         23  Robert Roistacher. Frieda Bradlow, and Joan Levine.

         24                 We will let you decide who goes

         25  first. If you will just state your name before you
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          2  give your testimony.

          3                 MS. LEVINE: My name is Joan Levine,

          4  and I represent a community group in the Morningside

          5  Heights, West Harlem section of Manhattan.

          6                 The Morningside Heights, West Harlem

          7  Sanitation Coalition is concerned about the impact

          8  of the DOS Interim plan on its neighborhoods, on

          9  Manhattan in general, and on the people of New

         10  Jersey, especially Newark.

         11                 Pollution from two diesel bus depots,

         12  as well as the emanations from the North River Solid

         13  Waste Treatment Plant causes harmful pollution in

         14  our community. As a matter of fact, Northern

         15  Manhattan has an asthma rate five times that of

         16  downtown.

         17                 We, like many others in Manhattan,

         18  live right next to congested bus, truck and car

         19  routes. The extra trips through City streets that

         20  the DOS trucks will make transporting garbage to New

         21  Jersey will further aggravate that pollution and

         22  congestion.

         23                 Our group cannot fathom why the DOS

         24  would abandon even temporarily the MTS's and

         25  transport by water in favor of the worst polluting
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          2  offender, diesel engines.

          3                 We are also appalled that so little

          4  has been done to reduce the amount of garbage by

          5  doing real work, the real job of educating the

          6  public and school children about recycling. We have

          7  repeatedly asked DOS administrative personnel about

          8  this and the response always is we have given out

          9  flyers. As a teacher I know that that is not

         10  education.

         11                 In conclusion, our Coalition has

         12  grave concerns about the Interim plan. We think it

         13  is a step backward, not forward. It will further

         14  pollute and congest our community in Morningside

         15  Heights and West Harlem, and in the rest of the

         16  area.

         17                 Our health will be adversely affected

         18  by this plan. This is totally unacceptable. Our

         19  community has been dumped on too much. Thank you

         20  very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         22  much. I always appreciate the fact that you came

         23  from my community, even though Manhattan, I

         24  represent all of Manhattan, all of the City in the

         25  capacity as the chair of this Committee, and I have
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          2  been up there, and I do understand and realize that

          3  no one is pretending there will not be complications

          4  from this plan, and that there will be further

          5  environmental impacts. We just don't think they

          6  properly evaluated it. The whole issue is to try to

          7  limit it as quickly as possible, and the only

          8  benefit that will be from it is the closing down of

          9  the marine transfer stations until a permanent plan

         10  is in effect. You are aware of that. So you are not

         11  going to have the trucks lined up there, which is a

         12  problem that I think contributes greatly to

         13  asthmatic vulnerability of our community.

         14                 Frieda.

         15                 MS. BRADLOW: Thank you, Chairman

         16  Michels and the rest of the Council. I appreciate

         17  the opportunity to represent another community --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Why don't you

         19  state your full name. I know I called you by your

         20  first name, I probably shouldn't have.

         21                 MS. BRADLOW: Right, yes.

         22                 I am Frieda K. Bradlow. I am

         23  representing Community Board 2, which for

         24  identification purposes covers part of the East

         25  Village, NoHo, the Central Village, SoHo and Little
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          2  Italy, the South Village and Hudson Square, and by

          3  all means, the Holland Tunnel.

          4                 This morning I was very interested in

          5  listening to the testimony that there couldn't be

          6  any impact on the communities.

          7                 I happen to live five blocks due

          8  north of the entrance to the Holland Tunnel, just

          9  off Varrick Street. In the first historic district

         10  declared in Manhattan, and I will tell you that all

         11  of our streets are impacted day, night and weekend

         12  by the current traffic.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Terrible.

         14                 MS. BRADLOW: I was extremely proud of

         15  the fact that my Councilperson Christine Quinn, the

         16  other Councilperson who is concerned with Community

         17  Board 2, and the State Senator representing

         18  Community Board 2 were all here and participating.

         19                 It gives you an idea of how severe

         20  the problem in lower Manhattan is.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I must say I am

         22  very happy that they are here also, even though they

         23  are not members of the Committee. But I am not from

         24  their community and I understand the nature of your

         25  problem, and I so stated it.
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          2                 MS. BRADLOW: Well, I was asked by the

          3  community board to read into the record, I didn't

          4  want to just turn it in, I turned over our

          5  objections, and to suggest what State Senator Duane

          6  suggested was compressed natural gas. I can't

          7  understand, as you know, Chairman Michels, I have

          8  been on the Solid Waste Advisory Board of Manhattan

          9  since its inception. I have been on the Citywide

         10  Recycling Advisory Board and my big thing, as you

         11  know, has been waste prevention.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right.

         13                 MS. BRADLOW: Never once this morning

         14  or this afternoon, has that been mentioned. It is

         15  not recycling, it is better than recycling.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We understand

         17  that.

         18                 MS. BRADLOW: Because it is waste not

         19  even generated and having to be dealt with.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: See, that is not

         21  an issue of the Sanitation Department.

         22                 MS. BRADLOW: It is an issue --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is an issue

         24  for everyone in this City.

         25                 MS. BRADLOW: Yes, but --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And waste

          3  prevention was never interested in picking up

          4  recycling materials or anything they pick up, they

          5  don't pick up things you don't make.

          6                 MS. BRADLOW: Yes, but that's the

          7  whole point.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I thought you

          9  were going to mention the, and I shouldn't get into

         10  a colloquy with you, I do want to go on record so

         11  people understand this, it was mentioned a number of

         12  times, the issue of compressed natural gas.

         13                 MS. BRADLOW: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We have raised

         15  this issue with them, as I have raised it with every

         16  single agency in the City that uses vehicles. They

         17  should use alternative fuels.

         18                 And the answer that is given to me,

         19  as far as the Department of Sanitation is concerned,

         20  is that, and first it was given to me that they

         21  don't get enough horsepower out of their vehicles

         22  that they need, and then that was said, no, that is

         23  not the case. The problem with the Department of

         24  Sanitation is that we don't have enough garages that

         25  are prepared to deliver it, and when they are doing
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          2  it in an emergency situation, such as a snow storm,

          3  they have to be able to stay in the field and not

          4  have to keep going back to garages. And you don't

          5  get as much mileage our of compressed natural gas as

          6  you do out of gas or fuel, or diesel.

          7                 Those are their answers --

          8                 MS. BRADLOW: I understand. There are

          9  many other answers. I mean, we have been given the

         10  answer at the Solid Waste Advisory Board and at the

         11  CRAB, that they don't have fueling stations.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, that is the

         13  answers I just gave you. Any answer that doesn't

         14  recognize the fact that diesel is a real contributor

         15  towards disease in the City --

         16                 MS. BRADLOW: Of all kinds.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Please proceed.

         18                 MS. BRADLOW: I do, however, feel

         19  again that in terms of our urging that this interim

         20  plan which no one looks at as any kind of sensible

         21  solution for very long, and --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is why it

         23  is an interim plan.

         24                 MS. BRADLOW: Pardon?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is why it
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          2  is an interim plan. That is why I have said ad

          3  nauseam that it will be the biggest motivation to do

          4  a long range plan.

          5                 MS. BRADLOW: I hope you are right.

          6  However, any long-range plan, and so far as you

          7  know, better than anyone else in this room, we have

          8  not made any progress in getting waste prevention,

          9  which is an integral part of any long-range plan

         10  that the City develops.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Of any

         12  comprehensive plan certainly.

         13                 MS. BRADLOW: So, I have said my say

         14  and I will --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Say your thing

         16  now.

         17                 MS. BRADLOW: I will tell you that the

         18  resolution from Community Board 2, which is very

         19  brief, says Whereas, New York City Department of

         20  Sanitation describes their Interim waste export plan

         21  as only temporary, and therefore not subject to an

         22  environmental impact statement; now,

         23                 Therefore, be it resolved, that so

         24  massive a trucking program powered by diesel, the

         25  most polluting fuel commonly in use in the US, a
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          2  fuel identified by respected studies as producing

          3  airborne carcinogens and asthma triggers should be

          4  subject to an environmental review and mitigations

          5  to offset the environmental and neighborhood street

          6  impacts of so massive a plan; and,

          7                 Be it finally resolved, that

          8  mitigation should include, but not be limited to,

          9  replacing diesel with CNG, routing trucks over

         10  highways rather than on local streets.

         11                 Just as an aside, Sanitation this

         12  morning said they would be using only designated

         13  truck routes, Broome Street is not one, and they use

         14  it freely and often.

         15                 Relying on a strong waste prevention

         16  program to reduce the amount of trash to be hauled

         17  and relying on maximum use of barges and rail in

         18  removing waste from New York City, passed by the

         19  full Board of Community Board 2, Manhattan, October

         20  the 21st, 1999.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's a good

         22  statement. Thank you very, very much, Frieda. As

         23  usual.

         24                 Bob.

         25                 MR. ROISTACHER: My name is Bob
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          2  Roistacher. I am Chair of the Manhattan Solid Waste

          3  Advisory Board. I am also speaking -- I have handed

          4  in a statement for a coalition, the Coalition for

          5  Waste Reduction and Responsible Export. That

          6  Coalition comprises the Manhattan Solid Waste

          7  Advisory Board, the Brooklyn SWAB, the Citywide

          8  Recycling Advisory Board, the Tristate

          9  Transportation Campaign, Trees Not Trucks, which is

         10  a local SoHo group concerned with the Canal Street

         11  area.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The credentials

         13  are impeccable. They are not challenged, they are

         14  accepted, and we will hear your statement.

         15                 MR. ROISTACHER: Thank you, sir.

         16                 While I have handed in that statement

         17  on behalf of the Coalition, I will speak just as the

         18  Chairman of the Manhattan Solid Waste Advisory

         19  Board.

         20                 I don't think this is necessarily the

         21  time and place to have an exogesis of the negative

         22  declaration that was issued today --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Enough of it has

         24  been criticized already, including by us.

         25                 MR. ROISTACHER: And I was very glad
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          2  to hear how astute the comments were and how it

          3  doesn't seem that the Department has pulled the wool

          4  over anyone's eyes. Well, it seems to me there is a

          5  lesson to be learned from that, and that is, there

          6  is something wrong, it seems to me, with the

          7  environmental review process. I didn't come to make

          8  that particular statement, but I think as we sat

          9  here throughout this morning and now afternoon, we

         10  find just it is a bizarre process that yields a

         11  negative declaration on something that is so

         12  clearly, so clearly affects the environment.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We have asked

         14  from the beginning, and I think I stated that there

         15  should be an environmental -- an EIS should be done.

         16  Months ago we asked that.

         17                 MR. ROISTACHER: Yes. But you see, you

         18  are not able to get it. And it seems to me perhaps

         19  what this leads to is, perhaps the Council can -- as

         20  I understand it in the City now we do environmental

         21  review both under the state and under an executive

         22  order. Why can't the Council, why can't the Council

         23  pass its own environmental quality review act for

         24  the City and put some teeth into it and yield

         25  logical results that will give communities, you
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          2  know, power and the Council power to do this so we

          3  don't have to go to court every time we want to have

          4  a review.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We will look

          6  into it but I think there may be some problem with

          7  the State law.

          8                 MR. ROISTACHER: I think you can pass

          9  anything as long as it is not less, any less

         10  restrictive in the state law. The City has already

         11  an executive order.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: There is

         13  preemption --

         14                 MR. ROISTACHER: No, we have a mayoral

         15  order we act under. Okay, I will leave that to you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Leave it to the

         17  lawyers, will you?

         18                 MR. ROISTACHER: But in any event --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Nevertheless, we

         20  believe there should have been an EIS.

         21                 MR. ROISTACHER: I believe there

         22  should have been an EIS for not the least which

         23  reason is that the Holland Tunnel, as you may know,

         24  is a national historic landmark, therefore it is on

         25  the national register of historic places, and any
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          2  impacts there, under CEQR, should make this be

          3  evaluated as a Type 1 action, and the degradations

          4  and the area of the Canal have to be looked at in a

          5  much more particular way than I think the Department

          6  has by ignoring the fact that this is a national

          7  register property, through which a very good part of

          8  the traffic will be, the garbage will be exported.

          9                 This leads to another conclusion from

         10  this morning and this afternoon's engagement; and

         11  that is, that we hear from the people in New Jersey

         12  and we hear from the people in Brooklyn and the

         13  Bronx and we know that there is going to be

         14  blow-back in garbage.  After we displace more

         15  garbage in nearby New Jersey, we know the commercial

         16  trash is going to come back to us in private

         17  transfer stations, both in the Bronx and in

         18  Brooklyn. I think that has been remarked on

         19  generally. That leads, it seems to me, to the

         20  overwhelming conclusion that we need a regional

         21  comprehensive plan that encompasses both the

         22  commercial and the residential garbage.

         23                 The Department has just waved hands,

         24  and so, by the way, has the state on this and sort

         25  of gave them a pass on it, saying well they don't
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          2  have to account for commercial garbage, but the fact

          3  is in their long-term plan, if and when, and I don't

          4  think it is going to be in any less time than they

          5  close Freshkills, half a century, they get around to

          6  implementing a long-term rail and marine-based plan,

          7  that plan according to them will not comprehend the

          8  commercial waste stream. They will have put in

          9  place, even under their best scenario, the limited

         10  facility that will not take in account an

         11  expeditious way to take care of commercial trash.

         12                 We will be left in Williamsburg, in

         13  Greenpoint, and in the Hunts Point in the South

         14  Bronx with a horrendous environmental situation,

         15  which could be alleviated by thoughtful,

         16  comprehensive planning now, and I think the

         17  procedures in effect now, through the White House

         18  Council on the Environment, this Economic Justice

         19  Conference, is a way to get the City to participate

         20  with New Jersey in some kind of regional planning.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you, Bob.

         22  I appreciate it.

         23                 MR. ROISTACHER: You are quite

         24  welcome.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, thank you.
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          2                 Next we will hear from the Red Hook

          3  GAGS, Charles Davis, are they here together? Lou

          4  Sones.

          5                 Thank you for coming. I appreciate

          6  your staying here and waiting.

          7                 MR. SONES: My name is Lou Sones. I am

          8  with Red Hook GAGS, obviously I live in Red Hook,

          9  and one might ask why am I here today? This is a

         10  hearing about the Interim plan that affects

         11  Manhattan and Staten Island. I am very glad that

         12  Councilman Fiala is here because one of the reasons

         13  I am here today is because his Co-Councilman had a

         14  hearing that DOS ran last spring, Councilman Oddo

         15  made a statement that touched me very deeply and

         16  actually broke my heart a little bit, and I promised

         17  at that hearing that I would not turn a deaf ear to

         18  any plan that affects any borough and any community

         19  adversely, whether it be my own or someone else's.

         20                 And what Councilman Oddo said was,

         21  where were we when all of the folks and all of the

         22  kids in Staten Island were dying of cancer and

         23  asthma and all of that, where were we? We are only

         24  turning out now because it affects our

         25  neighborhoods.
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          2                 So, I am here today because this plan

          3  affects everybody. Even though the Interim plan

          4  might be looked at as a relief for Red Hook, it is a

          5  bad plan for everybody. And why is it a bad plan for

          6  everybody?

          7                 It is unequitable. It is unsensible.

          8  It is uneconomical, and what it is is it is

          9  political. It is political and it is profitable, and

         10  it is profitable for who? Waste Management, Inc.

         11                 Now, I want to take some of the

         12  gloves off in a very nice way.

         13                 Questions were asked throughout this

         14  hearing by several of the Council members and people

         15  on the Committee, what about these violations? What

         16  about these horrendous injustices and bad neighbor

         17  policies of this company and some others? They were

         18  never answered by DOS.

         19                 Let me answer the question for DOS.

         20                 Waste Management, who is the company

         21  that is involved in a lot of these interim plans and

         22  also would be the one for the long-term plan that

         23  everybody is rushing to. That would involve

         24  primarily Red Hook. This company has gone from 62

         25  points to 17 points in the stock market. Why?
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          2  Because of environmental infractions, because of

          3  insider trading, because of for-hiring plans,

          4  because of deaths and injuries to their workers, and

          5  this is the company that whether it is the Interim

          6  plan or the long-term plan, this City, this

          7  Administration, and, yes, DEC, and yes, Stan, I am

          8  very sorry, even the City Council is saying let's go

          9  forward with these people.

         10                 Now, one of the reasons we are here

         11  is because we had to get organized crime out of the

         12  hauling industry. This corporate mob will make

         13  organized crime look like Disney World. Already

         14  there are incidents. We have a rap sheet of 30

         15  pages, which I will submit to the Committee. They

         16  have been kicked out of communities coming in,

         17  kicking out organized crime, starting in with low

         18  rates and then raising their rates to double where

         19  organized crime was charging before they came.

         20                 These people, this company, they are

         21  bad, they are evil, and the City is determined to

         22  make them a partner in the Interim and the long-term

         23  plan for the garbage disposal of this City.

         24                 Something is wrong somewhere, there

         25  is dirt in the milk.
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          2                 Finally, I just want to say that,

          3  Elizabeth, New Jersey is a shining example of what

          4  is wrong with the privatization of waste removal and

          5  waste prevention.

          6                 Here is a community whose Mayor, even

          7  though the Department of Sanitation doesn't admit to

          8  this, or says they don't know about this, whose

          9  Mayor objects to what is happening, whose Council to

         10  what is happening, whose town elders object to what

         11  is happening and whose population objects to what is

         12  happening, and they can't do a damn thing about it.

         13  Why? Because Deputy Commissioner Carpinello said

         14  several hearings ago, it is private business, we

         15  can't control private business, and that is what we

         16  are looking towards. That is what we are facing. We

         17  are facing private business ruining Manhattan,

         18  Queens, Brooklyn, the Bronx, the whole City, with an

         19  Interim and a long-term plan.

         20                 By the way, diesel fumes which are so

         21  cancerous producing and horrible, tugboats produce

         22  about 20 times as much diesel fumes as any one

         23  truck. So, tugboats are not necessarily the answer

         24  either.

         25                 Finally, I would like to say --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: There are a lot

          3  fewer tugboats than there are trucks.

          4                 MR. SONES: Pardon me?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: There are a lot

          6  fewer tugboats than there are trucks.

          7                 MR. SONES: Right, but in a one square

          8  mile neighborhood, if some of the long-term plan

          9  that has been proposed, there would be a plethora of

         10  tugboats in the one square mile area that would be

         11  non-stop 24 hours a day.

         12                 Also, DOS is so full of holes. I

         13  mean, on one hand when it is convenient they say we

         14  are doing a long-term plan so that we can avoid 24

         15  hours a day. Now they are saying 24 hours a day is

         16  the solution. So, they always come up with something

         17  that is convenient.

         18                 Their plan is like a hail Mary pass

         19  in the fourth quarter of a football game and they

         20  say we don't know what else to do, let's throw the

         21  damn ball and hope somebody catches it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It sometimes

         23  works.

         24                 MR. SONES: Sometimes works, 90

         25  percent of the time doesn't.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Had one last

          3  week that worked.

          4                 MR. SONES: That's true. Thank God.

          5                 An equitable short-term and a

          6  long-term plan is easy, is doable, it is simple, it

          7  is just that people don't want to do it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you.

          9                 MR. SONES: I say let's do it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         11  much. I appreciate it.

         12                 Sir.

         13                 MR. DAVIS: My name is Charles Davis,

         14  I am a long-time resident in Red Hook. I am an

         15  active member of the Red Hook Civic Association,

         16  groups against garbage.

         17                 Just as a little background, let me

         18  say a few things about Red Hook. This is a

         19  neighborhood that has experienced many ills of

         20  private waste transfer stations, which means stink,

         21  which means rats, which means asthma, which both I

         22  and Lou have contracted, since living in the

         23  community, as most people I know have asthma. And

         24  this is possibly going to be made worse by the

         25  long-term plan which calls for making Red Hook as
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          2  the repository, as a minimum, as a minimum for all

          3  of the solid waste transfer in Brooklyn.

          4                 Now, let's get into the Interim plan.

          5  I think there is no question, absolutely no question

          6  at all, that the atrocity of the Freshkills Landfill

          7  has to be ended and has to be ended as soon as

          8  possible.

          9                 We, in Red Hook, do not believe in

         10  NIMBY. We do not believe in, you know, keep it out

         11  of our back yard and put it into somebody's back

         12  yard. And what has happened to the people in Staten

         13  Island is an atrocity and has to be ended. And it

         14  cannot be ended by what has been clearly shown at

         15  this meeting, at this hearing today, to be an

         16  inadequate interim plan, an interim plan which

         17  everybody here seems to agree, including almost

         18  every member of the Council who is here, that the

         19  Interim plan is flawed, it has been poorly thought

         20  out.

         21                 It seems to be a plan to do

         22  something, to do anything, to get the problem out of

         23  the way, it seems to be a problem of expediency, as

         24  Lou says, probably political and economic

         25  expediency, political expediency for certain

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            276

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  political leaders, and economic expediency, to take

          3  care of a friend of some politicians, as Waste

          4  Management took care of Mr. Vacco, by giving him a

          5  job after he lost his job in an election.

          6                 I think that we have to do something

          7  on an interim basis that really attempts to solve a

          8  problem with a concern of the populations involved.

          9                 This is the populations of Manhattan

         10  who are going to be hurt by this, and Staten Island

         11  that are going to be hurt by this Interim plan.

         12                 This poorly thought out plan that

         13  will cause more trouble than it is going to resolve.

         14                 Now, what I would suggest, as Mr.

         15  Michels has suggested, is the implementation of a

         16  long-term plan. However, not the long-term plan as

         17  expressed by the Department of Sanitation or by

         18  Mayor Giuliani.

         19                 But a long-term plan, much simpler,

         20  much less expensive, and certainly not profitable to

         21  Waste Management Corporation and its allies, by

         22  taking the existing marine transfer stations and

         23  refitting them, and using them as refitted to ship

         24  out our garbage, this can be done much cheaper and

         25  will also bring an area of environmental justice.
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          2  The existing marine transfer station are scattered

          3  through varies areas of the City and will divide up

          4  the garbage.

          5                 Frankly, one of the marine transfer

          6  stations is in my neighborhood in Red Hook. We will

          7  have to bear our share of the burden. We do now and

          8  we think we should continue to do so.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And one of them

         10  is in my neighborhood.

         11                 MR. DAVIS: All right. We think that

         12  we should continue to do so. And we think this

         13  should be an immediately implemented step, not

         14  interim to solve the problem once and for all.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         16  much. I appreciate it.

         17                 Is Mr. Basick here? Oh, you are still

         18  here, Mr. Basick, nice to see you.

         19                 Carrie MacPherson. And Curtis

         20  Segfried.

         21                 MR. BASICK: My name is Thomas F.

         22  Basick. I am an independent environmental analyst.

         23                 Governor Pataki claims to be a great

         24  environmentalist. I would strongly urge the City

         25  Council and New York City legislative delegation in

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            278

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  Albany to press Governor Pataki to appoint a State

          3  Solid Waste Commission under the executive powers of

          4  the Mooreland Act, for a comprehensive investigation

          5  of the State Department of Environmental

          6  Conservation for failure to enforce the

          7  environmental conservation law over the past 20

          8  years, in regard to the siting, permitting and

          9  regulation of private transfer stations.

         10                 This has led to haphazard

         11  proliferation of 41 private transfer stations in

         12  Greenpoint, Williamsburg, as well as concentrations

         13  on the Brooklyn waterfront and the South Bronx Hunts

         14  Point area.

         15                 There has simply been too much

         16  collusion with the private waste industry.

         17  Unfortunately, the deck is more concerned with the

         18  wildlife species in the Adriandacks than they are

         19  with the human species in the metropolitan area of

         20  the City of New York.

         21                 I would further ask the City Council

         22  to draft a resolution calling on Attorney General

         23  Spitzer to institute an anti-trust action against

         24  the conglomeration of Waste Management, USA Waste

         25  and Eastern Environmental, now operating under Waste
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          2  Management under Section 7 of the United States

          3  Clayton Act (phonetic) specifically for the New York

          4  City metropolitan area, including Northern New

          5  Jersey.

          6                 This anti-trust action must be joined

          7  by the United States Justice Department. There is

          8  federal jurisdiction under interstate commerce

          9  clause. Let the New York Metropolitan Congressional

         10  Delegation camp out on the White House steps until

         11  President Clinton agrees to get Janet Reno and Jowal

         12  Kind to join the suit as co-plaintiffs.

         13                 This congressional delegation would

         14  be led by such Clinton loyalists and representatives

         15  Reingall, Nadler, Serrano, Velasquez, Owen, Anita

         16  Lowell, and above all, Senator Schumer.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 MR. BASICK: Wait, I have got another

         20  point.

         21                 Here is the final scoping document of

         22  Sanitation Department. Despite the testimony today

         23  of the officials of the Sanitation Department, I am

         24  not convinced. The long-term EBUFs are still very

         25  much on the table, they are in this book. The crown
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          2  jewels of Waste Management's empire will be the

          3  proposed Erie Basin Red Hook EBUF, with a proposed

          4  capacity of 7,100 tons per day, and the gigantic

          5  96-acre EBUF in the Harlem River railroad yards in

          6  the South Bronx with a potential capacity of 8,000

          7  tons per day to be received by both barge and truck.

          8                 Let us not be deceived, if these

          9  EBUFs are approved, this will be a full-blown merger

         10  between the Sanitation Department and Waste

         11  Management, with Waste Management coming in on a

         12  golden parachute and the people of New York City

         13  getting the poison pill.

         14                 The white sanitation trucks will be a

         15  collection agency for Waste Management, and the

         16  sanitation barges will become a United Parcel

         17  Service, with free delivery to the EBUFs, for

         18  unloading only to be processed by Waste Management

         19  and once again dumped into ocean-going barges for

         20  export.

         21                 This double-handling of municipal

         22  solid waste, as we move into the 21st century, is

         23  absolutely insane. This 20-year $6 billion EBUF

         24  proposal would be the greatest single procurement in

         25  the New York City history.
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          2                 This is a conservative figure. If the

          3  cost of sanitation labor and collection operations

          4  are figured in over 20 years, I estimate it will

          5  approach $10 billion over 20 years.

          6                 Rest assured this double handling of

          7  solid waste will never pass an objective impartial

          8  cost benefit analysis.

          9                 Final point. Finally, federal

         10  prosecutors Zachary Carter, Martha Wright and the

         11  federal prosecutor of New Jersey must seek a

         12  criminal indictment of Waste Management under RICO,

         13  Racketeering Influenced Corrupt Organization. Waste

         14  Management has a notorious record throughout the

         15  United States for environmental pollution, dumping

         16  of toxic waste, improper handling of hazardous waste

         17  labor violations, et cetera.

         18                 Thank you, Chairman Michels.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         20  much. I am very happy you stayed around so we could

         21  hear you.

         22                 MS. COKELY: My name is Carrie Cokely,

         23  and I appreciate that you all are still here

         24  listening, and I know that you did ask the

         25  Department of Sanitation to leave someone here to
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          2  listen to everyone testifying, and I wonder if

          3  anyone is here from the Department of Sanitation?

          4  They ran away very quickly and obviously --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: There was one

          6  person here for quite some time.

          7                 MS. COKELY: There was one person

          8  here, okay.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: They were very

         10  fearful of your testimony.

         11                 MS. COKELY: They seem to be fearful

         12  of any kind of truth or fact.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The truth will

         14  set you free.

         15                 MS. COKELY: Yes.

         16                 Much of what I have to say has been

         17  said, but I am going to say it because it needs to

         18  be said and on record. They do need to replace, not

         19  just in five years when these trucks were out, but

         20  replace now as soon as possible any kind of diesel

         21  truck that they are using with the natural gas.

         22  Their figure of one out of 500 trucks that they say

         23  doesn't make that much difference, the two-tenths of

         24  one percent, they are comparing diesel trucks with

         25  compact cars going over the tunnels and the bridges.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            283

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  They are not comparing it accurately at all, as far

          3  as the pollution that they cause.

          4                 I live right across from the Holland

          5  Tunnel, I see the trucks there all the time, their

          6  estimates of the time are totally inaccurate, as we

          7  all agree. Any time of day or night, they can close

          8  the tunnel very often at night, so if they think

          9  that even the plan of going through after 7:00 isn't

         10  going to work, it is backed up at 8:00, it is backed

         11  up at 9:00, if there is a game it is backed up at

         12  11:00, if it is 3:00 in the morning and they decide

         13  to close it, there is honking, screaming, yelling

         14  and everyone sitting there idling and I don't think

         15  they figuring in at all the amount of gas that is

         16  burned when someone sits outside a tunnel for 30

         17  minutes waiting to get through.

         18                 I have been paying attention to these

         19  issues more and more. I have two children, one is

         20  three years old, I take her to school on the subway,

         21  I see very offensive ads from New York City,

         22  specifically it is a New York City thing about

         23  asthma, trying to take care of asthma and

         24  encouraging children to take their medication every

         25  day so that they can be healthy. And I can't believe
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          2  that any City agency is still using a diesel bus and

          3  is still shipping off garbage to burn because these

          4  are the causes of asthma. Asthma should not have to

          5  be controlled by drugs, it should be controlled by

          6  providing clean air for children, and I think that

          7  is all I have to say.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you for

          9  your testimony, and I am sorry to see you are

         10  suffering, I really am.

         11                 Is there somebody named Allen Hodge

         12  here? Mr. Hodge.

         13                 MR. HODGE: Good evening, Chairman.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Good evening. I

         15  almost didn't recognize you with your new mustache.

         16                 MR. HODGE: And I must say the

         17  Chairman of the Committee is my Councilman, who I

         18  say very much with pride, for his hard work.

         19                 My name is Allen Hodge. I am a former

         20  democratic district leader for the area where the

         21  North River Pollution Plant is, the sanitation

         22  marine transfer station is and our two bus

         23  terminals, that we look out our building and one of

         24  them is right below us on 133rd Street, Broadway and

         25  Riverside Drive.
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          2                 A couple of months ago I saw in the

          3  New York Times an article that was done on Harlem.

          4  And it says Will A Harlem Sanitation Plant Become A

          5  New Son of the Freshkills Plant? And I have kept

          6  this, it was July 4th in the New York Times, and I

          7  have kept it ever since because it reminds us in our

          8  community of what we are suffering through in that

          9  area.

         10                 I join with my neighbors --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You should say,

         12  Allen, the gist of the article is that the 135th

         13  Street marine transfer station should only be taking

         14  the same amount of garbage it is taking now, and

         15  that should not be the place for all garbage --

         16                 MR. HODGE: Exactly.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is what the

         18  fear is --

         19                 MR. HODGE: Exactly.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And that is the

         21  reason for the article.

         22                 MR. HODGE: And in fact, that was the

         23  original plan of the Sanitation Department, and when

         24  the community was upset, then it was supposedly

         25  altered to include all marine transfer stations, not
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          2  just 135th Street marine transfer station.

          3                 I join with my neighbors, as well as

          4  Community Planning Board No. 9, in opposing the

          5  upgrading of a sanitation marine transfer station.

          6  This station is below our development where I live,

          7  which is a Riverside Park Housing Development at

          8  135th Street and Riverside Drive.

          9                 Nor do we want the proposed trucking

         10  facilities at 140th Street and 12th Avenue.

         11                 The Hampton Heights West Harlem

         12  Community has the highest rate of asthma in the City

         13  of New York. This impacts the children of our local

         14  school districts 5 and 6. Adjacent to our

         15  development is two MTA bus terminals, also the north

         16  river pollution plant, this plant emanates foul

         17  odors on any given day, and we believe this is

         18  environmental racism.

         19                 The present and past City policy

         20  developers, have made our community a dumping

         21  ground. The North River Pollution Plant originally

         22  was scheduled to be built at 72nd Street and the

         23  Hudson River. The initial Sanitation Department

         24  proposal selected only the 135th Street site, as I

         25  indicated. We feel this is an intent to make West
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          2  Harlem the new Freshkills of New York City.

          3                 I vigorously support the closing of

          4  Freshkills, which has been an environmental disaster

          5  for the residents of Staten Island. And finally, I

          6  want to say thank you to my Councilman, because he

          7  has been vigorously attentive to this situation, in

          8  terms of our community, as well as the community at

          9  large, as the Chairman of this Committee.

         10                 Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you. I

         12  appreciate your being here.

         13                 There being no other witnesses, this

         14  meeting is hereby adjourned.

         15                 (Hearing concluded at 3:30 p.m.)
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          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 28th day of October 1999.
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